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COMPANY PROFILE
ACILMY

Kanggiao Service Group Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Kanggiao
Service “or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries collectively
referred to as the “Group”, stock code: 2205) was incorporated in
the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability on
October 8, 2020, and was listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on July 16,
2021 (the “Listing Date").

With more than 10 years of hard work and dedication and based in
Central China, Kanggiao Service is deeply rooted in the country.
Kanggiao Service is a reputable comprehensive property management
service provider in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC"), with a
leading position in Henan Province. We have been involved in various
business covering several types of properties such as residential,
commercial, office buildings, industrial parks, and public properties.
To date, we have served millions of property owners and have won
more than 200 awards. We were ranked TOP100 in China’s property
industry for six consecutive years, and ranked 37th among the Top
100 Property Service Companies in terms of overall strength in 2021.

Guided by the national urban agglomeration development strategy,
Kanggiao Service is committed to establishing national network. As of
December 31, 2021, the Group’s business contracts covered 31 cities
in eight provinces. In addition to its development in Henan, the Group
strengthened the business expansion in economically developed
provinces, especially the non-residential business, and successfully
expanded into non-residential business such as high-end office
buildings in Wuxi, Jiangsu Province and commercial and life pavilion in
Lishui, Zhejiang Province. It owns a number of subsidiaries such as
Henan Kanggjiao Jiahe Property Service Co., Ltd.* (7] & BE1S 52 A 5
R B PR A 7)) (“Kanggiao liahe”), Henan Kanggiao Zhufu Property
Service Co., Ltd.* (7] @ FZ 15 #7L 1& ¥ 2 AR 7% A R 2 7)), Puyang
Junyang Property Service Co., Ltd. CEFSTTEBMERBSERAF]),
Zhejiang Lansheng Property Service Co., Ltd.* (WTEEYIERBH
R 7~ 7A]) (“Lansheng Property”), Luohe Suhe Property Service Co.,
Ltd.* (V28] T &k a7 ¥ 35 Bk 7 A BR 2 &), Henan Kanggiao Zhuyou
Property Services Co., Ltd.* CAFEEBER Y ZERBBIRAF]), Hebi
Kanggiao Property Service Co., Ltd.* (BB BB WERISERAF)
("Hebi Kanggiao”), Zhengzhou Kanggiao Guotou Technology Industry
Service Co., Ltd.* (BB Bz #8 BI I BF £ & 2 AR 7% A IR 2 7)), Henan
Dingfeng Property Services Co., Ltd.* (JAlm S I& R ER A A))
("Dingfeng Property”), Xi‘an Lifeng Property Management Co., Ltd.
and Henan Guidao Yueshenghuo Life Property Services Co., Ltd.* (Jf
FEEENEEYEEE AR A F) (“Guidao Yueshenghuo”). With
the support of the brand and operation management of Kanggiao
Service, we carry out independent brand operation and business
expansion by leveraging on local geographical advantages, such as
the expansion of the industrial park project in Changyuan by
Kanggiao Jiahe, the development of high-end office buildings and
commercial projects in Hangzhou and Lishui by Lansheng Property,
the development of new tourism projects by Hebi Kanggiao, the
supplement of the Group's share of high-end properties and schools
in Henan by Dingfeng Property, and the expansion of city services by
Guidao Yueshenghuo. In 2021, the Gross Floor Area (the “GFA")
under management of non-residential properties approximately
increased by 106.9% as compared with that as at December 31,
2020.

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021
BRREEEBERLR I T —FFRH

FERHAEEREEERAR (THE [ E/HAE]
s [ARQR) ] BREMBARGEALER] -
% Z 47 5% : 2205) A2020F 10 A8H M 2
BHEAMAKIAEREER AT - WHK2021
F7R16B( LELMBHDEEBBERZA
BRAE ([BERFT]) ERET -

THEEEEE  BEBIRAERLRRE  RFH
2 ERAEEETEARLMEA([HEH])
MENGEYMESERGIREN  EAmEE
REBEHA - FREE BE BFE EX
B AHYWESZEER - BHEBA - REA
BT LIBBE200HERE  BEEN
BB EITETOP100 @ WAE2021 EFHREY
ERBERCEPGEETNBERE I -

R EARRR AR RS AEN - B
BEE2RMBEZE - HE2021F12A8318
AREEEBRARIBMASE 3™ o BiEHH
RN AREBNBR LB ELDNERRRE -
BRRIFFEERNMGR KRR IHSE
BT EHETE MIYBEKT YA RS
JEEEZERE o FHE MBI RS = MY RS
BRAB([EERZM]) A mEBREYER
BERRAR - BEEMESYEREERAA
MTERYERBAR AR ([ERDE]) - R
AT ERRERSBRAR U EEBERY
E¥RBERAR - BEMEBWERBERA
RI([EEEERAE])  ENERBER R EZERS
BRAR - NESEMERBEERAR ([ HiE
WE]D) BB EEDEEEGREA A
([EEIHEE]D EHBRR - EEBINAEER
R EEEREEYET BB RBES
WEEZ i B EITERRRE - EBE
MERBIHERREXRIEER @ ERMELEMN
N BKERESREFTENEEIRE @ BER
BRIRFIHIREEXTEE  REMEFTASE
EemER  EREMTEMNGER  HLEH
AERIEE NI ARTEE - 2021 FIEFEE
RRAEEEARE([EEME]) RAL2020F12
H318 ' #)3#&K106.9% °



“Creating a joyful life through Kanggiao's considerate services (FZ)k
0, = AE)". The Group insists on in-depth study on the development
path of urban civilization, and takes “Joyful Service (1% AR #)” and
“Intelligent Technology (& #}H% )" as its two core values. From service
concept to supporting services, the Group focuses on all business
forms, all-age groups and all-service scenarios, covering the whole life
cycle of property development. With the combination of modern
management with digital intelligence technology, the Group fully
demonstrates the new value in the era of large-scale properties by
integrating social governance on the basis of community services.

Based on the needs of urban cultural growth and the pain points of
community facilities, the Group launched the “Four Seasons and One
Hall (l9Z=—%)" cultural activities in neighborhoods and the “Five Clubs
(FE4L)" community activities. Through subdividing groups of people,
the Group organizes community activities for all age groups, from the
elderly to children, from learning to health care and caring about the
needs of people, so that the neighborhood is not only a physical
space, but also a community of life and emotion.

In the future, the Group will take the role as an integrated urban
service provider to deeply participate in urban services, inject fresh
impetus into new neighborhoods within cities and redefine the
wonderful city life by capitalizing on smart technology!
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHE

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of
the Company, | hereby present the Group’s annual results for 2021.

A new chapter begins as time passes by. The Year of Renyin has come

with vitality and hope. Time is the best witness and a faithful recorder.

2021 was an extraordinary year. We successfully listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, building an international platform

and opening up a broader space for the Company’s future business
development.

During the year ended December 31, 2021 (the “Year”), we built a
defense line for our homeland and delivered warmth and energy to

perform our liability and responsibility.

)

Zhengzhou, Henan suffered from the “7.20" heavy rainstorm
disaster, to which the Party Central Committee and the State
Council of the PRC attached great importance. General
Secretary Xi Jinping emphasized the priority to ensure the safety
of people’s lives and property, as well as to pay close attention
to the details of various flood control and disaster relief
measures. Reconstruction was actively conducted after the State
Flood Control and Drought Relief Headquarters, the National
Committee for Disaster Reduction, the Provincial Party
Committee and Provincial Government of Henan, the relevant
ministries and commissions of the state, the People’s Liberation
Army and the Armed Police Force, the firefighting rescue team
and other relevant parties as well as the cadres and the masses
made full effort in efficiently completing the flood control,
emergency rescue and disaster relief in Zhengzhou. In this
challenging disaster relief process, all Kanggiao Service's
employees united and held hands to efficiently integrate into
the community disaster relief system under the government,
during which we closely focused on the life and health needs of
owners and exerted all efforts to provide care until the end, and
won appreciation in the society.
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(2)  The pandemic of 2019 novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19")
which caused harm globally repeatedly spread to Zhengzhou,
Henan and certain surrounding key cities. The PRC government
institutions once again fought back with strong service
capabilities, effectively controlled its spread, and social
operations gradually resumed in an orderly manner. Kanggiao
Service's effort in disaster relief and pandemic combating won
honorary titles including “2021 Advanced Enterprise in Property
Service Industry 2021 F EWERIFTTHE LR EDZE)" and 2021
Leading Enterprise with Quality Property Service in Henan (2021
FEEmEY MR B S LD E) by Henan Property
Management Association, “2021 Advanced Unit in Fighting the
Epidemic (2021 FEMEZIFLHEER )" and “2021 Advanced
Unit in Flood Control and Emergency Rescue (2021 FEHitig
L #EBENI)" by Zhengzhou Property Management Association.

During the Year, we sharpened our swords and strived through
plights to provide happiness under the “sudden big mission”, we
have forged ahead under pressure, and compose a chapter of
happiness. Whether it is on the national level or community level
(Kanggiao Service), Chinese people have no fear in facing crisis. Crisis
is a powerful driving force to test the stability of a country’s system
and the tenacity of a company’s operation. In 2021, the gross
domestic product of the PRC amounted to approximately RMB114.4
trillion, representing an increase of 8.1% as compared with the
previous year. The economy continued to recover steadily, and the
PRC has maintained a leading position in the world in respect of
economic development and epidemic prevention and control, with
main indicators achieving expected goals. Under the stable economy,
the development of the property management industry entered a new
stage and the competition became increasingly fierce. In the first year
of listing, Kanggiao Service is facing new situations, new challenges
and new tasks. Upholding its aspiration, working hard and
persevering, Kanggiao Service's annual revenue exceeded our target,
reaching approximately RMB783.6 million. Continuing to improve
service capability is the constant pursuit of Kanggiao Service. In 2021,
we won the trust and support of owners. Our business expansion has
achieved excellent results. The cumulative new contracted
construction area for the Year was approximately 14.1 million square
meters, of which the area from independent third parties was
approximately 13.0 million square meters, accounting for
approximately 92.0%. As at December 31, 2021, the total contracted
construction area was approximately 53.1 million square meters, of
which the area from independent third parties was approximately
41.1 million square meters, accounting for approximately 77.3%. The
total construction area under management was approximately 23.5
million square meters, of which the area from independent third
parties was approximately 17.3 million square meters, accounting for
approximately 73.4% of the total construction area under
management.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERERE

During the Year, we deeply cultivated the Henan market, strategically

invested in the core economic zone of Shaanxi and developed urban

services.

)

We invested in 6 associates and subsidiaries with state-owned
holding groups, city investment enterprises and potential real
estate development companies (one of which has strategically
cooperated with Zhengzhou Rail Transit Real Estate Co., Ltd. to
establish a joint venture company Guidao Yueshenghuo to
develop urban services continuously in the future);

we established strategic cooperation with Henan Just Industry
Group and acquired Dingfeng Property, whose services covered
office buildings, residences, primary and secondary schools and
other properties. Such cooperation not only expanded the
market share in Henan (especially in key cities such as
Zhengzhou and Pingdingshan), but also enriched the Group’s
services for non-residential business. In addition, due to the
strategic cooperation between the two companies, the low-
value, high-frequency, rigid-demanded dairy products of its
affiliated company, Henan Huahuaniu Milk Industry Group
Holding Ltd., especially the fresh milk distribution service
provided to customers, benefited the owners and our employees
(which increased income of the employees) and gained high
reputation;

we established strategic cooperation with Xi‘an Lifeng Enterprise
Development Investment (Group) Co., Ltd.* (75 % 37 & > £ 3¢
R & (£ @) BB A A]), which is a leading company in local
business operations. Through acquisition of 80% of the equity
interest in Xi'an Lifeng Property Management Co., Ltd. (FA% 3L
LY EEIEBR QA (“Xi'an Lifeng Property”), we plan to
expand the Group’s business penetration rate in Xi‘an. The
high-quality properties it manages including commercial and
office buildings and residential properties, which will further
realize the Group’s economies of scale, optimize the Group'’s
resource allocation and enhance the brand reputation in Xi'an
with joint forces; and
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(4) we deeply cultivated in the industry and the Company’s
university project services expanded from residential (expert
apartments) to non-residential (teaching buildings, campuses,
student dormitories, etc.), from serving one university (Henan
University) to serving multiple universities (successfully won the
bids of Zhengzhou University, Henan University of Technology,
Zhengzhou City Vocational College, Xuchang Electric Vocational
College, etc.). Kanggiao Service were gradually rooted in the
educational circle and its business development flourished. As at
December 31, 2021, the Company’s non-residential area under
management was approximately 2.0 million square meters,
accounting for approximately 8.7%, representing an increase of
approximately 106.9% as compared with 2020.

During the Year, in line with the direction of national policies, we
provided customers with a full range of services with “Creating a joyful
HEAEE)".

While actively consolidating the quality and scale of basic property

life through Kanggiao’s considerate services (5K %0

services, we developed a variety of value-added services for non-
owners based on customer needs (mainly focused on third-party
developer business, non-owner value-added services such as sales
offices to drive the extension of follow-up projects) and community
value-added services. Our multi-channel business broadened our
revenue streams and drove rapid performance growth. Among which,
the value-added revenue of non-owners amounted to approximately
RMB311.9 million, accounting for 39.8% of the total revenue. The
community value-added service revenue amounted to approximately
RMB120.9 million, accounting for 15.4% of the total revenue. The
group buying in community and other businesses, which had been
our key focus on nurturing based on the satisfaction of our owners
and positive customer loyalty in 2021, still need our key focus on
nurturing.

During the Year, we continued to increase our efforts in the field of
building informatization, and improved the overall business operation
efficiency through technological means. Focusing on the core business
operation indicator of customer satisfaction, the Company’s digital
technology center collected customer satisfaction feedback
information from various online and offline channels through the self-
developed “service satisfaction management system” combined with
the performance appraisals of project personnel, in order to improve
the customers’ perception and feedback on the service level from the
business management level, and improve the overall operation
efficiency.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ETEHE

As a key part of property management, project management is even
one of the core segments. How to accurately perceive the service
quality and compliance operation of each project has become a topic
facing our current nationwide operation process. During the Year,
based on the practical application of business, the Company’s
engineering management center and the digital technology center
cooperated closely to sort out the business management norms and
standards in depth, in order to realize intelligent collection of various
core business data such as energy consumption, inspection and
maintenance in project management through digital means, bringing
the accuracy of data analysis to a new level.

Be courageous in facing challenges and the road ahead would
become broader after rainstorms. The new blueprint of Kanggiao
Service has been drawn, and the new mission is inspiring. Guided by
the new three-year strategic plan of the Group, we will work with
unity and strive to build Kanggiao Service into an excellent life and
smart city service operators, and achieve the expectations of our
employees, owners and shareholders.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWR DT

|, BUSINESS REVIEW . FEKORE

(1) FBHR

(1) Business Overview

The Year of 2021 is an important milestone in the history
of the Group'’s development, as the Company was listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on July 16,
2021. This Year had been a year for the real estate
industry to sharpen their sword and bring themselves
together, and even a tough year for the business
operation among the companies in Zhengzhou, Henan.
Zhengzhou, Henan, which were hit repeatedly by
historically rare floods and pandemics. Many business
operations were severely damaged, and the construction
of real estate development projects was seriously delayed.
As a property management business in the downstream
of the supply chain in the real estate industry, with its
adherence to a prudent yet rapid development strategy,
its accurate judgement on the market development trend,
its quick adaptation to the market changes in order to
adjust the pace of its operation, its continuance in
expanding its scale, optimizing its revenue structure and
improving its operating efficiency, the Group has achieved
a steady growth in its scale and performance. During the
Year, the Group's revenue was approximately RMB783.6
million, representing an increase of 36.1% as compared
to approximately RMB575.6 million for 2020. Profit for
the Year was approximately RMB88.6 million,
representing a decrease of 3.5% as compared to
approximately RMB91.8 million for 2020. Excluding the
listing expenses of approximately RMB14.0 million,
adjusted profit for the Year was approximately RMB102.6
million, representing an increase of 4.5% as compared to
that of approximately RMB98.2 million for 2020. Profit
attributable to equity owners of the Group was
approximately RMB83.9 million, representing a decrease
of 5.1% as compared to that of RMB88.4 million in 2020.
Excluding the listing expenses of approximately RMB14.0
million, adjusted profit attributable to shareholders of the
Group was approximately RMB97.9 million, representing
an increase of 3.3% as compared to that of RMB94.8
million in 2020. Adjusted profit for the Year (attributable
to owners of the Company) is defined as profit for the
Year (attributable to owners of the Company) excluding
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non-recurring listing expenses. As listing expenses are
non-recurring in nature and not related to the
performance of the Group’s operation, the Directors
consider that the presentation of the Group’s adjusted
profit for the Year (attributable to owners of the
Company) by eliminating the impact of listing expenses
can better reflect the operational performance during the
respective years. Furthermore, the Group’s management
also uses the adjusted profit for the Year (attributable to
owners of the Company) to assess the Group’s operating
performance and formulate business plans. The Group
believes that the adjusted profit for the Year (attributable
to owners of the Company) provide useful information to
the investors about its core business operations, which
they can use to evaluate the Group’s operating results and
understand its consolidated results of operations in the
same manner as the management.

During the presence of the Group for over 10 years, the
Group has been deeply rooted in Henan and has gradually
expanded its business into key regions outside Henan,
including Zhejiang, Jiangsu, Hubei, Hebei, Guangdong,
Shandong and Shaanxi. Its business covers a variety type
of properties, including residential properties and non-
residential properties (such as commercial properties,
office buildings, industrial parks, hospitals and other
public infrastructure), as well as value-added services to
non-property owners and community value-added
services, with each business line developing in an
integrated and balanced manner in the market. As at
December 31, 2021, the Group provided property
management services and value-added services in 31 cities
in the PRC, with 182 projects under management and a
contracted Gross Floor Area (“GFA") of approximately
53.1 million sq.m., representing an increase of 36.1% as
compared to 2020, of which the GFA under management
was approximately 23.5 million sq.m., representing an
increase of 49.6% as compared to 2020. The GFA under
management of non-residential properties, among which
97.0% were from third party property developers, was
approximately 2.0 million sg.m., representing an increase
of 106.9% as compared to 2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

In 2021, the COVID-19 pandemic fluctuated globally,
posing an unprecedented challenge to the global
economy. The entire city of Zhengzhou, Henan, was
attacked by the “7.20" flood, leading to a significant
impact on the economy of Zhengzhou as well as Henan.
Under the strong and core leadership under the General
Secretary Xi Jinping of the Central Committee of the
Chinese Communist Party, China has effectively prevented
and controlled the epidemic, so that it could continue to
revive the economic recovery, increase the production
demand, stabilize the employment and commodity prices,
and steadily improve the quality and efficiency, which has
led to a stable and upward trend of the economic
development. With the favorable macroeconomic policies
of the domestic property industry and the people’s
demand for a better life to live and work in peace and
contentment, the development of the property industry
has shown an effective growth. The Group, in conjunction
with the effective implementation of the national
prevention and control policies in the community,
continued to pay attention to the situation of COVID-19
to ensure the safety of the lives and properties of property
owners and our employees, maintain sufficient inventory
for prevention and control of the epidemic and business
defense, and actively prevent its impact on the financial
position and operating results of the Group. The Group
considered that COVID-19 did not have any material
adverse impact on the financial position and operating
results of the Group. However, the impact brought by
COVID-19 and the "7.20" flood in Zhengzhou on the real
estate industry had led to, among others, delayed delivery,
reduction in some on-site personnel and closure, which
impacted partly our operating efficiency. In response to
the new situation in the real estate industry, the
adjustment of the development strategy of Kanggiao
Service had also been adjusted appropriately in 2021:
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Enhancement of the business expansion of third-
party developers, especially the cooperation with
state-owned platforms. For example, Kanggiao
Service had entered into a strategic cooperation
with three companies with state-owned background
in 2021; moreover, we should dig deeper into the
resources of the joint ventures who had already
been working with us, and undertake more business
of third-party partners such as Kanggiao Guotou
under our Group, whose team was full of cohesion
and undertook successively projects such as
industrial park, talent apartments, etc. in 2021. Not
only did they achieve the annual results target, but
also improved enormously the satisfaction among
our owners, which had inspired a bigger
encouragement and joy.

Deep cultivation in the industry. In 2021, Kanggiao
Service's service to the university category had
moved from residential (expert apartments) to non-
residential (educational building, campus, student
dormitory, etc.), from one (Henan University) to
more (being the successful tender of Zhengzhou
University, Henan University of Technology, City
University of Zhengzhou, Xuchang Electrical
Vocational College, etc.), taking root in the
education sector gradually for further cultivation.

(2) Three Major Business Lines

The Group is a reputable comprehensive property

management service provider in the PRC, with a leading

position in Henan. In April 2021, the Group was awarded
the title of “2021 China Top 100 Property Management
Companies” by China Index Academy, with its overall

industry strength ranking increased by five places to 37th

compared with the Year of 2020. The Group generates its

revenue mainly from three business lines: (i) property

management services; (ii) value-added services to non-

property owners; and (i) community value-added services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property management services. \We provide property
owners, property developers, residents of residential
properties as well as tenants in non-residential properties
with a wide range of property management services,
which typically include security, cleaning, greening,
gardening, repairs and maintenance services. The Group's
portfolio of properties under management comprises of
residential properties and non-residential properties, such
as commercial properties, office buildings, industrial parks,
hospital and other public infrastructure. The Group's
business has been effectively improved in 2021, especially
the GFA under management of non-residential properties
of the Group increased by 106.9% compared with 2020.

Value-added services to non-property owners. \We
provide value-added services to non-property owners,
primarily property developers, mainly consisting of (i) sales
office management services to property developers’ sales
offices and show flats, such as visitor reception, cleaning
and security services; (ii) pre-delivery services that the
Group offers to property developers at different stages
before the delivery of properties from the perspective of
property owners and future property management
services, primarily including optimization of construction
blueprints at the drawing design stage, quality control
during the construction process, measurement and
inspection of completed units prior to delivery; (iii) sales
agency services in which the Group mainly facilitates
property developers in selling their first-hand properties
prior to property delivery; (iv) construction site
management services in which the Group provides daily
security services to constructors and property developers,
such as video surveillance, emergency response, access
control and visitor management; and (v) consultancy
services for property developers and property
management companies in relation to sales and
management of projects. Revenue from value-added
services to non-property owners of the Group was
approximately RMB311.9 million, representing a growth
of approximately 32.5% as compared to RMB235.4
million for 2020. The increase in the revenue from value-
added services to non-property owners was mainly due to
the increase in revenue from sales agency services.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Community value-added services. We also provide a
comprehensive range of community value-added services
to property owners and residents to improve their living
experiences and to preserve and increase the value of
their assets. These services primarily include (i) home-living
services, such as housekeeping and cleaning services,
home maintenance services, decoration and move-in
furnishing services and shopping services; (i) community
operation services with respect to managing community
spaces and optimizing the utilization of public resources,
such as assist third-party vendors in seeking suitable places
to operate or promote their businesses, facilitating their
promotional events, daily cleaning and equipment
maintenance; and (iii) asset operation services, primarily
including property agency services with respect to second-
hand properties and unsold parking spaces after property
delivery, as well as rental service in relation to parking
spaces and shop spaces. Revenue from community value-
added services provided by the Group was RMB120.9
million, representing a growth of 41.8% as compared to
that of RMB85.2 million for 2020, which was mainly
attributable to the increase of the GFA under
management and service users as well as the increasing
diversification of types of lifestyle services business.

OUTLOOK AND STRATEGY

Kanggiao Service is committed to becoming an outstanding
integrated operator which aims at providing better life and
smart city services. The Group has always been upholding the
original intention of providing customers with “satisfaction +
surprise” and has been working hard to move forward. 2022 is
a crucial year for the Group’s development and transition from
the past to the future. Focusing on the new three-year strategic
goal, we adhere to the core values of long-termism, preserving
the original essence while aiming for victory with creativity. With
the means of digitalization, profits are generated from operation
and the capacity of business in every industry is improved.
Facing the challenging and uncertain situation in the real estate
industry, it is more essential for the management of the Group
to have the strength of “carving bones for healing,” the
courage to execute, and the joint effort to progress. We follow
strictly the guidance of policies, with which we integrated our
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

own characters for appropriate innovation and breeding, in
order to adapt to the new race track without blindly following
the trend and missing opportunity. Through endless learning
and study, seeking the innovation of profit model of the
industry, the profit model has progressed from a single type to
a cross-industry type. With our firm belief in the strategic goal
of Kanggiao Service and the advantage in offense, we marketize
our development for the expansion of scale and increase our
revenue by exporting our intelligence in light asset. The non-
mature businesses will gradually be nurtured to achieve rapid
development with quality and improve recognition in the
market. We calmly respond to the intensive competition in the
capital market and offer rewards to its shareholders, customers
and employees.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The Group's revenue was mainly generated from three major
businesses: (i) property management services; (ii) value-added
services to non-property owners; and (iii) community value-
added services. During the Year, the Group’s revenue was
approximately RMB783.6 million, representing an increase of
36.1% as compared to RMB575.6 million for 2020.

The following table sets out the revenue contribution of each
business line for the years indicated:
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2021 2020
2021 20204

RMB’000 % RMB’ 000 %

AR¥TR % ARETT %

Property management services MEEE R 350,767 44.8 254,956 443
Value-added services to FEHEFEER

non-property owners 311,935 39.8 235,408 40.9

Community value-added services it @I (E AR 120,865 15.4 85,221 14.8

Total FeE 783,567 100.0 575,585 100.0
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Property management services

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from the provision of
property management services amounted to RMB350.8 million,
representing an increase of 37.6% as compared to RMB255.0
million for 2020, which was mainly attributable to the rapid
increase in the total GFA under management as a result of the
Group'’s business expansion.

Value-added services to non-property owners

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from the provision of
value-added services to non-property owners amounted to
approximately RMB311.9 million, representing an increase of
32.5% as compared to RMB235.4 million for 2020. The increase
in revenue from value-added services to non-property owners
was mainly attributable to the increase in revenue from sales
agency services.

Community value-added services

During the Year, the Group’s revenue from the provision of
community value-added services amounted to approximately
RMB120.9 million, representing an increase of 41.8% as
compared to RMB85.2 million for 2020, which was mainly
attributable to the increase in the area under management and
service users as well as the increasing diversification of the types
of lifestyle services business.

COST OF SALES

The Group's cost of sales primarily consists of employee benefit
expenses and labor costs, greening and cleaning expenses, utilities,
maintenance and customer service costs, security service costs, sales
agency service costs, office expenses, rental expenses related to short-
term leases, travelling and entertainment expenses, depreciation and
amortization charges and others.

During the Year, the Group's cost of sales was approximately
RMB579.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 45.3%
as compared to approximately RMB399.0 million for 2020. The
increase in cost of sales was mainly due to the rapid growth of the
Group's business scale.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

The following table sets out the Group’s gross profit and gross profit
margin by business line for the years indicated:
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2021 2020
20215 20204

Gross Gross profit Gross  Gross profit

profit margin profit margin

ER ER=E EM ER=E

RMB'000 % RMB"000 %

ARMEF T % ARBTT %

Property management services MEEERS 55,815 15.9 44,351 17.4
Value-added services to JEEERERS

non-property owners 109,862 35.2 84,301 35.8

Community value-added services HEIEERE 38,175 31.6 47,892 56.2

Total st 203,852 26.0 176,544 30.7

During the Year, the Group's gross profit margin was approximately
26.0%, representing a decrease of 4.7 percentage points compared
to 30.7% for 2020, mainly due to the decrease of gross profit margin
of property management services and community value-added
services.

The gross profit margin of property management services was 15.9%,
representing a decrease from 17.4% for 2020, which was mainly
because the Company actively stepped up its efforts in team building,
conducted recruitment activities and completed talent training ahead
of time for the main purpose of providing good service to the
upcoming projects; at the same time, in order to increase the scale of
public infrastructure project management and accumulate experience,
the Company took an initiative to offer competitive pricing during the
bidding process.

The gross profit margin of value-added services to non-property
owners was 35.2%, representing a decrease from 35.8% for 2020,
which was mainly due to the overall lower gross margin of value-
added services to non-property owners as a result of the faster growth
in the scale of sales agency services related to first-hand properties
and the relatively lower prices the Group offered to expand our
business to compete with other companies.
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The gross profit margin of community value-added services was
31.6%, representing a decrease from 56.2% for 2020, which was
mainly due to the significant increase in revenue generated from
community operation services (such as sale of community
merchandise) which the Group has vigorously promoted during the
Year, with overall lower gross profit margin of these businesses, while
on the other hand, due to the objective environment, the
performance of intermediary brokerage business such as second-hand
property transactions has declined.

OTHER INCOME

During the Year, the Group's other income amounted to
approximately RMB8.5 million, representing a decrease of 60.2% as
compared to approximately RMB21.3 million for 2020. Such decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in interest income from loans to
related parties.

SELLING AND MARKETING EXPENSES

During the Year, the Group’s selling and marketing expenses
amounted to approximately RMB15.3 million, representing an
increase of 42.3% as compared to approximately RMB10.8 million for
2020. The increase in selling and marketing expenses was mainly due
to the increase in the Group’s employee benefit expenses as well as
travelling and entertainment expenses, which were caused by the
further expansion of the Group’s business.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

During the Year, the Group’s administrative expenses amounted to
approximately RMB61.7 million, representing an increase of 55.2% as
compared to approximately RMB39.8 million for 2020, mainly due to
the listing expenses arising from the global offering and the increase
in expenses due to business expansion.

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

During the Year, the Group's income tax expenses amounted to
approximately RMB31.6 million, representing a decrease of 1.6% as
compared to approximately RMB32.1 million for 2020. The decrease
in income tax expenses was mainly due to the decrease in profit
before tax.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

Profit for the Year was approximately RMB88.6 million, representing a
decrease of approximately 3.5% as compared to that of RMB91.8
million for 2020. Excluding the listing expenses of approximately
RMB14.0 million, adjusted profit for the Year was approximately
RMB102.6 million, representing an increase of approximately 4.5% as
compared to that of RMB98.2 million for 2020. Profit for the Year
attributable to the owners of the Company was approximately
RMB83.9 million, representing a decrease of approximately 5.1% as
compared to that of RMB88.4 million for 2020. Excluding the listing
expenses of approximately RMB14.0 million, adjusted profit
attributable to owners of the Company was approximately RMB97.9
million, representing an increase of 3.3% compared to that of
RMB94.8 million in 2020. Adjusted profit for the Year (attributable to
owners of the Company) is defined as profit for the Year (attributable
to owners of the Company) excluding non-recurring listing expenses.
As listing expenses are non-recurring in nature and not related to the
performance of the Group's operation, the Directors consider that the
presentation of the Group’s adjusted profit for the Year (attributable
to owners of the Company) by eliminating the impact of listing
expenses can better reflect the operational performance during the
respective years. Furthermore, the Group’s management also uses the
adjusted profit for the Year (attributable to owners of the Company)
to assess the Group’s operating performance and formulate business
plans. The Group believes that the adjusted profit for the Year
(attributable to owners of the Company) provide useful information
to the investors about its core business operations, which they can
use to evaluate the Group’s operating results and understand its
consolidated results of operations in the same manner as the
management.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

LIQUIDITY, RESERVES AND CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The Group maintained a strong financial position during the Year. As
at December 31, 2021, the current assets amounted to approximately
RMB983.7 million, representing an increase of approximately 15.2%
as compared to that of RMB854.2 million for 2020. As at December
31, 2021, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents were mostly
denominated in RMB and amounted to approximately RMB540.8
million, representing an increase of approximately 301.3% from
RMB134.8 million as at December 31, 2020, mainly due to the receipt
of the initial global offering proceeds during the Year. The Group’s
current ratio (current assets divided by current liabilities) as at
December 31, 2021 was approximately 2.4, representing an increase
of 42.5% from 1.7 as at December 31, 2020. The asset-liability ratio
(total liabilities divided by total assets) as at December 31, 2021 was
38.2%, representing a decrease of 43.3% from 81.5% as at
December 31, 2020.

As at December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any bank
borrowings and the gearing ratio (total borrowings divided by total
equity) was nil.

The Group actively reviews and manages its capital structure on a
regular basis and strikes a balance between retaining higher returns
for the Group’s owners and the possible high level of borrowing,
while maintaining the advantages and security of a strong capital
position and adjusting the capital structure in response to changes in
economic conditions.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at December 31, 2021, trade and other receivables and
prepayments amounted to approximately RMB486.4 million,
representing a decrease of 32.4% from RMB719.5 million as at
December 31, 2020, which was mainly attributable to the Group’s
enhanced efforts in recovering outstanding trade and other
receivables.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

As at December 31, 2021, trade and other payables amounted to
approximately RMB248.7 million, representing an increase of 10.3%
from RMB225.5 million as at December 31, 2020. This was mainly
attributable to the Group’s optimization in settlement of trade and
other payables.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

The Group operates its business primarily in the PRC. RMB is the
currency used by the Group for valuation and settlement of all
transactions. Any depreciation of RMB would adversely affect the
value of any dividends paid by the Group to shareholders outside the
PRC. Majority of the Group’s cash and cash equivalents is
denominated in RMB. The Group is currently not engaged in hedging
activities that are designed or intended to manage foreign exchange
rate risk. The Group will continue to monitor foreign exchange
activities and make its best efforts to protect the cash value of the
Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at December 31, 2021, the Group did not provide mortgage nor
guarantees for loans.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at December 31, 2021, the Group did not have any material
contingent liabilities and capital commitments.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On September 30, 2021, the Group, Xi'an Lifeng Property, the
existing shareholders of Xi‘an Lifeng Property and Yan Ming (the
ultimate beneficial owner of Xi‘an Lifeng Property, as the guarantor)
entered into an investment agreement, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to acquire 80% of the equity interest in the Xi'an Lifeng
Property by equity transfer from its existing shareholders (the
“Investment”). The total consideration for the Investment is
RMB164.07 million. Upon completion of the Investment, Xi‘an Lifeng
Property will become a subsidiary of the Group. The Investment
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter
14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). For details of the Investment, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated September 30,
2021 and November 12, 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEERWR DT

In October 2021, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in Dingfeng
Property, a well-known property management company located in
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, the PRC, for a total consideration of
approximately RMB24.6 million. The acquired business of Henan
Dingfeng has contributed to total revenue of RMB4,467,000 and net
profit of RMB512,000 of the Group for the Year from the acquisition
date to December 31, 2021.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other major investments,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures held as at December 31, 2021, nor are there any plans for
other significant investments or additions to capital assets as
authorized by the Board.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS
During the Year, the Group did not hold any significant investments.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MAJOR INVESTMENTS

The Group intends to utilize part of the net proceeds raised from the
global offering to acquire property management companies and
professional service companies, and to cooperate with local municipal
investment companies or local property developers through capital
injection or forming joint ventures according to the prospectus of the
Company dated June 29, 2021 (the “Prospectus”). As at the date of
this report, the Group does not have any other material plans to
invest in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 1,857 employees
(December 31, 2020: 1,777). Employee benefit expenses (including
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to RMB191.9 million for the Year
(Year ended December 31, 2020: RMB154.3 million).

The Group has a well-established recruitment and internal promotion
system in place and strive to hire talented employees by offering
competitive wages, bonuses, benefits, systematic training
opportunities and internal promotions. The Group hires employees
through a combination of online recruitment, job fairs, campus
recruitment and referrals. To provide employees with fair competition
opportunities, in addition to external recruitment, selections for
management positions are open to all employees for application.

The Group offers employee with benefits such as housing allowances,
cultural and social events, as well as holiday and birthday gifts. The
Group is also committed to embracing diversity within the Group'’s
organization and treating all of the Group’s employees with equality
and respect in recruitment, training, wellness, as well as professional
and personal development. While maximizing equal career
opportunities for everyone, the Group will continue to promote work-
life balance and create a culture of fun for all employees in the
Group's workplace and pantry.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENSNEEEBERFE

DIRECTORS

Non-executive Director

Mr. SONG Gewei (REZ), aged 53, was appointed as the Chairman
and non-executive Director on January 20, 2021. He has been
primarily responsible for overall business direction and strategic
planning of our Group since its establishment in August 2010. Mr.
Song has about 20 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Song has been the president of the
Kanggiao Group (Henan Boyuan Quanjing Enterprise Consulting Co.,
Ltd., a diversified enterprise group which principally engages in the
PRC real estate, education, agent construction and culture and
tourism businesses) since January 2003 during which he is primarily
responsible for the overall business direction and strategic planning of
the group. Mr. Song graduated from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in the
PRC, where he obtained a master degree of business administration in
June 2003. Mr. Song was awarded the “Most Responsible
Entrepreneur” (fx £ & £ & & % %K) by Henan Housing Industry
Association (Jf] B & B b E ¥ 7 2) in 2020 for combating against
COVID-19. Also, he has been the “Honorary Member of Westlake
University Board of Trustees” (75 4 KX £ 48 2 & =) since 2018. In
addition, he was awarded “Forty Years of Reform and Opening Up,
Great Development in Central Cities — Meritorious Entrepreneur in
Henan Real Estate Industry” (“ 2XE B+ 4 R T AR )1
FEMEITENE D 2S) by Henan Province Real Estate Evaluation
Centre at Henan Housing Industry Association (AIEI& EHIEXE &
A E9 A B b EE BIEE AR 0 ). Moreover, he has been the vice chairman of
Henan Housing Industry Association (i f# & = H & 2 75 €) since
2005. Also, he was named the “Top Ten Leaders in Central Real
Estate” (FRRibE T K484 A Y) awarded by the Economic View (4%
SEERBESRT ) in 2005. Furthermore, he was the “Person of the Year in
Zhenzhou Real Estate Business” (EPJN 5 b E 2 4 8 A ¥48) awarded
by the Management Committee of Zhenzhou Real Estate Transaction
Center (BT EHER SR OLEERZEZEZ)in 2003.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREEERREES

Executive Directors

Mr. DAI Wei (£13), aged 53, was appointed as our executive Director
on January 20, 2021 and president in July 2018. Mr. Dai is primarily
responsible for the overall management and strategy of our Group.
He has over 10 years of experience in property management services.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Dai was the general manager at
investment and development centre and then the general manager at
strategic development centre at Chongging Huayu Group Co., Ltd. (&
EEFEBEAFRAAF]), acompany principally engaged in the PRC real
estate business, from January 2018 to July 2018 during which he was
mainly responsible for investment and development. Also, Mr. Dai
was the president of Chongqing Huayu Savills Property Services Group
Co, Ld (EBEEFE—ATHAMMERBEEERAA), a
company principally engaged in the PRC property management
service, from January 2017 to October 2017 during which he was
mainly responsible for overall strategic operation and management in
property management segment of the company. In addition, he was
the chairman of Easy Life Smart Community Services Group Co., Ltd.
(SRR 2@ RISE BB R A A]) (formerly quoted on the
NEEQ and subsequently delisted on September 4, 2020 (stock code:
837249)), a company principally engaged in the PRC property
management service from April 2014 to July 2016 during which he
was mainly responsible for the overall management and operation
strategy. Furthermore, he was the vice president of Jinghan Real
Estate Group Co., Ltd. (FZ B XS B B R &£ 2 7]), a company
principally engaged in the PRC real estate business, from July 2010 to
April 2014, during which he was mainly responsible for the human
resources management, legal affairs, customer services and property
management. In addition, he was the deputy general manager of
Hiersun Xili industrial Co., Ltd. (Ez B R EZWR D AR 2 7)), a
company principally engaged in the design and sales of jewelry, from
January 2005 to December 2009 during which he was mainly
responsible for the human resources management and operation.

Mr. Dai Wei obtained a master degree in business administration from
Murdoch University in Australia in January 2002.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENENEEEERFE

Mr. KANG Weiguo (FZf7El), aged 45, was appointed as our executive
Director and executive president on January 20, 2021 and has been
our vice executive general manager since November 28, 2018. Mr.
Kang is primarily responsible for the operational management of our
Group. He was our vice general manager from January 2016 to
November 2018, during which he was mainly responsible for the
property service center and early intervention supervision. Also, he
was the assistant to our Group’s general manager from December
2014 to December 2015, during which he was responsible for the
urban project management in the urban area in Zhengzhou.
Furthermore, he was the regional general manager when he joined
our Group in August 2010, and remained in the position until
November 2014, during which he was mainly responsible for projects
such as Jinyu Shangjun (13 = 2F).

Mr. Kang Weiguo graduated from Zhenzhou University (EB/1KE2) in
the PRC in July 1999, where he obtained a post-secondary certificate
of civil engineering. Also, he obtained the qualification of assistant
engineer in building issued by the People’s Government of Guancheng
Hui District, Zhengzhou City (&5 /N T & ¥k Bl & [& A R K ) since
December 2010.

Ms. WANG Na (E£4f), aged 41, was appointed as our executive Director
and joint company secretary on January 20, 2021 and has been our
chief financial officer since December 10, 2017. Ms. Wang is primarily
responsible for the investment and financial management affairs of
our Group and the affairs of our Board. Prior to joining our Group,
she was the chief financial officer at Zhengzhou Kanggiao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (BBMEBFHERZEERE TR ), a
company principally engaged in the PRC real estate business, from
September 2013 to December 2017, during which she was mainly
responsible for the investment and financial affairs of the company.
Also, she was the finance manager at Zhengzhou Xinxing Real Estate
Co., Ltd. (EpMNFTELE 2GR A A]), a company principally engaged in
the PRC real estate business, from 2008 to September 2013, during
which she was mainly responsible for the overall financial
management of the company. Also, she was the vice finance manager
at Henan Century Great Wall Real Estate Co., Ltd. (Ep/Ntt4d R E
¥ B BR 2 7)), a company principally engaged in the PRC real estate
business from December 2005 to November 2018 during which she
was mainly responsible for the financial affairs of the company.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EENEREEERREES

Ms. Wang Na graduated from Zhenzhou University (ZF/N K 22) in the
PRC, where she obtained a bachelor degree of management (major in
accounting) in June 2003. Also, she obtained the qualification of
intermediate accounting issued by the Finance Department of the
People’s Republic of China (2 A R HANELBF B &) since May 2005.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. LI Haitao (Z)8/5), aged 53, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 17, 2021. Dr. Li has extensive teaching
and research experience in theoretical and empirical asset pricing,
term structure of interest rates, hedge funds, and financial
econometrics and he has extensive research experience in the area of
hedging, derivatives and risk management. His Ph.D dissertation at
Yale University deals with risk management issues related to swaps.
Dr. Li's research papers and articles have been published in numerous
financial and economic journals, including the Journal of Finance,the
Journal of Financial Economics, the Review of Finance Studies, the
Journal of Econometrics. In addition, Dr. Li has many years of teaching
experience in the United States. He worked at the University of
Michigan from 2005 to 2013 and was the Jack D. Sparks Whirlpool
Corporation Research Professor in the Finance Department of the
Stephen M. Ross School of Business at the University of Michigan. Dr.
Li is currently appointed as the Dean’s Distinguished Chair Professor
of Finance and Associate Dean of MBA Program at the Cheung Kong
Graduate School of Business since March 2013.

Furthermore, he has been an independent non-executive director and
the chairman of the remuneration committee of China Sliver Group
Limited since December 2012, a company listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 815), which principally engaged in
sliver, gold and precious metals businesses in the PRC. In addition, he
has been an independent director of Shanxi Securities Co., Ltd. (178
BHEWAD BR A A]) since December 2020, a company listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 002500), which principally
engaged in securities businesses in the PRC. Also, he has been an
independent director of Horizon Asset Management Co., Ltd. (FE% &
SERHREMZAR]) since April 2016, which is principally engaged
in securities businesses in the PRC.

Dr. Li undertook the Ph.D program in geophysics at Yale University in
the United States between 1991 and 1992. He received his Ph.D in
finance from Yale University in the United States in 1998.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Dr. FAN Yun (#%#z), aged 66, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on June 17, 2021. Since November 1987, she has
served as a lecturer, associate professor, and was subsequently
promoted to professor at Xi’an Jiaotong University in June 2001. Also,
she has been an independent director of Soarle Technology Co., Ltd.
(VO B %5 B F T B 5 B PR 2 &) from June 2014 to May 2017, a
company listed on the New Over the Counter Market (stock code:
430758), which principally engaged in construction intelligence
businesses in the PRC. From November 2012 to October 2018, she
was an independent director of Autobio Diagnostics Co., Ltd. (B8 %
Bl 49 TRRMDABRZAF]), a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (stock code: 603658), which is principally engaged in
biological technology businesses in the PRC.

Dr. Fan studied in the Department of Industrial Economics at Xi‘an
University of Technology in the PRC (formerly known as Shaanxi
Institute of Mechanical Engineering) and obtained a bachelor degree
of engineering in July 1982. She received his Ph.D in management
science and engineering from Xi'an Jiaotong University in the PRC in
May 2002.
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Mr. WONG Yun Pun (&f)&), aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on June 17, 2021. From August 1989 to April
1992, Mr. Wong worked as an auditor at PricewaterhouseCoopers.
He served at Duty Free Shoppers as a budgeting and planning
manager from April 1992 to August 1998. Mr. Wong served at
Nielsen’s Hong Kong office (formerly known as AC Nielsen (China)), a
leading worldwide research company on consumer market, as senior
finance manager from August 1998 to August 2000. Also, Mr. Wong
served as a finance manager at Icon Medialab Limited from July 2000
to October 2001. From March 2002, Mr. Wong served as associate
director at JAFCO Asia which is the Asian arm of JAFCO, established
in early 1990, one of the leading venture capital firm in the region,
where he was mainly responsible for managing the finance and
administration matters. After which, he served as the chief finance
officer of Natixis Private Equity Asia Limited, which is the private
equity arm of Natixis, a subsidiary of Group BPCE, a French
multinational financial services firm, from November 2006 where he
was mainly responsible for financial matter, tax planning and treasury,
and corporate governance. Mr. Wong then worked at Spring Capital
Asia Limited, a company principally engaged in investments on
cleantech, healthcare and consumer transactions until June 2011. And
from January 2012 to July 2015, Mr. Wong served as the chief
financial officer and executive director respectively of Tsing Capital,
the first General Partner focus on environment and cleantech
investments, where he was mainly responsible for fund, finance and
compliance matters. From August 2015, Mr. Wong served as the chief
financial officer at Lokin Holdings Limited, a thermal management
solution provider based in Hong Kong, for about two years. From
August 2018 to December 2020, Mr. Wong served as a director and
chief financial officer of Tottenham Acquisition | Limited (subsequently
merged with Clene Nanomedicine, Inc., a pharmaceutical company
listed on NASDAQ: CLNN), mainly responsible for listing and financial
matters. Since September 2017, Mr. Wong served as managing
director of Chronos Capital Limited, where he was mainly responsible
for fund raising and financial advisory.

Mr. Wong obtained a professional diploma in Company secretaryship
and Administration in from Hong Kong Polytechnic (& /& T £f3)
(currently known as The Hong Kong Polytechnic University (78 T
K B)) in November 1989. He then obtained a master’s degree in
business electronic commerce from Curtin University in Australia in
2003. Mr. Wong is an associate of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA") since January 1996 and a fellow of
HKICPA since October 2003.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. JIA Yifa (ELA)%), aged 48, has been our chief economist since
June 2016 and is primarily responsible for community development.
He was our financial director from August 2010 to June 2016, during
which he was responsible for the financial affairs of our Group.

Prior to joining our Group from August 2008 to July 2010, Mr. Jia was
the financial director of the predecessor of our Group, Henan Great
Wall Hotel Property Service Co., Ltd.

Mr. Jia Yifa obtained a post-secondary certificate in industrial
accounting from Henan Institute of Finance and Economics (7] 87 4%
B33 ) in the PRC in June 1994,

Mr. LI Zhigang (Z7EH/l), aged 37, has been our vice general manager
of our Group since January 1, 2017. He is primarily responsible for the
human resources, informatization and value-added innovation works,
etc.

Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Li served as the chief officer at the
human resources department from October 2013 to December 2016
and the assistant manager at the operations department from April
2011 to September 2013 at Zhengzhou Kanggiao Real Estate
Development Co., Ltd. (BB /INEERBHERFHEMZBR A F), a
company principally engaged in the PRC real estate business, during
which he was mainly responsible for the operation of the company,
and staff development and human resources works, respectively.

Mr. Li Zhigang obtained a maser degree in business administration
from Jinan University (Z& A2 ) in the PRC in June 20009.
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The Board of the Company is pleased to announce the annual report
for the year ended December 31, 2021 (the “Annual Report”) and
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

GLOBAL OFFERING

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited
liability on October 8, 2020. The shares of the Company were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on July 16, 2021.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Company is an investment holding company. The Group and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in provision of property
management services and related value-added services in the PRC. An
analysis of the Group’s principal business for the year ended
December 31, 2021 is set out in Note 1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 are
set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on
pages 88 to 89 of the Annual Report.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Detailed business review and future development are set out in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” of this Annual
Report from page 13 to 27 and “Chairman’s Statement” in this
Annual Report from pages 8 to 12.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group believes that the risk management practices are important
and uses its best effort to ensure it is sufficient to mitigate the risks
present in our operations and financial position as efficiently and
effectively as possible. Operational risk may arise when the Group has
loss of (i) our customers; and (ii) senior management employed by the
Group which may adversely affect the Group’s operations. In the
event that the Group fails to identify suitable replacements for senior
managements in a timely manner and at reasonable cost, the Group’s
competitiveness may be impaired and performance could be adversely
affected. To retain our customers, we are trying to maintain excellence
and integrated services to our customers in timely manner, so that we
can create extra value to our customers.

An analysis of the Group’s financial risk management (including
interest rate risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk) objectives and policies
are provided in note 3 to the consolidated financial statements. Other
risks faced by the Group are set out in the section headed “Risk
Factors” in the Prospectus.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AND
COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group is committed to conducting its business in an
environmentally conscious manner and minimising the adverse effects
caused by its operations on the environment. The Group continues to
make endeavors in saving energy and reducing unnecessary waste by
adopting various green measures in its workplace. Such measures
include using of energy-efficient light tubes, encouraging use of
recycle papers and both sides of papers for printing and copying and
keeping office temperature at reasonable level. The Group will review
the environmental policy from time to time and will consider
implementing further environmentally friendly measures and practices
in the operation of the Group’s business. The Board paid attention to
the Group’s policies and practices on compliance with all significant
legal and regulatory requirements essential to is business operations.
The Group would seek professional advice from its external legal
advisers and consultants to ensure transactions and business to be
performed by the Group are in compliance with applicable
environmental policies, laws and regulations. During the Year, as far
as the Company is aware, it has complied in all material respects of
the laws or regulations that have a significant impact on the Group’s
business and operation. More disclosures regarding our environmental
policies and performance will set out in the Group’s environmental,
social and governance report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the transaction value of the
Group's five largest customers accounted for 35.6% (2020: 42.2%)
of the Group's total revenue, and the transaction value of the largest
customer accounted for 32.7% (2020: 38.3%) of the Group's total
revenue.

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the transaction value of the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for 58.0% (2020: 35.1%) of
the Group’s total procurement costs, and the transaction value of the
largest supplier accounted for 20.2% (2020: 9.8%) of the Group’s
total procurement costs.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, none of the other
Directors, their respective associates or any shareholder of the
Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the issued shares of the Company) had any interest in any of
the Group's five largest customers or suppliers.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommends the payment of a final dividend of RMB0.03
per share for the year ended December 31, 2021. Such final dividend
is subject to the approval of the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting (the “AGM") to be held on June 8, 2022 and
will be payable on June 29, 2022 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on June 17,
2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company currently has a dividend policy in place. Any future
dividend distribution and payment will be determined by the Board at
its discretion and may be subject to shareholders’ approval. Whether
any future dividends are declared or paid, and the amount of any
such dividends, will depend on a number of factors, including our
earnings, working capital and cash position, financial condition,
capital requirements and such other factors as the Board may deem
important. There is no assurance that any amount of dividend will be
declared or paid in any year.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last four financial years is set out on pages 210 to 222 of this
report. This summary does not form part of the audited consolidated
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had no borrowings.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL
OFFERING

The Company was listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on
July 16, 2021 and the total net proceeds from the Listing, after
deduction of listing expenses, amounted to approximately HK$628.9
million.

The proceeds of the global offering are and will continue to be
applied in accordance with the plans disclosed in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. The following
table sets forth the use of the net proceeds from the Global offering
as at December 31, 2021:
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Amount
Net utilized Expected
Percentage  proceeds as as at timeline
of total  disclosed in December 31, for the use
amount the prospectus 2021 Balance of proceeds
ARER BEZ201F B8R
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Purposes B Bat FBREFE LCBHRALE BE LI
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%) (RE#An) (R&ER) (BE#T)

Pursue selective strategic investment EXEBUEREER 65% 408.8 822 3266 2024F12A 250
and acquisition opportunities to WEEke gt —5 By December 2024
further develop strategic cooperation LEHBAERER
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Invest in our intelligent operational REZREE RN 10% 62.9 5.5 574 2004412 7
and internal management systems B8 2GR IR By December 2024
to improve service quality and EEREPER

customer experience
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Amount
Net utilized Expected
Percentage  proceeds as as at timeline
of total  disclosed in December 31, for the use
amount the prospectus 2021 Balance of proceeds
RRER BE2F BA
HAR REN 128318 PR IEm
Purposes ik AR FBRERE LEHASE B EHEER
(approximate)  (HK$ million)  (HK$ million) ~ (HK$ million)
(%) (R8AT) (A&ER) (A&

Enrich and expand our service and EERARAMARS 15% 943 123 820 2024412 A7 H
product offerings to develop our LERERNER By December 2024
diverse business line oS

Working capital and other general LEERREM—R 10% 62.9 14.2 487 2024F 12 AZA
corporate purposes AREH By December 2024

Total % 100% 628.9 114.2 514.7

As at the date of this report, the remaining proceeds of approximately
HK$514.7 million will continue to be used in accordance with the
purposes set out in the Prospectus and are expected to be used up by
December 2024.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property and equipment of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in Note 15 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company for the
2021 are set out in Note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements.

year ended December 31,

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

There were no equity-linked agreements entered into or outstanding
at year-end by the Company or any of its subsidiaries for the year
ended December 31, 2021.

RARERH B TOAS14TEEBTHM
BREBEEEBRBRERMEARER
WIEFHE 2024512 ARIEATE -

) EJELc:

AEEEZ2021F12 831 HIEFERNMEN
REEBHBEY N R A M ERERMFES -
A& 7

AAREZE 202112 A 31 B IEFE IR ARE
BB HIN G AT B IREM T 24 -

A = 80 p ek

HE2021F12 A31 HILEE » KRARISET

T 25 710 2T ST 4 S A A IR B 40
=

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021
ERREETEEERAT T -_—FFR

39




40

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEEWS

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the Group
for the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out in Note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements and in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity, respectively.

RESERVES AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

As at December 31, 2021, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to shareholders amounted to approximately RMB522
million (2020: Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE PR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the period from the Listing Date to December 31, 2021,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

DONATIONS

For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group made charitable
donations of RMB2,235 (2020: RMB15,000).

DIRECTORS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, the Directors were
as follows:

Non-executive Director

Mr. SONG Gewei (Chairman)

Executive Directors

Mr. DAl Wei

Mr. KANG Weiguo

Ms. WANG Na

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. LI Haitao

Dr. FAN Yun
Mr. WONG Yun Pun
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Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles of Association of the Company
(the "Articles of Association”), the Board shall have the power from
time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a Director
either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the Board. The term
of office of any Director appointed hereunder shall expire at the next
general meeting of the Company and he or she shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting.

Accordingly, Dr. LI Haitao, Dr. FAN Yun and Mr. WONG Yun Pun shall
retire by rotation at the AGM and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

Details of the Directors who are eligible for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM are set out in the circular to be despatched to the
shareholders.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE FROM THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the opinion that they are
independent from the Listing Date up to the date of this report.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are set out on pages 28 to 34 of this report.

DIRECTORS" SERVICE CONTRACTS AND LETTERS
OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the executive Director has entered into a service contract with
the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from the
Listing Date, which may be terminated by either the relevant executive
Director or the Company by giving not less than three months’ notice
in writing to the other party. The appointment of executive Directors
is subject to the retirement and rotation requirements of the Directors
under the Articles of Association.
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Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Pursuant
to their respective letters of appointment, each of the independent
non-executive Directors is entitled to receive a fixed director’s fee and
the non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive any
remuneration. Such appointment is subject to the retirement and re-
election by rotation requirements under the Articles of Association
and the applicable Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group, other than contracts
expiring within one year or terminable by the employer without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

REMUNERATION POLICY

As at December 31, 2021, the Group had a total of 1,857 employees.
The Group provides regular training to all operating departments,
including new employee orientation, technical training, professional
and management training, team building and communication
training. The Group also offers competitive remuneration packages,
including salaries, bonuses and other benefits. In general, the Group
determines the salaries of employees based on the qualifications,
experience, position and seniority of each employee. The
Remuneration Committee was established to review the Group’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of directors and senior
management in the light of the Group’s operating results, the
individual performance of the directors and senior management and
comparable market practices. The remuneration received by the
directors and senior management includes fees, salaries, bonuses,
allowances and benefits in kind and contributions to pension plans in
accordance with the provisions of applicable laws, rules and
regulations.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021 are
set out in notes 36 and 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
None of the Directors waived his/her emoluments or has agreed to
waive his/her emoluments for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Details of the Company’s retirement and employee benefit plans are
set out in Note 2.18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES" INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at December 31, 2021, the interests and short positions of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required
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to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to  AYFZXESFRI|([12%# 7R ) BTS2 AN T) L EERS
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed  FrEy#Ezs KA AT -
Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:
Interest in the Company: YNNI R 7 e
Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Nature of interest shares held ™ shareholding
EEnE ERME FEROHEE O REMOB DL
Mr. SONG Gewei Founder of a discretionary trust, 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%

("Mr. Song")@ Interest in controlled corporation
REZFE(TREE]D® REEFEEINA - I EAEER
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Notes:
Q) (L) — long position.

(2) The entire share capital of Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo Holdings Limited
(“Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI”) is wholly owned by Hung Fai Property
Limited. Eternity Trust is a discretionary trust established on November 10,
2020 between Mr. Song (as trustee) for the benefit of Kanggiao Taichen
Holdings Limited (“Kanggiao Taichen BVI”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability and wholly owned by Mr. Song, and
members of his family, and Trident Trust Company (South Dakota) Inc.
(“Trident Trust”) (acting as trustee) to establish a discretionary trust, and Mr.
Song (as the founder of Eternity Trust) and Trident Trust are deemed to be
interested in the shares held by Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI by virtue of the
SFO.

Interests in shares of associated corporations:

m L—tFa-

2 BB EEERERAR(EBHAEEBVIDE
2 EBA% 2 F Hung Fai Property Limited 2 B # A °
Eternity Trust /R %5 4 (1E A Z 58 A ) 720204
MAI0BE REBRREERAR AT ([RERRE
BVI]) (REBE RS TMAIMAER AR H
REEDERE) RE KKK B #7258 Trident
Trust Company (South Dakota) Inc. ([ Trident
Trust]) (FERZFEATTE) RUMDRIEFT - TR
%4 (YE & Eternity Trust 898132 A ) & Trident Trust
IRIR B 5 R B E R 0118 AR RIS 1 £ & BVIFT
FENRMHPHEEER -

FAAEEE B B R e -

Approximate

Name of Name of Number of  percentage of

Director Associated Corporation Nature of interest shares held® shareholding

Y] HE LR EB ERtE FEROBEY RESIBEIL

Mr. Song Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI Founder of a discretionary trust, 100 (L) 100%
Interest in controlled corporation

REHE AR 4R BVI PREFEIA - XEEEER

Notes: M5E

(1) (L) — long position.

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31, 2021, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had any interests or
short positions in any of the shares, underlying shares or debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which have been notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including the interests and short positions which
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO or which were required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to
the Model Code.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS AND = 2 % 28 7 B& 5 % 48 8 % 15
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND HRE2S AR

UNDERLYING SHARES

R2021E 128318 U TALE(BESFHAR
AR EITIA BRRIN) AR R 5 s AR AR
MPEERBEILFRBAERAEXVEE2 &3
DEAERMANT RERERE - ERHRAR
REREES NAEKRAE 36 HRAETENE

As at December 31, 2021, the following persons (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) had interest or short position in
Shares of the Company or underlying Shares which fell to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provision of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or as recorded in the register

required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the  EEAKIEZRAR
SFO:
Approximate
Number of percentage of

Name of Shareholder

Status and Nature of Interest

shares held™ shareholding

REREH SR RERMEE FrERMHEE ™ RESNB DL

Mr. Song®@ Discretionary trust, Interest in 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%
controlled corporation

REED EREEFTEINA - I EAERER

Hung Fai Property Limited® Interest in controlled corporation 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%
R EE R

Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI® Beneficial owner 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%

FRAG 1% 40 BVI@ BREAA

Trident Trust®@ Trustee 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%
ZFEA

Ms. Dong Yanxia® Spouse’s Interest 498,750,000 (L) 71.25%

Dong Yanxia Z £ ® [y 2
Notes: MIaE -
(1) (L) — long positions. Mm LW—ifr-

B 18 1 A2 VE BVI ) 2 B AR 2 FA Hung Fai Property
Limited 2 & ¥ A ° Eternity Trust B R £ (1E A
ZEEA) R 2020411 10 B AEBZEREBVI(R
RBHFREEMANERARSLHRELEES
AR ) REREK B KT 8 Trident Trust (1F

(2)  The entire share capital of Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI is wholly owned by (2)
Hung Fai Property Limited. Eternity Trust is a discretionary trust established
on November 10, 2020 between Mr. Song (as trustee) for the benefit of
Kanggiao Taichen BVI, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands
with limited liability and wholly owned by Mr. Song, and members of his
family, and Trident Trust (acting as trustee) to establish a discretionary trust, BREATS)RINDEET MALLE(EA
and Mr. Song (as the founder of Eternity Trust) and Trident Trust are deemed Eternity Trust #9837 A ) K Trident Trust AR 4% 38 %
to be interested in the shares held by Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI by virtue REEGOIR RN ERUAEBVIFFEE /R
of the SFO. A

Dong YanxiaZ = AR L EMERE - B REE
HFREBEED - RSN REEHBERNRD
PREARER

(3) Ms. Dong Yanxia is the spouse of Mr. Song and is therefore deemed to be (3)
interested in the shares in which Mr. Song is interested by virtue of the SFO.
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2021, none of the

directors or chief executive of the Company is aware of any person or

Save as disclosed above, as at December 31,

the Company had not been notified by any person (other than a
Director or chief executive of the Company) who has an interest in
the shares or underlying shares of the Company which would be
required to be disclosed to the Company and the Stock Exchange
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
interests or short positions which are required to be recorded in the
register kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKINGS

To ensure that competition does not develop between our Group and
our Controlling Shareholders, each of our Controlling Shareholders
(collectively, the “Covenantors” and each, a “Covenantor”) entered
into a deed of non-competition undertakings (the “Deed of Non-
competition”) in favor of our Company for ourselves and as trustee
for the benefit of each of our subsidiaries on June 17, 2021.

For details of the non-competition undertakings, please refer to the
section headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the

Prospectus.

Based on the information and confirmation provided by the
Covenantors, the independent non-executive Directors have reviewed
the implementation of the non-competition undertakings for the year
ended December 31, 2021 and are satisfied that the Covenantors are
in compliance with the non-competition undertakings.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into various transactions which constituted
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. For details of the such continuing connected transactions,
please refer to the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions — (D) Continuing Connected Transactions subject to
Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular and Independent
Shareholders’ Approval Requirements” in the Prospectus, the section
headed “Events after the Balance Sheet Date” of this report, and the
continuing connected transaction announcement of the Company
dated April 21, 2022 (the “CCT Announcement”). The transaction
amount of the continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the year ended December 31, 2021 is set out below:
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AEEBHETEBERS  ZERXHEH ETH
BIZE UABBE THNHERERS - @RZSEHE
BREXINFERL2ABRER[FERE
RX5—D)BEETHRR FEEM RS- A
BB REMERTENFERERS ] —
B AREHEHEKSE] —OEREER
KABIBHIA2022F4 21 BHEBER S
NRE(THEBESHANE]) - AEEREHE
2021F N AN BLEFENFEREI SN
SEREFIMOT

Transaction
Amount Annual Cap for
for the Year Ended the Year Ended
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2021

Connected Person Nature of Transaction (RMB’000) (RMB,000)
BEAL REME REZ20215F REZE20215F
12A31HLEFEN 12A31BLEFERN
REEHE FELR
(AR®T ) (ARHFT)
1. Beijing Tongdao Group®ete2 Provision of pre-delivery property 15,802 17,775
management services
bR EEEE =D RUELATEIY R E IR RS
2. Beijing Tongdao Group Provision of value-added services 99,321 115,732
It rRREEE R IEE RS
3. Beijing Tongdao Group Provision of sales agency services 132,095 133,386
ItREEEE RHIHERIBRY
4.  Beijing Tongdao Group Payment of refundable deposits 68,136 70,000
in connection with the sales (Note 3) (i3 3)

agency services (maximum

daily balance)Nete3

It RFEEEE SATHERIBRIGE AR E

RS (B HRSE) M)

Notes:

1. Beijing Tongdao Shenghe Investment Co., Ltd. (L REEEAEHEEBR A A])
("Beijing Tongdao”), a company established in the PRC with limited liability
which is beneficially-wholly owned by Mr. Song, the ultimate Controlling
Shareholder of the Company, and therefore a connected person of the
Company.

2. Beijing Tongdao, its subsidiaries and associates is defined as Beijing Tongdao
Group.

3. Such payment constituted a breach of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and
the Company has taken remedial measures including entering into the
relevant supplemental agreement on April 21, 2022 and setting annual caps
for the maximum daily balance of the refundable deposits for the three years
ending December 31, 2023 (of which the proposed annual cap for the Year
shall be RMB70,000,000), subject to the independent Shareholders’
approval. For further details, please refer to the section headed “Events after
the Balance Sheet Date” of this report and the CCT Announcement.

GEX

1. ERFABEAKRAERAR(IERFAB]) - N
B B R AR - Il R e (KR B A
BER)2ERGES  BALARBEAL -

2. dbRRE - HNBARREEARTEERILRR

&

3. TR FERER T ETRAE 4AZNRE - M
AR BB R BIEgE - BER20229F4 A 21
AT AR 7o tpas - WHEIZ 2023612 A 31
A=FHENATREREFSNESHESHELT
FELIR(EFAFENRZFELRAARE
70,000,000) * I /A £ 58 37 AR AL o 3 — F5F
BR2HAHRE [HERK%REE] —HMEESE
RIBEBERSHNE -
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Pre-delivery Property Management Services
Framework Agreement

As disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions — (D) Continuing Connected Transactions subject
to Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular and
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements — 1.
Provision of Pre-delivery Property Management Services to
Beijing Tongdao and its Associates” in the Prospectus, the
Company (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) entered
into a framework agreement (the “Pre-delivery Property
Management Services Framework Agreement”) with Beijing
Tongdao (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries and
associates) on June 17, 2021, in relation to the provision of
basic property management services and vacant property
maintenance services (for maintenance of vacant properties
which have not been sold) for its and its associates’ property
projects, including but not limited to cleaning, gardening, repair
and maintenance of common area and shared facilities
(collectively, the "Pre-delivery Property Management Services”),
for a term from June 17, 2021 to December 31, 2023, renewable by
mutual agreement of the parties, subject to compliance with all
relevant requirements under the Listing Rules and other applicable
laws and regulations. The annual caps of the transactions
contemplated under the Pre-delivery Property Management Services
Framework Agreement for the three years ending December 31,
2023 are RMB17,775,000, RMB20,441,000 and RMB23,712,000,
respectively.

As disclosed above, Beijing Tongdao is a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Pre-delivery Property Management Services Framework
Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions of the
Company.
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
proposed annual caps in respect of the Pre-delivery Property
Management Services under the Pre-delivery Property
Management Services Framework Agreement for the three
years ending December 31, 2023 exceeded 5%, the transactions
contemplated thereunder will be subject to the reporting,
annual review, announcement, circular and the independent
shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

Value-added Services Master Framework
Agreement

As disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions — (D) Continuing Connected Transactions subject
to Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular and
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements — 2.
Provision of Value-added Services to Beijing Tongdao and its
Associates” in the Prospectus, the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries) entered into a framework agreement
(the “Value-added Services Master Framework Agreement”)
with Beijing Tongdao (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries
and associates) on June 17, 2021, in relation to the provision of
a variety of value-added services to the residential property
projects of Beijing Tongdao and its associates, including
construction site supervision and maintenance services and pre-
delivery services (without basic property management services,
including but not limited to cleaning, gardening, repair and
maintenance of common area and shared facilities) (the “Value-
added Services”), for a term from June 17, 2021 to December
31, 2023, renewable by mutual agreement of the parties, subject
to compliance with all relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. The annual cap
of the transactions contemplated under the Value-added Services
Master Framework Agreement for the three years ending
December 31, 2023 is RMB115,732,000, RMB179,137,000 and
RMB238,947,000, respectively.
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As disclosed above, Beijing Tongdao is a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Value-added Services Master Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
proposed annual caps in respect of the Value-added Services
under the Value-added Services Master Framework Agreement
for the three years ending December 31, 2023 exceeded 5%,
the transactions contemplated thereunder will be subject to the
reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement

As disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions — (D) Continuing Connected Transactions subject
to Reporting, Annual Review, Announcement, Circular and
Independent Shareholders’ Approval Requirements — 3.
Provision of Sales Agency Services to Beijing Tongdao and its
Associates” in the Prospectus, the Company (for itself and on
behalf of its subsidiaries), entered into a sales agency services
framework agreement with Beijing Tongdao (for itself and on
behalf of its associates), pursuant to which our Company agreed
to provide sales agency services for first-hand properties and
unsold parking spaces, including but not limited to consulting
services and sales events organization services (the “Sales
Agency Services”), on an exclusive and sole basis for some of
the property projects developed by Beijing Tongdao and its
associates (the “Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement”),
for a term from June 17, 2021 to December 31, 2023,
renewable by mutual agreement of the parties, subject to
compliance with all relevant requirements under the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws and regulations. The annual cap
of the transactions contemplated under the Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement for the three years ending
December 31, 2023 is RMB133,386,000, RMB 193,809,000 and
RMB277,281,000, respectively.

As disclosed above, Beijing Tongdao is a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under
the Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement constitute
continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the
proposed annual caps in respect of the Sales Agency Services
under the Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement for the
2023 exceeded 5%, the
transactions contemplated thereunder will be subject to the

three years ending December 31,

reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and the
independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

On April 21, 2022, the Company and Beijing Tongdao entered into
the a supplemental agreement to the Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement, pursuant to which members of the Group
shall pay to members of the Beijing Tongdao Group the refundable
deposits in connection with the Sales Agency Services contemplated
under the Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement. For details,
please refer to the section headed “Event after the Balance Sheet
Date” of this report and the announcement of the Company dated
April 21, 2022.

Confirmation from the independent non-executive
directors

During the reporting period, save for the payment of refundable
deposits in connection with the Sales Agency Services under the Sales
Agency Services Framework Agreement as disclosed above and under
the section headed “Events after the Balance Sheet Date” of this
report, the independent non-executive directors have reviewed the
above non-exempt continuing connected transactions and confirmed
that the transactions have:

(i)  been entered into in the usual and ordinary course of business
of the Group;

(i) been conducted based on normal or better commercial terms;
or been entered into based on the terms no less favorable than
those available from or provided by independent third parties;
and

(i) been carried out according to the agreements for related
transactions with terms that are fair and reasonable and in line
with the interests of the shareholders as a whole.
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Confirmation from the auditor

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised), Assurance
Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information and with reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised),
Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued his qualified letter
containing his findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group from page 47 to 51 of
the Annual Report in accordance with Main Board Listing Rule
14A.56. The auditor concluded that except for the payments of the
historical refundable deposits in connection with the sales agency
services, which were not approved by the board of the directors, not
covered by any written agreement between the Group and Beijing
Tongdao Group, and for which no pricing policy and annual cap were
set when the payments were made,

a.  nothing has come to his attention that causes him to believe
that the disclosed continuing connected transactions have not
been approved by the Company’s board of directors.

b.  for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by
the Group, nothing has come to his attention that causes him
to believe that the transactions were not, in all material respects,
in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

c.  nothing has come to his attention that causes him to believe
that the transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions set out in the attached list of continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to his attention that
causes him to believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have exceeded the annual cap as set by the
Company.

A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by the Company to
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group are set out in note
32 to the consolidated financial statements. Certain items in note 32
to the consolidated financial statements also constitute continuing
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, details
of which have been disclosed above.

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Events after the Balance
Sheet Date” in this report, the Company has complied with applicable
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules in
respect of connected transactions and continuing connected
transactions.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for the pre-emptive rights under the Articles of
Association and the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any tax relief to which shareholders are
entitled by virtue of their shareholdings in the Company.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN MATERIAL
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” above and in this report, none of the directors is directly
or indirectly materially interested in any transaction, arrangement or
contract of significance to the business of the Group and entered into
by the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries during
the year ended December 31, 2021 and up to the date of this report.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN
MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected
Transactions” of this report, during the year ended December 31,
2021, none of the Controlling Shareholders or their subsidiaries had a
material interest, directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of material importance to the business of the Group and
entered into by the Company, any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries during the year ended December 31, 2021 and up to the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS" RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this report, at no time during the year
ended December 31, 2021 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, and no Director or any of their
spouses or their minor children has been granted any right to
subscribe for equity or debt securities of the Company or any other
body corporate, or has exercised any such right.

MATERIAL LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company was not
involved in any material legal proceedings or arbitrations. To the best
knowledge of the Directors, there is no material legal proceeding or
claim which is pending or threatening against the Company.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Company did not
enter into or have any contracts for the management and
administration of all or any substantial part of the business.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS

Save as disclosed in this report, none of the Directors or their
associates had any interest in any business which directly or indirectly
compete or may compete with the businesses of our Group during
the year ended December 31, 2021.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

In accordance with the Articles of Association and applicable law, the
Company has made appropriate insurance arrangements for all costs,
fees, losses, expenses and liabilities incurred by any Director or officer
in the performance and discharge of his or her duties and
responsibilities. As at December 31, 2021 and as at the date of this
report, the relevant provisions of the Articles of Association and such
Directors’ and officers’ liability insurance are in force.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

On September 30, 2021, the Group, Xi‘an Lifeng Property, the
existing shareholders of Xi‘an Lifeng Property and Yan Ming (the
ultimate beneficial owner of Xi'an Lifeng Property, as the guarantor)
entered into an investment agreement, pursuant to which the Group
agreed to acquire 80% of the equity interest in the Xi‘an Lifeng
Property by equity transfer from its existing shareholders (the
“Investment”). The total consideration for the Investment is
RMB164.07 million. Upon completion of the Investment, Xi‘an Lifeng
Property will become a subsidiary of the Group. The Investment
constituted a discloseable transaction of the Company under Chapter
14 of the Listing Rules. For details of the Investment, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated September 30, 2021 and
November 12, 2021.

In October 2021, the Group acquired 51% equity interest in Dingfeng
Property, a well-known property management company located in
Zhengzhou City, Henan Province, the PRC, for a total consideration of
approximately RMB24.6 million. The acquired business of Dingfeng
Property has contributed to total revenue of RMB4,467,000 and net
profit of RMB512,000 of the Group for the year ended December 31,
2021 from the acquisition date to December 31, 2021.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other major investments,
material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures held as at December 31, 2021, nor are there any plans for
other significant investments or additions to capital assets as
authorized by the Board.
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EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

Details of the significant events after the balance sheet date are set
out in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

As disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements of
this report and the continuing connected transaction announcement
of the Company dated April 21, 2022, the Group and certain
subsidiaries of Beijing Tongdao entered into several sales agency
services agreements, pursuant to which the Group paid the historical
refundable deposits in an aggregate amount of RMB134,969,000
subsequent to the Year. Further, during the Year, the Group has paid
the historical refundable deposits in an aggregate amount of
RMB85,836,000. As of April 21, 2022, the outstanding balance of the
historical refundable deposits amounts to RMB180,777,000. As one
or more of the applicable percentage ratios in respect of the proposed
annual cap of the Sales Agency Services under the Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement during the three years ended
December 31, 2023 exceeded 5%, the transactions contemplated
under it were subject to the reporting, annual review, announcement,
circular and independent shareholders’” approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Board wishes to clarify that the abovementioned breach of the
Listing Rules was due to an inadvertent oversight. Since the Group
has been involved in a number of continuing connected transactions
with the Beijing Tongdao Group (including those contemplated under
the Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement), the Company was
mistaken of the nature and classification of the Refundable Deposits.
The Company regrets such unintentional breach of the Listing Rules
and reiterates its belief that continuing compliance with the Listing
Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements is of utmost
importance.

On April 21, 2022, the Company and Beijing Tongdao entered into
the a supplemental sales agency services framework agreement (the
“Supplemental Agreement”), pursuant to which members of the
Group shall pay to members of the Beijing Tongdao Group the
refundable deposits in connection with the Sales Agency Services
contemplated under the Sales Agency Services Framework
Agreement. An ordinary resolution will be proposed at the AGM for
the independent Shareholders to consider and, if thought fit, approve
the entering into of the Supplemental Agreement, the transactions
contemplated thereunder and the ratification of the payment of the
historical refundable deposits.
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As at the date of this report, the aforementioned refundable deposits
in the amount of RMB180,777,000 had all been refunded to the
Group.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this
report, at least 25% (the minimum public float required by the Stock
Exchange and the Listing Rules) of the entire issued share capital of
the Company is held by the public.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee reviews with the Board the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discusses with the
management the Group’s internal controls and financial reporting
matters. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the annual
results of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2021.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. PricewaterhouseCoopers shall retire from
office at the forthcoming AGM and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-appointment.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORT

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group has complied
with the “Comply or Explain” provisions of the Environmental, Social
and Governance Reporting Guidelines as set out in Appendix 27 of
the Listing Rules. Matters relating to the environmental, social and
governance (“ESG") of the Group will be set out in a separate ESG
report to be published by the Company in due course and will be
available on the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.

By Order of the Board
Chairman
Mr. SONG Gewei

Hong Kong, April 29, 2022
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The Group is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of its Shareholders and enhance
its value and accountability. The Company has adopted the Corporate
Governance Code (“Corporate Governance Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules as its governance code. Save as
disclosed in this report, for the period from the Listing Date to
December 31, 2021 (the “Relevant Period”), the Company has always
complied with all the applicable code provisions set out in the
Corporate Governance Code. The Group will continue to review and
monitor its corporate governance practices in order to ensure the
compliance with the Corporate Governance Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations which have a significant impact to the
Group, which primarily include the Company Law of the PRC, the Civil
Code of the PRC, the Labor Law of the PRC, the Labor Contract Law
of the PRC, the Bidding Law of the PRC, the Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC, the Production Safety Law of the PRC, the Fire
Control Law of the PRC and the Land Administration Law of the PRC
as well as the Provisions on Property Management and the
Regulations on Safety Supervision of Special Equipment promulgated
by the State Council of the PRC.

For the Year, the Group had complied with the relevant laws and
regulations in all material aspects and did not breach or violate any
laws and regulations applicable to the Company which would have a
material adverse impact on the business operation or financial
conditions of the Group.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is responsible for the overall leadership of the Group,
oversees the Group's strategic decisions and monitors business and
performance. The Board has delegated the authority and responsibility
for day-to-day management and operation of the Group to the senior
management of the Group. To oversee particular aspects of the
Company's affairs, the Board has established three Board committees,
including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) and the Nomination Committee (the
“Nomination Committee”) (collectively, the “Board Committees”).
The Board has delegated to the Board Committees responsibilities as
set out in their respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall ensure that they carry out their duties in good faith,
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and its Shareholders at all times.
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The Company has arranged appropriate insurance coverage in respect
of liability arising from legal action against its Directors, and will
conduct annual review on such insurance coverage.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises one non-
executive Director, three executive Directors and three independent
non-executive Directors as detailed below:

Executive Directors:

Mr. DAI Wei
Mr. KANG Weiguo
Ms. WANG Na

Non-executive Director:
Mr. SONG Gewei
Independent non-executive Directors:

Dr. LI Haitao
Dr. FAN Yun
Mr. WONG Yun Pun

The biographies of the Directors are set out in section headed
“Directors and Senior Management” in this report.

In the Relevant Period, the Board has met the requirements of Rules
3.10(1) and 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of
at least three independent non-executive Directors with at least one
independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has also complied with Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules,
which relates to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors representing at least one-third of the Board.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has confirmed his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and the
Company considers each of them to be independent.
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Save as disclosed in the biographies of the Directors as set out in the
section headed “Directors and Senior Management” of this report,
none of the Directors has any personal relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material/relevant relationship) with
any other Directors or any chief executive.

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, have
brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience, knowledge,
and expertise to the Board for its efficient and effective functioning.
Independent non-executive Directors are invited to serve on the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.

As regards to the provisions under the Corporate Governance Code
requiring directors to disclose the number and nature of offices held
in public companies or organizations and other significant
commitments as well as their identity and the time involved to the
issuer, the Directors have agreed to disclose their commitments to the
Company in a timely manner.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”) to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain
high standards of corporate governance. The Board Diversity Policy
sets out the criteria for the selection of Board candidates, including
but not limited to gender, skills, age, professional experience,
knowledge, cultural and educational background, ethnicity and length
of service to achieve Board diversity, and the final decision on
appointment will be based on the value that the selected candidates
will bring to the Board. In accordance with the current composition of
the Board, our Board has a balance of knowledge, skills and
experience in overall management and strategy development,
economics, accounting and financial management and corporate
governance.

The Board has appointed our Nomination Committee to be
responsible for compliance with the Code on Board Diversity under
the Corporate Governance Code. Our Nomination Committee will
review the Board's diversity policy and compliance with the relevant
Corporate Governance Code from time to time (at least once a year)
to ensure its ongoing effectiveness.
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INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

All newly appointed Directors would be provided with necessary
induction and information to ensure that they have a proper
understanding of the Company’s operations and businesses as well as
their responsibilities under relevant statutes, laws, rules, and
regulations. The Company also arranges regular seminars to provide
Directors with updates on latest development and changes in the
Listing Rules and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements
from time to time. The Directors are also provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position, and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties.

The Company encourages continuous professional development
training for all the Directors to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills. The joint company secretaries of the Company update and
provide the Directors with written training materials in relation to their
roles, functions, and duties from time to time.

AL 1/‘-"-\\ =+
1E E/ﬁ#ﬁ%

ABMRFEEXER

FE R ENE SRR HE S ZHABIEI R
BE - AR EEI AR R] Y2 I A A S H
RARRER  &B - BRI RIGH THEENE
TRBEERENER - ARABTERARESFL
e e - AR RRFREME LR R ED
HREEMNEERERNERNEHNEHE
o BEEMERRIEHRBBEARTRR AR
EARMEFRER  FEFE2BLEEES
BT SMBE

ARBHBERETETHETEERE - #it
BRNMEEAE LI - ARBBE AR
ETHEFNRREHEBEFAR  BEMBER
H)E IR Y o

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021
ERREETEEERAT T -_—FFR

61




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
ERERRE

Based on the information provided by the Directors, a summary of the RIEEFIZHMNER - REZE2021F12 A 31
trainings received by the Directors during the period ended December B |FEEHIR - &S IEIIRLR DT -
31, 2021 is as follows:

Nature of
continuous
professional
development

Name of Director courses
BEEX

EEnE BRAEBME

Mr. SONG Gewei

REZREE A-C-D

Mr. DAI Wei

BEtE A~C-D

Mr. KANG Weiguo

FRRTESE A A-C-D

Ms. WANG Na

FHLt A~C-D

Dr. LI Haitao

FEBEL A-~C-D

Dr. FAN Yun

B#isigt A-C-D

Mr. WONG Yun Pun

BEBELE A~C-D

Notes: B

A:  Attending seminar and/or conference and/or forum and/or briefing A R gk SEE R SRR NERE

B: Speaking at seminar and/or conference and/or forum B: R E R/ ReE Rk ma R E

C: Participating in training provided by legal firm, training related to the  C: 20T ENE | - BRRERE B
business of the Company

D:  Reading materials on various issues, including corporate governance, director ~ D:  BIEZEERIZEEANME - BEBECEE S -
responsibilities, listing rules and other relevant laws EEWME - ERRREAMIERDED
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APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing from
the Listing Date, which may be terminated by either the relevant
executive Director or the Company by providing not less than three
months’ notice in writing to the other party. The appointment of
executive Directors is subject to the retirement and rotation
requirements of the Directors under the Articles of Association.

Each of the non-executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors has entered into a letter of appointment with the Company
for a term of three years commencing from the Listing Date. Pursuant
to their respective letters of appointment, each of the independent
non-executive Directors is entitled to receive remuneration and the
non-executive Directors are not entitled to receive an annual salary.
Such appointment is subject to the retirement by rotation
requirements under the Articles of Association and the applicable
Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has entered into any
service contract with any member of the Group, other than contracts
expiring within one year or determinable by the employer without
payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

In accordance with the Articles of Association, one-third of the then
number of Directors (or, if the number of Directors is not a multiple of
three (3), the number nearest to, but not less than one-third of, the
number of Directors) shall retire by rotation at each annual general
meeting and each Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years at the annual general meeting.
Directors appointed by the Board to fill casual vacancies on the Board
or as new Directors shall be subject to re-election by shareholders at
the next general meeting following their appointment.

The procedures and processes for the appointment, re-election and
dismissal of Directors are set out in the Articles of Association. The
Nomination Committee is responsible for reviewing the composition
of the Board and making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, re-election and succession planning of Directors.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The Company adopts the practice of holding Board meetings
regularly, at least four times a year, and at approximately quarterly
intervals. Notices of no less than fourteen days are given for all regular
Board meetings to provide all Directors with an opportunity to attend
and include matters in the agenda for a regular meeting.

For other Board meetings and Board Committee meetings, reasonable
notice is generally given by the Company. The agenda and
accompanying Board papers are dispatched at least three days before
the Board meetings or Board Committee meetings to ensure that the
Directors have sufficient time to review the papers and be adequately
prepared for the meetings. When Directors or committee members
are unable to attend a meeting, they will be advised of the matters to
be discussed and given an opportunity to make their views known to
the Chairman prior to the meeting. Minutes of meetings shall be kept
by the joint company secretaries with copies circulated to all Directors
for information and records.

Minutes of the Board meetings and Board Committee meetings are
recorded in sufficient detail on the matters considered by the Board
and the Board Committees and the decisions reached, including any
concerns raised by the Directors. Draft minutes of each Board meeting
and Board Committee meeting are/will be sent to the Directors for
comments within a reasonable time after the date on which the
meeting is held. The minutes of the Board meetings are open for
inspection by all Directors.
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TRERRS

During the Relevant Period, five Board meetings were held and no A iEHIE A  ES @Y RITANEZS S
general meeting was convened. The attendance of individual Directors 3% ' WEABFAKRE RS - Al EEHFEES
at Board meetings is set out in the following table: SHENBRENTE

Number of

board meetings
attended/number of
board meetings

Director to be attended
EHEESERY

BE BHEEEELRH

Mr. SONG Gewei

RELFE 5/5

Mr. DAl Wei

CIR b 5/5

Mr. KANG Weiguo

BREEEE 5/5

Ms. WANG Na

EMLt 5/5

Dr. LI Haitao

FEEEL 5/5

Dr. FAN Yun

Bzt 5/5

Mr. WONG Yun Pun

BERERE 5/5

DIRECTORS” MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES EEHETEAER HHEASTR]

TRANSACTION

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code of AAFDEFMNEEFAWEAHESHETTEESL
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry S #77 A H] - KA EEE/EHAEEH
has been made to all the Directors and each of the Directors has & - REE2HER  HERNEHEHEN—8EE
confirmed that he/she has complied with the required standards as  SPIEXE<FRIPTEIAEER T o

set out in the Model Code during the Relevant Period.
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DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters of the
Company, including: approval and monitoring of all policy matters,
overall strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management
systems, material transactions (in particular those that may involve
conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of Directors,
and other significant financial and operational matters. Directors
could have recourse to seek independent professional advice in
performing their duties at the Company’s expense. Directors are
encouraged to access and to consult with the Company’s senior
management independently.

The daily management, administration, and operation of the Group
are delegated to the senior management. The delegated functions
and responsibilities are periodically reviewed by the Board. Approval
has to be obtained from the Board prior to any significant transactions
entered into by the management.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate governance
duties including:

a.  to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board;

b.  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

c.  to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

d.  to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct applicable
to employees and Directors; and

e. to review the Company’s compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code and the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has three principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are
available on the website of the Company and that of the Stock
Exchange.

Audit Committee

The Board has established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) comprising one non-executive Director, Mr. SONG
Gewei, and two independent non-executive Directors, Dr. FAN Yun
and Mr. WONG Yun Pun, with Mr. WONG Yun Pun as the chairman
of the Audit Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

The primary duties of the audit committee are to review the
Company’s financial information, and oversee the Company’s
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
procedures.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Audit Committee
held two meetings to deliberate and consider:

1. to review the results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the
three years from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2020; and

2. toreview the interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the period ended June 30, 2021.

The Audit Committee has also evaluated the effectiveness of the
Company'’s risk management and internal control measures and the
Company’s internal audit function.
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The following table sets out details of the attendance of each Audit
Committee member at meetings during the year ended December 31,
2021:

TREIREE2021F12 A31 B IEFEHME
EERZECK BN ETEZNFG

Number of
board meetings Number of
should be meetings

Director attended attended
5= EHEERRHE HEESBERE
Mr. WONG Yun Pun 2 2
HHALAE
Mr. SONG Gewei 2 2
REZRAE
Dr. FAN Yun 2 2
Bz L
Remuneration Committee FMEES

The Board has established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) comprising Dr. LI Haitao, Dr. FAN Yun
and Ms. WANG Na, with Dr. LI Haitao as the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include:

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish and
review the policy and structure for the remuneration of Directors and
senior management and to establish a formal and transparent
procedure for the formulation of such remuneration policy, and to
make recommendations to the Directors in this regard, to determine
the specific terms of remuneration packages for each Executive
Director and senior management and to approve performance-based
remuneration with reference to the Company’s targets and objectives
as adjusted by resolutions of the Directors from time to time.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Remuneration
Committee held one meeting to deliberate and consider the
remuneration of the relevant independent non-executive Directors.
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The following table sets out details of the attendance of each
Remuneration Committee member at meetings during the year ended
December 31, 2021:

AL 1/‘-"-\\ =+
1E E/ﬁ#ﬁ%

TREINREEZ2021F 12 A3 BILFESEH
MEEENELEEENFE

Number of
board meetings Number of

should be meetings
Director attended attended
5= EHEERIH HESERE
Dr. LI Haitao 1 1
FEEELT
Dr. FAN Yun 1 1
BiniE L+
Ms. WANG Na 1 1
Fifzz+
Nomination Committee BEZEE

The Board has established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) comprising Mr. SONG Gewei, Dr. FAN Yun and Dr. LI
Haitao, with Mr. SONG Gewei as the chairman of the Nomination
Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are to regularly review
the structure, size and composition of the Board, make
recommendations to the Board on proposed changes to the
composition of the Board, identify, select or make recommendations
to the Board on the nomination of Directors, ensure diversity of the
Board, assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment, reappointment and dismissal of Directors
and succession planning for Directors.
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The Nominating Committee will evaluate candidates or incumbents
based on criteria such as credibility, industry achievements and
experience, availability of time and representation of relevant sector
interests, diversity on all aspects of the Board and tenure of service.
The written terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
available on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

During the year ended December 31, 2021, the Nomination
Committee held one meeting to deliberate and consider the
remuneration of the structure, composition, size and diversity of the
Board of Directors.

The following table sets out details of the attendance of each
Nomination Committee member at meetings during the year ended
December 31, 2021:

Director

E=

REZBEGHRES  TERBLER A&
AHBHEERRBEANNNZE EFE57
0 % L ISR A RIS E B % 7 AR R R
BASEMEA - REZEENEERREDER
B2 P AR R R B B -

REZE2021F 12 A31 B ILFEHR - 1242 %
BERITT—ReH Ui hEEEEe 2
ZeHE - ABRK - RERZ T -

’

TREFIAREHZE2021F12 31 BIEFESIR
HEEBEKEHFESHNFEE

Number of
board meetings Number of
should be meetings
attended attended
BHESRRH HESZRIRE

Mr. SONG Gewei
REZRTE

Dr. FAN Yun
B E L

Dr. LI Haitao
FEEEL
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR

MANAGEMENT

Details of the remuneration of the members of the Board and the

senior management of the Company as set out on pages 28 to 34 of

this Annual Report for the year ended December 31, 2021 are set out

below:

Directors’ Remuneration and Five Highest Paid

TEERRE

\

EE= MR EEEN

HE2021F12A31BHILFE - EFE2KEN
HNARERFEIIAEMMENA RG] SR EIE
BB IEE T

EEMERFAUBSHFMAL

Individuals
(a) Directors’ Remuneration () EE@L
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are as follows: FEMEFBET :
Pension cost,
housing
provident fund,
medical
insurance and
other allowance
For the year ended HE2020F Salaries and and benefits
December 31, 2020 1A AILEE Director's fee bonuses in kind Total
FEAES
BERREK
we He QL HiEBAER st
Directors % RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT AREFTT
Mr. DAl Wei B - 1,200 58 1,258
Ms. WANG Na TH - 684 58 742
Mr. KANG Weiguo el - 672 35 707
Total BEr - 2,556 151 2,707
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AN S EE A
TEERRE
Pension cost,
housing
provident fund,
medical
insurance and
other allowance
For the year ended HZ201F Salariesand  and benefits
December 31, 2021 12A31BLEE Director's fee bonuses in kind Total
BEERA
FELES
BEABEK -
He HFEREA Hin2BEANER st
Directors EE RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETR AR¥TR
Mr. DAI Wei R - 1,200 42 1,242
Ms. WANG Na T - 684 73 757
Mr. KANG Weiguo FRAETE - 503 66 569
Dr. Ll Haitao £ 53 - - 53
Dr. FAN Yun Bhix 53 - - 53
Mr. WONG Yun Pun EHE 53 - - 53
Total 4t 159 2,387 181 2,727
(b) Five Highest Paid Individuals (b) BNUERSHFMAL
An analysis of the Group's five highest paid individuals for the REEBEE2021F %2020 12 4318
years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows: FFERNERHMATHLTHOT
Years ended December 31,
BZE12A31MALLEE
2021 2020
20214 20204
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A ANEX
Directors e 3 3
Non-Director highest paid individuals FEFHRRFMAL 2 2
72 Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021
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Details of the remuneration of the above non-director highest

paid individuals for the years ended December 31, 2021 and

2020 are as follows:

TEERRE

LR EE 2021 F K 2020% 12 A31 H
EFENEESEESTFMA TS
BT

Years ended December 31,
BZ12B31ALEE

Salaries and bonuses

Pension cost, housing provident fund,
medical insurance and other allowance
and benefits in kind

e RIEA
BREEHA  EERES
BERRMEMERRE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREEFIT
1,469 1,243

140 82

The maximum number of non-Director individuals whose

remuneration falls within the following remuneration ranges:

ETMEeBEANRSHTMIFEEFA
2

Years ended December 31,

BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
202145 2020 4F
Number of Number of
individuals individuals
A AH
Remuneration range (in HKD) HIMEE (LAB TET)
HK$500,001 to HK$ 1,000,000 500,001 BTE
1,000,000 7T 2 2
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DIRECTORS" RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL
REPORTING IN RESPECT OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors of the Company are responsible for overseeing the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements which give a true
and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and of the results
and cash flow during the Reporting Period. The Management has
provided the Board of Directors with the necessary explanations and
information to enable the Board of Directors to make an informed
assessment of the Company’s consolidated financial statements
presented to the Board of Directors for approval.

The Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating to
events or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

A statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on
the consolidated financial statements is set out from pages 79 to 87
in this report. In preparing the consolidated financial statements for
the year ended December 31, 2021, the Directors have selected
suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently, made
judgments and estimated that are prudent, fair and reasonable and
prepared the consolidated financial statements on a going concern
basis.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining a sound and effective internal
control and risk management system to safeguard the Group’s assets
and shareholders’ interests and to review annually the effectiveness of
the Company’s internal control and risk management system to
ensure the adequacy of internal controls and the existing risk
management system. The Company also has an internal risk control
audit department that primarily analyzes and independently evaluates
the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s risk management and
internal control systems and reports its findings to the Board of
Directors at least annually.
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The Group's internal control and risk management system includes a
well-established organizational structure with clearly defined
responsibilities and authorities. The departments involved in the day-
to-day operations of the division are responsible for their conduct and
performance and are required to operate their own divisional business
within the limits of their authority and to implement and strictly
comply with the strategies and policies set by the Company from time
to time. Each division is also required to keep the Board informed of
significant developments in the division’s business and the
implementation of policies and strategies that are regularly developed
by the Board. These systems are designed to manage, not eliminate,
the risk of failure to meet business objectives and provide only
reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material misstatement
or loss.

As at December 31, 2021, the Board has reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control and risk management systems of the Group to
ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated in compliance
with the agreed procedures and standards. The review covered all
material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions. In particular, the Board
considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs and budget of the Company’s
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions. The
review was made by discussions with the management of the
Company, its external auditor and the assessment conducted by the
Audit Committee. Also, the Company has strict rules on the treatment
and release of inside information in accordance with relevant
requirements of the Listing Rules and the SFO and prohibits any
unauthorized use or release of confidential or inside information. The
Directors and senior management of the Company have adopted all
reasonable measures to ensure proper precautionary measures are in
place to prevent the Company from violating relevant disclosure
requirements. The Board believes that the existing internal control
systems are adequate and effective, in particular, for financial
reporting and Listing Rules compliance. Meantime, the Board has
adopted further enhanced internal control measures for the
management of conducting continuing connected transactions as part
of the ratification in relation to the payment of the Historical
Refundable Deposits mentioned in the section headed “Events after
the Balance Sheet Date” in this report. Further details can be referred
in the continuing connected transactions announcement of the
Company dated April 21, 2022.
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AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The auditor’s approximate remuneration in respect of the audit and
non-audit services provided to the Company during the year ended
December 31, 2021 is as follows:

AT
HEETNEZE 2021F 12 A31 BILEERAAR
N AR AR BN SRR BURTS 2 A BN & # 5
mE

N
=

Amount
Type of services (RMB)
RIS EE R SHE(ARE)
Audit services Z B8R TE 1,700,000
Non-audit services IEZEBR TS 1,200,000
Total Wa=t 2,900,000

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Ms. WANG Na was appointed as a joint company secretary of the
Company on January 20, 2021. In order to maintain good corporate
governance and to ensure compliance with the Listing Rules and
applicable Hong Kong laws, the Company has also engaged Ms. YU
Wing Sze of TMF Hong Kong Limited, a company secretarial service
provider, as another joint company secretary of the Company to assist
Ms. WANG Na in performing her duties as company secretary of the
Company. Ms. WANG Na is the principal contact person of Ms. YU
Wing Sze with the Company. In accordance with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules, Ms. WANG Na and Ms. YU Wing Sze have attended not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the
Relevant Period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTOR RELATIONSHIP

The Company considers that effective communication with
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and
understanding of the Group’s business, performance, and strategies.
The Company also recognizes the importance of timely and non-
selective information on the Company for the Shareholders and
investors to make informed investment decisions.

The AGMs of the Company provide opportunity for Shareholders to
communicate directly with the Directors. The chairman of the
Company and the chairmen of the Board Committees of the
Company will attend the AGMs to answer Shareholders’ questions.
The auditor will also attend the AGMs to answer questions about the
conduct of the audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s
report, the accounting policies, and auditor’s independence.

To promote effective communication and to build an inter-relationship
and communication channel between the Company and the
Shareholders, the Company adopts a Shareholders’ communication
policy and maintains a website (www.kqgysh.com.cn), where the up-
to-date information on the Company’s business operations and
developments, financial information, corporate governance practices,
and other information are available for public access.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, a separate
resolution will be proposed for each issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted on by
poll pursuant to the Listing Rules and the poll results will be posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange in a timely
manner after each general meeting.
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CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING AND PUTTING FORWARD PROPOSALS

According to the Articles of Association, the Shareholders may put
forward proposals at the general meeting of the Company for
consideration. Any one or more member(s) of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right, by written
requisition to the Board or anyone of the joint company secretaries of
the Company to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
convened by the Company for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within
two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so in the same
manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Board to convene such general
meeting shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the
procedures are available on the website of the Company.

ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

Shareholders who wish to make enquiries to the Board regarding the
Company may do so by emailing Investor Relations at the Company’s
head office at ir@hnkgwy.com.

AMENDMENTS TO CONSTITUTIONAL
DOCUMENTS

The Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association
of the Company were adopted on June 17, 2021 with effect from July
16, 2021. The Memorandum and Articles of Association of the
Company are available on the Company’s website (www.kgysh.com.cn)
and the website of the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, since the Listing Date, the Company did not
made any significant changes to its constitutional documents.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Shareholders of Kanggiao Service Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Kanggiao Service Group
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”), which
are set out on pages 88 to 209, comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

. the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSAs"”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to the assessment of
expected credit losses of trade receivables.

Key Audit Matter
HEETEE

VR R 2 TTE:

AFEZR T AR R R SRR AN G
BHRKRANEREREBRX

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
KM ET R EERETE1E

Assessment of expected credit losses of trade receivables

AHEE % EWRIR N TRE AR X

Refer to Note 3.1.2 “credit risk”, Note 4 “critical accounting estimates
and judgements”, and Note 20 “trade and other receivables and
prepayments” to the consolidated financial statements.
B2HEAVBBRERMA3N2[EERR] - M4l EEG LT
R | K5 20 [ 8 5 Ko B th & W sk I8 DA R FRAS FRIE ] ©

As at 31 December 2021, the gross carrying amount of trade
receivables amounted to approximated RMB321,025,000, which
represented approximately 28% of the total assets of the Group.
Management has assessed the expected credit losses (“ECL") of trade
receivables with loss allowance of approximated RMB14,033,000
made against the gross trade receivables.
R2021F12A31H ES KR EEEHLEIARARYE
321,025,0007C " (hESEBEELN28% - ERECDNEESEK
TIENEREREXR((FERERER])  UHE S RIFIARET
RIBRBE L AR 14,033,000 7T °

We have performed the following procedures in
respect of the assessment of ECL of trade

receivables:
KMERE 5 EWFCRTEHE AEXNFTHE
HA TR

(@) Obtained an understanding of the
Group’s internal control and assessment
process of the ECL of trade receivables,
and assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering degree of
estimation uncertainty and other inherent
risk of factors, such as complexity and
subjectivity;
THESEHEHRKFIERHERE
KA BE S R IE T - WE B A
IR E R B A E A Rk B & (40
EHREREBM) - AFHHERERR
ey EA L

(b) Evaluated and validated, on a sample
basis, the key controls over management’s
assessment of the ECL of trade receivables
including the review of ageing analysis.
AR EEREEEEHE S ERGRIE
TR AB R EL AT R Ry B S 45 1l -
BIEENRE ST
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Key Audit Matter
BEEITEE

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
EMNET R EERETTEE

Management applied the simplified approach under HKFRS 9 to
measure the lifetime ECL of trade receivables. To measure the ECL,
trade receivables were grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. Management assessed the ECL based on estimation
about risk of default and expected loss rates, and judgement was
used in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation, including the historical settlement records,
financial positions of the customers and other factors that impacted
their ability of repayment. Management also took into account of the
current market conditions and forward-looking factors.
EREERAEENBRELENEIRETHNBREZAEBES
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MR -

The assessment of ECL of trade receivables is considered a key audit
matter given the significance of the trade receivables balance. In
addition, the judgements and estimations in relation to assessment of
ECL are subject to higher degree of estimation uncertainty. The
inherent risk in relation to the assessment of ECL is considered
relatively higher due to the complexity of impairment models and
subjectivity of significant assumptions and data used.
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Assessed the appropriateness of the credit
loss provisioning methodology adopted by
management including the appropriateness
of customer grouping based on our
understanding on the Group's business
process, credit control process and the
credit risk characteristics of the trade

receivables;
ERBEMEEEEERRE « EHES
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Challenged and assessed the reasonableness
of the significant assumptions in estimating
the loss rates by corroborating management'’s
assessment with publicly available information
and supporting evidence;

BT ESHARERMIFEER
BEMTEHERBTHAABEEME
REEZRKRMEIRIE

Tested, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
ageing analysis of trade receivables
prepared by management against relevant
supporting documents;
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Key Audit Matter
BREITEE
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18 M % B R

How our audit addressed the
Key Audit Matter
BFNE A EEBRETEE

(f)

Evaluated management’s assessment on
the financial positions of the customers,
current market conditions and forward-
looking factors with reference to our
understanding of Group’s business,
industry and external macroeconomic
data; and

2ERMEEBER - TENINBLRE
RBEHN TR FHEEBEEUERH
B - BRI ARR MATIE M E =
BREIY

Checked the mathematical accuracy of
the calculation of the provision for loss
allowance.

BEGFREBRRBEENBRBERE -

Based on the above, we considered that

management’s judgements and assumptions

applied in the assessment of ECL of trade

receivables were supportable by the evidence

obtained and procedures performed.
ER EXAt - HPBR/REERNZREREHR
TR AIAX B R BT (4 & 5 WA TR
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters
that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards

applied.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Wilson Chan.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
COI\/IPREHENSIVE INCOME

LEEM|E
(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

Year ended 31 December
HENAMBLEE

2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B ARET T ARETIT
Revenue WA 6 783,567 575,585
Cost of sales SHE A 9 (579,715) (399,041)
Gross profit ER 203,852 176,544
Administrative expenses TR S 9 (61,705) (39,753)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE R EHERY 9 (15,339) (10,778)
Net impairment losses on financial assets 4 & & & /B &8 %5 3.1.2 (6,542) (2,701)
Other income HAp U A 7 8,494 21,344
Other (losses)/gains — net Hib (1) s — 558 8 (1,924) 1
Operating profit ReERE 126,836 144,657
Finance income BhE U A 1,472 414
Finance costs BE Bk 2N (8,395) (21,113)
Finance costs — net A& RN — JFEE 11 (6,923) (20,699)
Share of profit/(loss) of investments FE(L{E A ARRR
accounted for using the equity AR, (EE)
method 244 (57)
Profit before income tax R B 15 %% A 8 120,157 123,901
Income tax expenses PS5 5 2 13 (31,598) (32,117)
Profit for the year FRFE 88,559 91,784
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(CONTINUED)

A 3¢ =
o= %@qﬂﬁﬁ% (?ﬁﬁ)
(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31MALLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TFTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Lz ARBT R ARBTFT
Profit attributable to: LR &5 (RIS
— Owners of the Company — KARIHEA AN 83,885 88,383
— Non-controlling interests — JEER 4,674 3,401
88,559 91,784
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mE R
ltem that may be reclassified to AlgeEF D EEIBmMIER
profit or loss
— Exchange difference on translation — #EGINEFREAR
of foreign operations P H Z=%E (2,606) =
Total comprehensive income FREERREE
for the year 85,953 91,784
Total comprehensive income UT&FEE2HEKREERE :
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — RRDBIHEA AN 81,279 88,383
— Non-controlling interests — JEERE R 4,674 3,401
85,953 91,784
Earnings per share sR2F
— Basic and diluted — AR RE#E 14 0.14 0.17

=
2F
o)
H
=]
=
Bl

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should k%47

a7 8 B B Bt 2 B o — B B

i

I

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
BERER

nVT\

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(Br =B EHI -

A SBEAARETITIIR)

As at 31 December
HENAMBLEE

2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
Notes RMB’'000 RMB’'000
B =E ARBT T AREFTT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property and equipment EYSE L] 15 10,207 9,068
Right-of-use assets FEREEE 26 3,130 3,377
Investment properties B 16 3,893 5,705
Intangible assets A = 17 56,118 20,862
Deferred income tax assets IRIEFTISTE & 18 9,988 6,544
Prepayments TR FRIE 20 65,629 =
Restricted cash 2RI 22 1,325 1,324
Investments accounted for using the  {f DA ABRHIRE
equity method 932 198
151,222 47,078
Current assets REBEE
Inventories e 1,075 -
Trade and other receivables and B 5 RHAERFIER
prepayments BT FRIE 20 420,774 719,473
Financial assets at fair value through A F(EF ABRN SR EE
profit or loss 23 21,018 -
Cash and cash equivalents He RIBELZEEY 21 540,833 134,758
983,700 854,231
Total assets EEHE 1,134,922 901,309
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of AT EE ABIGER
the Company
Share capital A% A 24 5,831 -
Other reserves H b fEE 25 545,902 7,982
Retained earnings RE&EF 116,156 137,982
667,889 145,964
Non-controlling interests R 33,508 21,052
Total equity A 701,397 167,016
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

4= /\ prr.~d == 1
iﬁ % FE 'Ei%§<&¢i)
(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)
As at 31 December
HE12A31MALLEE
2021 2020
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bk AREF T ARETIT
LIABILITIES =L
Non-current liabilities ERBERS
Bank borrowings SRITIE RN - 221,119
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 4,783 7,305
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFTISF B E 18 7,028 1,756
Other payables B A IR 27 5,450 =
Contract liabilities AERAE 6 8,779 -
26,040 230,180
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade and other payables 25 & EH M FER RIE 27 243,292 225,506
Contract liabilities EREE 6 138,024 108,316
Current income tax liabilities BNERFT S & & 21,167 38,546
Bank borrowings SRITER - 125,865
Lease liabilities HEBE 26 5,002 5,880
407,485 504,113
Total liabilities B B8 433,525 734,293
Total equity and liabilities ERRABEHEE 1,134,922 901,309

BB ER BREE R BN E— 55

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction

‘ﬁn‘a"v}
:

with the accompanying notes.

HREFESBEEF 200 B 2 RAMERERER
2022F4 298 AR QR EEe 44 A
THZEERERERE

The consolidated financial statements on pages 88 to 209 were
approved by the board of directors of the Company on April 29, 2022
and were signed on its behalf.

KANG Weiguo WANG Na
BRER 18
Director Director
EE 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

CAERBEE

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

Attributable to owners of the Company

(BR=EHERIN - AESEUARETITIIR)

KAFER AL
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
I Hitfits RERH @it FERER ERAH
Note RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
fiE  ARETT ARETR ARETt ARETR ARETT ARETR
(Note 24) (Note 25)
(Fraa)  (HHEE29)
Balance as at 1 January 2020 20205 1B 1 B &8 - 7515 50,066 57,581 6,067 63,648
Total comprehensive HR2ENREH
income for the year
Profit for the year HRFE - - 88,383 88,383 3,401 91,784
Transactions with owners in E#H5 AETHIR 5
their capacity as owners:  (WEBA51)
Appropriation of statutory  ETE Rl
reserves - 467 (467) - - -
Acquisition of subsidiaries  WEEHIBA R - - - - 9,589 9,589
Contribution from FiERERL &
non-controlling interests - - - - 1,995 1,995
Balance as at 12020% 12 A 31 REEH
31 December 2020 - 7,982 137,982 145,964 21,052 167,016
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY (CONTINUED)

mERESER(E)

(Br=EIEHAN - BEESBEAARETTIIR)

Attributable to owners of the Company

KARERAER
Non-
Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total interests equity
BA& Ethif RERF ax  FERER ERAH
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
iz  ARETr ARETR ARETn ARETR ARETn ARET:R
(Note 24) (Note 25)
(Hzt24)  (W&E25)
Balance as at 1 January 2021 #2021 18 1 B &8 - 7,982 137,982 145,964 21,052 167,016
Total comprehensive HR2ENREHE
income for the year
Profit for the year MR - - 83,885 83,885 4,674 88,559
Currency translation differences &##E =% - (2,606) - (2,606) - (2,606)
- (2,606) 83,885 81,279 4,674 85,953
Transactions with owners in S5 AETHR S
their capacity as owners:  (LEBEAEH)
Appropriation of statutory £ TE eI
reserves 25 - 571 (5711) - - -
Issue of shares in connection &AL 3175 R
with the capitalisation issue ~ F&A%47 4,373 (4373) - - - -
Issue of shares in connection  EZAR A LA
with the Company's listing k{717 1,458 518,588 - 520,046 - 520,046
Dividends to the then A—FTARERN
shareholders of a subsidiary — BEREZ RS - - (100,000) (100,000) - (100,000)
Dividends to non-controlling  [IZERIRIE 2 R34 &,
interests - - - - (2,223) (2,223)
Acquisition of a subsidiary ~ WEE—EKBAT 31 - - - - 9,705 9,705
Capital contribution by FERERLE
non-controlling interests - - - - 300 300
Capital injection from owners  RAFHEAR ATE
of the Company - 25,600 - 25,600 - 25,600
Deemed distribution tothe ~ EARAEEEHRR
then shareholder of the fELRRIED K
Group arising from the
Reorganisation - (5,000) - (5,000) - (5,000)
Balance as at R2021512 81848
31 December 2021 5831 545,902 116,156 667,889 33,508 701,397

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bt iR & R B B R R [R) BB P P 5 — BFBD
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

n‘/-.l_\/\IEﬁﬁl)wE’%%

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(=B -

A SEAARETITIIR)

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’'000
Bt EE ARBT T ARETTT
Cash flows from operating activities K& FHELENRERE
Cash generated from operations IR IH S 29 115,548 73,498
Interest received from bank deposits B #1717 ELEI ] B, 11 1,472 414
Income tax paid BB (53,065) (18,221)
Net cash generated from RETHEERSFTHE
operating activities 63,955 55,691
Cash flows from investing activities ?ﬁﬁiﬁ@)ﬁiﬂ’]ﬁﬁﬁé
Loans to related parties BERTEEs A - (345,000)
Loans repaid by related parties EE Al EENER 301,626 88,374
Cash advances to related parties A B IR IR & Bk (5,873) (131,610)
Repayments of cash advances by A S ERRE SR
related parties 48,361 149,970
Repayments of cash advances by FEERIER BRI S BN
non-controlling interests 14 14,462
Loan to third parties BERTE=H (13,380) (7,500)
Loan repaid by third parties FE=HEENER 20,580 7,500
Interest received from loans to related BEXRFEH LT ME=7
parties and third parties B U F S 13,429 10,730
Purchases of property and equipment BEE ¥ R RE AR B EE
and intangible assets (3.465) (2,475)
Purchases of financial assets at fair BERATETABRR
value through profit or loss ERIEE (82,400) -
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAFER ABEN
assets at fair value through CREEMFTS A
profit or loss 61,762 -
Proceeds from disposal of property HEME K& EEHRIE
and equipment 21 2
Prepayments for acquisition of a WehE — R @A Al 2 B RIE
subsidiary (65,629) =
Payments for investments accounted  LAREZIAABE 2 BN
for using the equity method (490) (255)
Acquisition of subsidiaries, net of W EEHI B A Bl (FNER T EEIR &)
cash acquired 31 (7,293) 1,385
Net cash generated from/(used in) R&EZFZEES (FFH)
investing activities HEEEE 267,263 (214,417)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
nVT\/\Iﬁaﬁl)leiQ (ng)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(B BEHI

BESBENAARETITINIR)

Year ended 31 December
HE1N2AMBLEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —TFTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Lz ARBT R ARBTFT
Cash flows from financing activities BIEFEHELNRERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITIB TS 5RIB - 354,731
Repayments of bank borrowings EERRITENK (346,984) (62,847)
Cash advances from third parties F=ZFMBESER 3,435 40,238
Repayments of cash advances from EEFE=ZFMNESER
third parties - (40,238)
Interest paid ERFLE (6,165) (18,726)
Settlements of the principal element ~ #AEHE & EHARE D
of lease liabilities (4,799) (3,289)
Dividend paid ERRE (102,223) (34,000)
Payments for listing expenses LR (4,435) (1,821)
Contribution from non-controlling FEFERCERR A
interests 300 1,995
Consideration paid to the then HEARAEEERRE
shareholder of the Group for TR E
the reorganisation (5,000) —
Capital injection from shareholders RAARRFFE
of the Company 25,600 -
Proceeds from issue of ordinary shares 2517 3@ A% P15 7018 520,046 -
Net cash generated from financing BEEFBELRSTE
activities 79,775 236,043
Net increase in cash and cash RERASESEYILMNFE
equivalents 410,993 77,317
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 1 A1 BRI RIS ZEY 134,758 57,441
Exchange losses on cash and cash Re R EEME X EE
equivalents (4,918) =
Cash and cash equivalents R12A31MHNEER
at 31 December HEZEEY 540,833 134,758
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in iR A ¢ G2 & EERBEW M 3 — 416
conjunction with the accompanying notes. o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
iR a MR IR AR YA

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Kanggiao Service Group Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 8 October 2020 as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law, Cap 22 of the Cayman Islands. The address of its
registered office is Floor 4, Willow House, Cricket Square, Grand
Cayman, KY1-9010, Cayman Islands.

The Company has been listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 16 July 2021 by way of
its initial public offering.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company
and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally
engaged in provision of property management services and
related value-added services in the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"). The ultimate controlling shareholder of the Group
is Mr. Song Ge Wei (“Mr. Song”, the “Controlling
Shareholder”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated
financial statements have been approved for issue by the board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) on 29 April 2022.

The outbreak of the 2019 Novel Coronavirus (the “COVID-19")
had brought unprecedented challenges and added uncertainties
to the economy. COVID-19 may affect the financial performance
and position of the industry of property management. Since the
outbreak of COVID-19, the Group kept continuous attention on
the situation of the COVID-19 and reacted actively to its impact
on the financial position and operating results of the Group. As
at the date that the consolidated financial information is
authorised for issue, COVID-19 doesn’t have any material
adverse impact on the financial position and operating result of
the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The consolidated
financial statements are for the Group consisting of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(@) Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Group
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRS) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance Cap. 622.

(b) Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain
financial assets and investment properties measured at
fair value.

(c) New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for the annual
reporting period commencing 1 January 2021. The
adoption of these standards and amendments does
not have significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 9,  Interest Rate

Hong Kong Accounting Benchmark Reform
Standards (HKAS) 39, — Phase 2

HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and

HKFRS 16

2

BEEETERMM

AN EE AR E IR BT B B IS IR R R A
MEREEER - ZREBRRNAMERF
BE—EHER BRIERTHA HaWB
BRBART R EK B A REKE AN E
B M #m 3 °

2.1 RBEEE

(a) EIRMEBEREEARETEL
AFEBINERIER

AEBE2EEMBRERIIR
BEEBMBREERTEE
B HmELER D) REERA
GPIZE622F 2 KB R E M
i -

(b) ESEMAZ

FAEMBRRERELKA
ERGE EETEREE
REEYRERAFEFER
B o

(© HEERMIFTREBET
g

ANEBEESR202151 818
6 B F JE & B B KR
TP ER RAEET - JANZ
LREB| RASF] H AN K B A 4R
B IEHRRWEEATE -

RIETRBIBRE FIEEE
RHRIEOW BB  HE—
SEERIFE39% . FRRE
BEAMEHRELES

7%  BAUE

WMERRFE 457K
BBE S RELER

Z 165

Kangqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021
ERHEEEEEERAF/ T —FFH

97




98

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Bx 2 A& 5BASN

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(d) New and amendments to existing standards that
have been issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2021 and
have not been early adopted by the Group are as

2 HEEe:

2.1 wRE

(d)

A SEAARETITIIR)

WG R INe )

EHE %)

EEM{ER2021F1H18
e 26 B B BEF 8 R AR Ak B
REBEW AR FRBOFET
R R IR A ER ST E

follows: L2 g
Effective for
annual periods
beginning
on or after
BUATFEEDR
ZEHEER
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Update reference to the conceptual 1 January 2022
framework
FEMBHRERERIE IROETT EHBPAER 2R 20221 A1H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: proceeds 1 January 2022
before intended use
FEGTERE16RIER] VX BELRE — (FRE A& 20221 A1H
Z P 5kIA
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — costs of fulfilling a 1 January 2022
contract
AR GHEREI7HRNER] BREAR — BITERMKAK 20221 A1 H
Annual Improvements Annual improvements to HKFRS standards 1 January 2022
2018-2020 cycle
FEBGE BB EIREAERI 2018 F £ 2020 F A H 202241 A1 H
B F 2 B
Revised Accounting Guideline 5  Merger accounting for common control 1 January 2022
combination
RIEFTEETIESIF 55 HREGISHOEHETIE 20221 A1 H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts 1 January 2023
BEMEREERIZE 1757 R & E 20231 A1 H
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or 1 January 2023

non-current

R GETERIE 1 SRAERT HEEIERRBRIFRD
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(Br=EIEHAN - BEESBEAARETTIIR)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SEEepsilim e

POLICIES (Continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 2.1 REEEE)

(d) (Continued) d) #&)

Effective for
annual periods
beginning

on or after
BUTHFER
ZEHBLER

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

BEAGTERE 1R/ R
ERUBHRELENER
& 25 RIER]

Disclosure of accounting policies 1 January 2023

SETECOR IR 20231818

Amendments to HKAS 8
BB ERIE 8RMISET
Amendments to HKAS 12

Definition of accounting estimates
BEHE R

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities

1 January 2023
20231 H1H

1 January 2023
arising from a Single Transaction

HE-QHMELREENBERH
ZIEFETR IR

Presentation of Financial Statements —

BB AERIFE 12 AEET 202351 A1H

Hong Kong Interpretation 5 1 January 2023

(2020) Classification by the Borrower of a
Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause

2R MBHREK — ERAHEHFREK
BRGRNTERERN D

Sale or contribution of assets between an

FBREES55%(20204F) 20231 A1H

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and To be determined
HKAS 28

BB MEERE 105 &
BB GFTERISE 28 R HEFT

investor and its associate or joint ventures
REEHEABEPENALERAIZ
BEHERTE

1% T LAEE

AEBERS ARSI
KAEETE R BERE
RIMEE  ERETEAE
B EEH BEFRHTE
TR R & B SOR RS B
HAEEELEARE

The Group has already commenced an assessment
of the impact of these new or revised standards,
interpretation and amendments, certain of which
are relevant to the Group’s operations, and not
expected to have a material impact on the Group in

the current or future reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting

2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured
entities) over which the Group has control. The
Group controls an entity where the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the
activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated
from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group
(refer to Note 2.3).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the transferred asset. Accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests (“NCI”) in the results and
equity of subsidiaries are shown separately in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)
2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SARBIRERSHEE

POLICIES (continued) (”zg)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity 2.2 MBAT (&)
accounting (Continued)
222 ZEHMEBR A EHHNE QR

2.2.2 Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

without change of control

The Group treats transactions with NCI that do not
result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership
interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-
controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the
amount of the adjustment to NCIl and any
consideration paid or received is recognised in a
separate reserve within equity attributable to owners
of the Group.

2.2.3 Investments accounted for using the equity

method

(i)  Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control or
joint control. This is generally the case where
the Group holds between 20% and 50% of
the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of
accounting (see (iii) below), after initially being
recognised at cost.

(i) Joint ventures

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for

FEERREE

7R ER B B SRR A 2 2 [
TEERRERNEZRS
IIfFEAREEESEAALZ
MZEBRE - HEEER
"""" B2 BT Ak B R A
B REERAE LR
R M B & ) 2 A AR
oo JRER R 2 AR
FHEeNe RREBzZRZ
ERZHEENAEEHER A
& 1 18 o P 72 98 L ffi e P B

7
s ©

2.2.3 AR EARNKRE

() BENFE]

BeE AR ASEEHA
BEEAFE BN IEE
HlE R LR HIENE
B —RBERT A%
# H20% = 50% H)
HERE - REtE AR
TE R T IRKATER
% HAEEEITEA
B (RT3 (i) ©

s
>>

(i) BERA

KA LEDENEDNY)

using the equity method (see note (i) below), FHEKEAEEHEES
after initially being recognised at cost in the BERAMEREZ KA
consolidated balance sheet. A AR (R T X

(iii)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity
accounting (Continued)

2.2.3 Investments accounted for using the equity
method (Continued)

(ii)

Equity method

Under the equity method of accounting, the
investments are initially recognised at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group'’s
share of the post-acquisition profits or losses
of the investee in profit or loss, and the
Group's share of movements in other
comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or
receivable from associates and joint ventures
are recognised as a reduction in the carrying
amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an
equity-accounted investment equals or
exceeds its interest in the entity, including any
other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made
payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the
Group and its associates and joint ventures are
eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of equity-
accounted investees have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted
investments is tested for impairment in
accordance with the policy described in Note
2.9.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 %SARB|NERSH ERETE
POLICIES (continued) (&)

2.3 EXKaft

2.3 Business combination

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations not under common control,
regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets
are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

° fair values of the assets transferred

o liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group, if any

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises any NCI in the
acquired entity on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis
either at fair value or at the NCI's proportionate share of
the acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any NCl in the acquired entity, and the acquisition date
fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquired
entity over the fair value of the net identifiable assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly in
profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

WEEESOXTI BER PR KRS
AN TS B O (T BRAT A
SEHMBEWE2EE) AR - B
B-HNEAREERERRE

s MHEREREEMNQYE

o WKBERBHIEE AMEL
MmARE

o  AKEEBRTHREMA)

o HARELRHBELEMEIME
EXABENAFHE &

o RWBRARLERFEEM
PRIER A FE -

FEEA Ot PRI R Al BRI & &=
AR PEENRERIREET S
RERKEBHONAFEFE(D
BHIIMESERSN) o A< 5 B LA B
Wi R~ FE kR R 2R 15
WEERRIHAIFEENT D BE
RERER N UE B A A SEE
R o

W HRRIR AN EE A R ST 8

PR E B EEAEME
ERESSRREMNEEERR
A A E R AR R B B R B
8 PR AT R R B B R E R A
B EEREAREIIR - Mz
SRR BT U s S 75 1 Al S8R B
FEENQTHE  IEBRBEERE
SRR SHERE

Kangqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021

ERHEEREERAT T —FFH

103




104

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.3

24

2.5

Business combination (Continued)

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date of
exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’'s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent
financier under comparable terms and conditions.
Contingent consideration is classified either as equity or a
financial liability. Amounts classified as a financial liability
are subsequently remeasured to fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if
the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee's net
assets including goodwvill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker
(“CODM"), who is responsible for allocating resources
and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the executive directors that makes
strategic decisions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial
statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Group’s presentation currency. The Company’s
functional currency is Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$").

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains
and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies at year-end exchange rates are generally
recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented as finance income/(costs).
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented on a net basis with in other gains/(losses).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

BRI

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(9]

Group entities

The results and financial positions of the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

. assets and liabilities of each balance sheet of
the Group entities are translated at the closing
rate at the date of that balance sheet;

3 income and expenses of each statement of
comprehensive income of the Group entities
are translated at average exchange rates
(unless this is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case

income and expenses are translated at the

dates of the transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of the net investment in foreign
operations are taken into equity holders’ equity.
When a foreign operation is partially disposed of or
sold, exchange differences that were recorded in
equity are recognised in the income statement as
part of the gain or loss on sale.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SARBIRERSHEE
POLICIES (continued) (&)

2.7 Property and equipment 2.7 MERRE

Property and equipment are stated at historical cost less
depreciation and any impairment loss. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the profit or loss
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

W5 R 3% RS AR IR S R AR AT B8 I AT
MREBEIER - ELXABIERE
ERERAERELZHAX -

HIZA A2 7E B 3% 08 B AERE R R 2K
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HIER - TAEMEE RIREER
REEENFEARBZAFIIER
% o

FrERGAIERFRERERA
HRERA D #E B RREERE

— Office premises 31 years — WAME 314
— Vehicles 4-6 years — JAEE 4FEGF
— Furniture and fixtures 3-6 years — RARESE 3264
— Leasehold improvements shorter of 3 years or — HEYERE = oy FHE

lease term (AR & R2E)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains and
losses on disposals are determined by comparing the
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within “other (losses)/gains-net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

BRI

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3.
Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is included
in intangible assets. Goodwill is not amortised but it
is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently
if events or changes in circumstances indicate that it
might be impaired, and is carried at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on
the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount
of goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is
made to those cash-generating units or groups of
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit
from the business combination in which the
goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are
identified at the lowest level at which goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes, being
the operating segments.

Computer software

Acquired computer software programmes are
capitalised on the basis of the costs incurred to
acquire and bring to use the specific software. These
costs are amortised over their estimated useful lives
(5 years).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 #A&RAIRERSHAR
POLICIES (continued) (&)

2.8 BLERE#)

2.8 Intangible assets (Continued)

(c) Customer relationships and backlog

Customer relationships and backlog acquired in a
business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. The contractual customer
relations and backlog have a finite useful life and
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method over the expected life of 120 to 156 months
for the customer relationships and backlog, which is
determined by considering the existing conditions
and possibilities of renewal of the property
management contracts by reference with industry
experiences, or based on the remaining contract
period pursuant to the term set out in the property
management contracts at the acquisition date.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets

Goodwill and intangible assets that has an indefinite
useful life are not subject to amortisation and are tested
annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes of
assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash
flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed
for possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets

2.10.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

3 those to be measured subsequently at fair
value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income. For investments in debt
instruments, this will depend on the business model
in which the investment is held. For investments in
equity instruments, this will depend on whether the
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity
investment at fair value through other
comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 %SARB|NERSH ERETE

POLICIES (continued) (#&)
2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 210eMEE(#)
2.10.2 Recognition and measurement 2102 ARG E

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to
receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs
of financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics
of the asset. The Group only held debt instruments
classified as financial assets at amortised costs.

Assets that are held for collection of contractual
cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at
amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt investment
that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and
is not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income when the asset is derecognised or impaired.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued)

2.10.3 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses (“ECL") associated with its
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3
details how the Group determines whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted
estimate of credit losses (i.e. the present value of all
cash shortfalls) over the expected life of the financial
assets.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the
simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised
from initial recognition of the assets. The provision
matrix is determined based on historical observed
default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables with similar credit risk characteristics and
is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every
reporting date the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analysed.

Impairment on other receivables are measured as
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected credit losses, depending on whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivable has occurred since initial
recognition, then impairment is measured as lifetime
expected credit losses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SARBIRERSHEE
POLICIES (continued) (&)

2.10 Financial assets (Continued) 2Q210EMEE (&)

2.10.4 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the consolidated balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or realize the
assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. The
legally enforceable right must not be contingent on
future events and must be enforceable in the normal
course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

2.11 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of business if longer), they are classified as
current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are
recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 20 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 3.1.2 for a
description of the Group's impairment policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2

BRI

(Br =B EHI -

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash

flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand,

deposits held at call with financial institutions.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new

shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net

of tax, from the proceeds.

2.14 Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables represent liabilities for goods or

services that have been acquired in the ordinary course of

business from suppliers and amounts to be repaid from

the Group to its counterparties. These amounts are

classified as current liabilities if payment is due within 12

months or less. If not, they are presented as non-current

liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair

value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using

the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 %SARB|NERSH ERETE
POLICIES (continued) (&)

2.15 Borrowings 2158

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method. Fees
paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised
as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is
probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to
which it relates.

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled
or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 #r& RE|K#Es

o B RARE IR

POLICIES (continued) (&)

2.16 Borrowing costs 2.16 fE R A
All borrowing costs are recognised in the consolidated FTE B R AR EELBRERGA
statement of comprehensive income in the period in PHEW S RIER o

which they are incurred.

2.17 Current and deferred income tax 217 N RIEEFT S5

The tax expense for the period comprises current and AEMTIEX HBEE BMRE

deferred income tax. Tax is recognised as “income tax FiIE - MIEELE 2 EB SR E

expenses” in the profit or loss, except to the extent that it RE[EHRAY]  BREEHME

relates to items recognised in other comprehensive M B RS PR IE

income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also BEEREERIBRIN . EZIBRT @ &

recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in HINSRlEEMmEmW B EE

equity, respectively. T ms R o

(@) Current income tax (a) ENEAFTISHE
The current income tax charge is calculated on the BUERPRAS B X HAR IR AR 1 A
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively ZHBARLENELER
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries HBWANBRNEERER
where the Company’s subsidiaries operate and BHIEBMHmEE B MO
generate taxable income. Management periodically BoEplstE o I EEA
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect S A PIRERT AR A 15 R
to situations in which applicable tax regulation is FHARE SR RAAR T - I
subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions @A IBR N RZETEE AR
where appropriate on the basis of amounts T 755 e B <7 15 ) i RGRRE 1
expected to be paid to the tax authorities. & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.17 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. The deferred income tax is
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and
are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income
tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits

(a)

Pension obligations

The Group only operate defined contribution
pension plans. In accordance with the rules and
regulations in the PRC, the PRC based employees of
the Group participate in various defined contribution
retirement benefit plans organised by the relevant
municipal and provincial governments in the PRC
under which the Group and the PRC based
employees are required to make monthly
contributions to these plans calculated as a
percentage of the employees’ salaries. The municipal
and provincial governments undertake to assume
the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees’ payable under
the plans described above. Other than the monthly
contributions, the Group has no further obligation
for the payment of retirement and other post-
retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of
these plans are held separately from those of the
Group in independently administrated funds
managed by the governments.

The Group's contributions to the defined
contribution retirement scheme are expensed as
incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(b)

(9]

Housing funds, medical insurances and other
social insurances

Employees of the Group in the PRC are entitled to
participate in various government-supervised
housing funds, medical insurances and other social
insurance plan. The Group contributes on a monthly
basis to these funds based on certain percentages of
the salaries of the employees, subject to certain
ceiling. The Group’s liability in respect of these
funds is limited to the contributions payable in each
year. Contributions to the housing funds, medical
insurances and other social insurances are expensed
as incurred.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.18 Employee benefits (Continued)

(d) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-
monetary benefits and accumulating sick leave that
are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months
after the end of the period in which the employees
render the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the amounts
expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled.
The liabilities are presented as current employee
benefit obligations within other payables in the
consolidated balance sheet.

2.19 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation and the amount can be
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is
determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of
an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SARBIRERSHEE
POLICIES (continued) (&)

2.19 Provisions (Continued) 2.1984& (&)

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting
period. The discount rate used to determine the present
value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks

The Group provides property management services, value-
added services to non-property owners and community
value-added services. Revenue is recognised in the
accounting period in which the services are rendered.
Depending on the terms of the contracts and the laws
that apply to the contract, services may be recognised
over time or at a point in time.

—  For property management services, the Group bills a
fixed amount for services provided on a monthly
basis and recognises as revenue in the amount to
which the Group has a right to bill and that
corresponds directly with the value of performance
completed. The Group primarily generate revenue
from property management services income from
properties managed under lump sum basis, the
Group entitles to revenue at the value of property
management services fee received or receivable.

BEIORBRSHRRERELEE
ERIEEMRRXNREMFTOR
BFtE - EERERACAHRERS
R BT 35 & I ) B W R R B E A AT
i RZE TR RIAE
R 55 P 7k 24 1 388 00 9 488 i R R 2 )

specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to BRAX -
the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
2.20 Revenue recognition 2.20 I A FERR

REBRHKYMEEERG  JEXEE
RERE RNRIBERE - WAR
RERBH S HARER - BRES
FHER BB R A REER - R
A [ e PR o B R P B A 2R o

— HYEEERRBME A%
1% A 3L A HE 4 AR A5 U B
ETRIERB/EA 8
UAEEERFAAZERERE
EHEEETEERESER
R REBOWATERR
BREEENMENDEE
BERBKAKES AEEE
e W el Y X E IR
BEBEEDRKA -

Kangqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021
ERREETEEERAT I T —FFR

121




122

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Value-added services to non-property owners mainly
include (i) sales office management services, the
Group bills a fixed amount for services provided on
a monthly basis and recognises as revenue in the
amount to which the Group has a right to bill and
that corresponds directly with the value of
performance completed; (ii) pre-delivery services
providing designing, construction management
planning, property inspection and pre-delivery
advices to property developers which are recognised
as revenue at a point in time when such services are
rendered and accepted by the customer; (iii) sales
agency services provided to property developers to
facilitate the selling of properties which are
recognised as revenue at a point in time when such
services are rendered; (iv) construction site
management services provided to property
developers to safeguard the construction site which
are recognised as revenue over time when such
service are rendered; and (v) consultancy services
provided to other property management companies
which are recognised as revenue when such services
are rendered and accepted by the customer.

Community value-added services revenue mainly
include (i) income from the provision of second-
hand property transaction assistance services for
property owners, which is recognised on a net basis
when the sales or rental contracts are signed; (ii)
rental income from sub-lease of carparks and other
spaces leased from property developers recognised
on straight line basis over the lease period; (iii) sales
agency income for assisting in selling the rights of
carpark spaces owned by property developers,
which are recognised when the underlying sales
contracts are signed; and (iv) revenue from other
community convenience services recognised when
the relevant services are rendered.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 SARBIRERSHEE
POLICIES (continued) (&)

220 M ATERR (&)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

If a contract contains multiple services, the transaction
price is allocated to each performance obligation based
on their relative stand-alone selling prices. If the stand-
alone selling prices are not directly observable, they are
estimated based on expected cost plus a margin or
adjusted market assessment approach, depending on the
availability of observable information.

When either party to a contract has performed, the Group
presents the contract in the balance sheet as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the Group’s performance and the customer’s
payment.

A contract asset is the Group’s right to consideration in
exchange for services that the Group has transferred to a
customer.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group has a right
to an amount of consideration that is unconditional,
before the Group transfers services to the customer, the
Group presents the contract as a contract liability when
the payment is received or a receivable is recorded
(whichever is earlier). A contract liability is the Group’s
obligation to transfer services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of time
is required before payment of that consideration is due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.20 Revenue recognition (Continued)

Incremental costs incurred to obtain a contact, if
recoverable, are capitalised and presented as assets and
subsequently amortised when the related revenue is
recognised.

When the difference between the transfer of the promised
goods or services to customer and the payment by the
customer is considered significant and implied financing
components contained in certain contracts, the Group
adjust the transaction price for the time value of money.

2.21 Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income as “other income” (Note 7).

Interest income is presented as finance income where it is
earned from financial assets that are held for cash
management purposes, see Note 11 below.

2.22 Leases

The Group leases certain properties. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease
terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a
wide range of different terms and conditions. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants, but leased
assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets (Note 26) and
investment properties (Note 16) and corresponding
liabilities at the date at which the leased asset is available
for use by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 %SARB|NERSH ERETE
POLICIES (continued) (&)

2.22 Leases (Continued) 2.22E (&)

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate

o amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the lessee exercising that
option

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate
implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the
Group's incremental borrowing rate.
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e  XfRIHEENIR(HAEE
fif R S B AR R A 7T 5 R 4%
HE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

2

BRI

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

2.22 Leases (Continued)

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

° the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received

° any initial direct costs, and

© restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in the profit or loss.
Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group is a
lessor is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating
lease are added to the carrying amount of the underlying
asset and recognised as expense over the lease term on
the same basis as rental income. The respective leased
assets are included in the balance sheet based on their
nature.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(Br=EIEHAN - BEESBEAARETTIIR)

A BL IR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 #ZAFB|GfERE:
POLICIES (continued) (&)

2.23 Dividend distribution 2.23RE DK

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer at
the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of the
reporting period but not distributed at the end of the
reporting period.

2.24 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

2.25 Investment properties

Investment properties, representing commercial properties
held under leases, are held for rental yields and are not
occupied by the Group. The Group measured its
investment properties at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs. Depreciation
is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost over their lease term typically varying from 3 to
7 years.

AR ERRKZFIEERER R
SHRE KD EFMRE 28
(EREERERBTHEENIS
RTE) R B -

2.24 U #E B

478 & B AR AE F E IR A R B AR &=
B A BEM B S RT - R
FEAR A FEMER -

B A 7R 4 B RO R 78 B S T AR B
RBEBHRREELR S 2 E KSR AR
R AR S Rh EE R (B 2 X
AR

2. 251 REYE

RANE(DAEETHAENTE
W%) o {F Ik (8T & ek B3 3
AR © AR ERAAG
HREWYE  DEEMIBNAR
(B (S ERR - T E R E
RRREEEEH(—RNTFIET
) DA AT HBH -

Kangqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021

BERGEEEREERAT/ —T-—FFR

127




128

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors

(Br =B EHI -

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial

risks: market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s

overall risk management program focuses on the

unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise

potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial

performance.

3.1.1 Market risk

(i)  Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to interest rate risk for

certain interest-bearing cash at banks and

restricted cash. Cash at banks and restricted

cash at variable rates expose the Group to

cash flow interest rate risk. As at 31 December

2021, the cash flow interest rate risk on cash

at banks and restricted cash was immaterial.

(31 December 2020: same).

3.1.2 Credit risk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its

trade and other receivables and cash deposits at

banks. The carrying amounts of trade and other

receivables and cash and cash equivalents represent

the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in

relation to financial assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

CEEETDS
BT R S 3R ()

g NS ESE))

BESBENAARETITINIR)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 SERK (&)

(i) Risk management 0 ERpEE
For trade and other receivables, the HNE H K E A fE UK
management of the Group has monitoring EHmME  AEEEEE
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is R AR - ARER
taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, FRER ER #E F e U (2] 260 HA
the Group reviews the expected credit losses B o WA RBHE
of these receivables at the end of each R AEERTZSE
reporting period to ensure that adequate EWHIENTEREEE
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable 18 ARER T AT Y [
amounts. In this regard, the directors of the HEELER D REE
Company consider that the Group'’s credit risk TE cHME—HMmME ' A
is significantly reduced. NAEZEZRRAEE 2

EERRBAERE -
(i) Impairment (i) EE

The Group considers the probability of default
upon initial recognition of asset and whether

AEBREENRTER
5 BRI BEIE -

there has been a significant increase in credit WREEEGFENRE
risk on an ongoing basis throughout each HE A EERE TS
reporting period. To assess whether there is a FAEIEN - FEFHEE
significant increase in credit risk the Group [R B = 7 R L ANRE
compares the risk of a default occurring on REBE KRS BHEE

the asset as at the reporting date with the risk
of default as at the date of initial recognition.
It considers available reasonable and

B A 522 R /O R B R T 4
R B HE A ERNRE
RAETTLLE  RIRFINE

supportive forwarding-looking information. BRI ERNEE RS
Especially the following indicators are MERIHEE R o AT IR
incorporated: FEEHERE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Bx 2 A& 5BASN

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)
(i) Impairment (Continued)
o internal credit rating
o external credit rating

o actual or expected significant adverse
changes in business, financial or
economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant change to the
debtor’s ability to meet its obligations

o actual or expected significant changes in
the operating results of individual
property owner or the debtor

o significant changes in the expected
performance and behaviour of the
debtor, including changes in the
payment status of debtors in the Group
and changes in the operating results of
the debtor.

Financial assets are written off when there is
no reasonable expectation of recovery, such as
a debtor failing to engage in a repayment plan
with the company.

The Group accounts for its credit risk by
appropriately providing for expected credit
losses on a timely basis. In calculating the
expected credit loss rates, the Group considers
historical loss rates for each category of
receivables and adjusts for forward looking
macroeconomic data.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment (Continued)

(a

Cash deposits at banks

The Group expects that there is no
significant credit risk associated with
cash deposits at banks since they are
substantially deposited at state-owned
banks and other medium or large-sized
listed banks which are with good credit
rating or good reputation. Management
does not expect that there will be any
significant losses from non-performance
by these counterparties.

3

MBEREIE@®
3.1 MEEREZE®)
312 EERK (&)
(i) JifE (4E)

(@) WRITRLER

HRREFRK
BAFEHREA
RITHKEBARYE
ERFRxEE
MEMARE E
miRTT AEH
BHRTHESF
R BEBEANEE
B\ & EE R
HrearRzER
SHFIETE
ETMEREME
KEHE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKEEREIR@

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEREZE®)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 SEREK (&)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) JEi1E (48)
(b)  Trade receivables (b) EZEUFKIE

The Group applies the simplified AEEERBE
approach to provide for expected credit H) 75 % Bt B S B
losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which T5eR 2RI 9 5%
permits the use of the lifetime expected HENEHREE
loss provision for trade receivables. To BB TR B AR
measure the expected credit losses, ZERRHFHRE
trade receivables have been grouped 2 FE W IR B A
based on shared credit risk FEHBEIEE
characteristics and aging. The expected B BRETERE
credit losses also incorporate forward HEEEBE R
looking information on macroeconomic BEEXZNEER
factors affecting the ability of the % 1 A BR R
customers to settle the receivables. The e 58 FEK
Group has identified the most relevant RBEITT D
factors for different group customers #He BEHEER
(e.g. money supply and population BIABEESEBY
percent change from a year earlier), and EREEERI
accordingly adjusts the historical loss REMNE IR
rates based on expected changes in B &OBE E = /Al
these factors. EMEER - A&

B wEENRSE

B P H & 1E

EBSEJCTaN=E 30
EERAORLL
BoLE() I
HEREZ S A
EBER Ik S
BELERE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables have been assessed for
impairment on a collective basis based
on different credit risk characteristics.
Trade receivables are categorised as
follows for assessment purpose:

Group 1: Trade receivables due from
related parties

Group 2: Trade receivables due from
third parties — non-property owners

Group 3: Trade receivables due from
third parties — property owners

(BRARBEHN A

BAARETTIIR)

3 BKEEREIR @

3.1 MEEKRREZE®E)

3.1.2 GERR (&)

(i) BL1E (&)

(b)

B I RNGRIAE)

B RKERD
RETREER
REMREEE
% 17 OR B ¥
e gLt {4 B
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKEEREIR@

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BIEREZE®)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 SEREK (&)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) JEi1E (48)
(b)  Trade receivables (Continued) (b) BIFEWKFIEGE)
As at 31 December 2021, the loss ®2021%F 12 A
allowance provision for the trade 318 - BEZEI
receivables was determined as follows. R EERE
The expected credit losses below also BEFEWMT AT
incorporated forward looking BEEEEET
information BIERTIE 1 &R
Total
“ct
Trade receivables (Group 1) B3 EWRIE(AR1)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) wEmE(ARETT) 189,168
Expected loss rate TEEE R R 1.71%
Loss allowance provision (RMB’000) EEEFERE(ARETIT) 3,236

Upto  180to 1to 2to 3to Over
180days 360days 2years 3years 4years  4years Total
1808 180%
MR 3608 1E2F 1E3F 3E4F 4FNE £

Trade receivables (Group 2) BAEYFE(AR2)

Expected loss rate REERE 174%  10.45%  37.15% 100.00% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000)  EEAE(ARETTT) 36,286 16480 9,019 EE] 70 - 6,178
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  BEEERE(ARETT) 776 27 915 120 70 - 2168

Trade receivables (Group 3) BAENFE(AR3)

Expected loss rate ki gk 557%  564% 1216%  1861%  29.82%  8130%

Gross camying amount RMB'000) ~ £HEE(ARETT) 26317 15401 15368 6330 3578 2685 69679
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  Ei8EEE(E (ARET ) 1,465 88 1868 1178 1067 2183 8629
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

(b)

Trade receivables (Continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the loss

3 HMBRBEE@®
3.1 MEEREZE®)
312 EERK (&)
(i) JifE (4E)
b) BSREYGREE)

MR2020F 12 A

allowance provision for the trade 310 - BEZEI
receivables was determined as follows. REREEER
The expected credit losses below also BEEEMT-
incorporated forward looking TXHEREE
information B 75 B = AR
AR} o
Total
#aEt
Trade receivables (Group 1) ESEWFIE (A5B1)
Gross carrying amount (RMB’000) BEEE(ARETT) 258,157
Expected loss rate TEEAE R R 0.1%
Loss allowance provision (RMB’000) EEEFEEE(ARETIT) 258

Upto  180t0 110 210 3to Over

180days 360days  2yeas  3yeas  Ayears  Ayears Total
1800  180%

WRO360B 128 2E3F 3EAE AENE 4

Trade receivables (Group 2) B5EyFE(ER2)
Expected loss rate BB

Gross camying amount RMB'000) ~ 2FEE(ARETT)
Loss allowance provision (RMB'000)  EBEEREE(NRET )

100%  500% 1000%  20.00%  50.00% 100.00%
40716 3576 340 147 2 32 4483
407 179 34 29 11 32 692

Trade receivables (Group 3) B EYFE (AR
Expected loss rate BB

Gross camying amount (RMB'000) 2B EE(ARET )
Loss allowance provision RMBI000) BB ERAE(ARET )

100%  500% 1000%  20.00%  50.00% 100.00%
177% 9712 120710 6976 284 1297 50715
178 a6 1207 13% 1432 1297 59%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(B RAIEE - FESEUARETTHIR)
MEEREIE &)

Mg EEEE#)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 3.1.2 EERE (&)

(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) EE(E)
(c)  Other receivables (0 HitbpEUsaa
A summary of the assumptions A B E e Uk
underpinning the Group’s expected HEBZEEEE
credit loss model for other receivables is EBEEAEZNH
as follows: REGBEEWT -
Basis for recognition of expected

Category Group definition of category credit loss provision
Ll BRI EER BREANEFEHERBENEE
Performing Customers have a low risk of 12 months expected losses.

(“Stage 1") default and a strong Where the expected lifetime of
capacity to meet an asset is less than 12 months,
contractual cash flows expected losses are measured

at its expected lifetime
("12 months ECL method”)
IR AT EPENERRAEAEERE 12 {E A #YTE ARS8 - ER TR Af

(T 1B D)

Underperforming
(“Stage 2")

"R E
(s 2B )

Non-performing

ENETTERBEEREE K

Receivables for which there is
a significant increase in
credit risk; as significant
increase in credit risk is
presumed if interest and/or
principal repayments are
30 days past due

(B EN N o) A S O]
fisi 280 8 30 REZE T 2 )32/
FAL - AIRREER
PN

Interest and/or principal

FEHERZBAZANEE
BEHEEENEFERFERE
(M2 EAA B EERERN D)

Lifetime expected losses

- =HTAREE

Lifetime expected losses

(“Stage 3") repayments are 90 days
past due
RKETR WHEIOREEFER HAE 2HEHER
(M 3B&ER )
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A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKEEREIR @

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiiERREE#)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 SERK (&)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) BB (&)
()  Other receivables (Continued) (0 HibEWEE(#E)
On that basis, as at 31 December 2021 DAL A B/ R
and 2020, the loss allowance provision 2021 F K 2020 F
for the other receivables was determined 128318 @ Efth
as follows. The expected credit losses JE W FRIE 2 B 18
below also incorporated forward looking BEEFNOT -
information. LNTEHEEE
ENTERERESZ
o
Non-
Performing  performing Total
RERK REFR “st

As at 31 December 2021 7420215 12H31H
Gross carrying amount BERE(E

(RMB000) (AREFIT) 113,976 801 114,777
Expected loss rate TEHE R 1.09% 100%
Loss allowance provision 518X S

(RMB'000) (ARBFT) 1,239 801 2,040

As at 31 December 2020 420205128 31R
Gross carrying amount fEARE(E

(RMB’000) (ARETT) 373,085 - 373,085
Expected loss rate TREERX 0.69% =
Loss allowance provision — EjiEE R
(RMB’000) (ARETT) 2,586 - 2,586
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKEEREIR@

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 BiiEKRREE#)
3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued) 312 SEREK (&)
(i) Impairment (Continued) (i) 1B (&)

(d) As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the (d) 720214 %2020
loss allowance provision for trade and F12HA318: &
other receivables reconciles to the 5 K E A FE Wk
opening loss allowance for that TH 1 5 18 2 1 5
provision as follows: 1 B 57 B 5 0 B

1] &5 18 22 ¥ R
s
Trade Other
receivables receivables Total
ESELFE HttERTE st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARBTE ARETRT

As at 1 January 2020 202051 A 1H 4,380 2,450 6,830
Charged to profit or loss RIEZR 2,565 136 2,701
As at 31 December 2020 12020412 A31H 6,945 2,586 9,531
As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1 A 1H 6,945 2,586 9,531
Charged/(credited) to R, GEA)

profit or loss 7,088 (546) 6,542
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12 A31H 14,033 2,040 16,073
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

3.1.2 Credit risk (Continued)

(i) Impairment (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

The directors are of the view that the
industrial characteristic factors with
regard to trade and other receivables
collections have been taken into
accounts in the assessment on the
expected credit loss rate throughout the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
same).

As at 31 December 2021, the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables,
cash deposits at banks and restricted
cash of RMB961,887,000 (31 December
2020: RMB853,340,000) represented
the Group’s maximum exposure to
credit losses.

(BRARBEHN A

BAARETTIIR)

3 BEEREIE )

3.1 BiiERREE#)

3.1.2 GERR (&)

(i) BL1E (&)

(d)

(%)

2021412 A 31
RIEFE - 3E
HEEBERXN
AHEEERAH
B LEMEK
RIBRREITE
8 B %2020
F R -

20214512 A
31H B RE
& R IE -8R
TREERRT
PR Il 3R & B BR
B A AR
961,887,000 7T
(2020412 A 31
BH: AR ¥
853,340,000) -
B 7 £ B 7 15 /Y
BRAEEEBAE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Bx 2 A& 5BASN

A SBEAARETITIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 FE R E IR )
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) BiEEEEE)
3.1.3 Liquidity risk 3.1.3 MEIMERR
To manage the liquidity risk, the Group monitors REEREMERR  A5E
and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents HIRE RIS EEBYHKTE
deemed adequate by the management to finance HEITESIE - W EHEISES
the Group's operations and mitigate the effects of I [Z WJ%ELAI%KE l e s
fluctuations in cash flows. RIEESHKT - WERIR
EMERBNTE
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRENESREHAREERE
liabilities into relevant maturity grouping based on fEw B ER R &R TN BRI AS AN &
the remaining period at the end of each reporting NEemaBELMAEBN
period to the contractual maturity date. The EimAR - RIBHILEH K
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual HAEARABHEESRE -
undiscounted cash flows.
Total
Less than Between Between contractual
1year 1and2years 2and5years  Over5 years cash flows
BREE
1EUR Z2f 2255 S5ENE TREEE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETL AREFT ARETT
As at 31 December 2020 742020512 318
Financial liabilities SREE
Bank borrowings (including 8175
interest payments) (BIEFBAFR) 147,431 152,912 81,858 - 382,201
Lease liabilities (including  THE&(E
interest payments) (BEFEMT) 6,229 3,234 4,354 611 14,428
Trade and other payables & 5 & E ft fE R 5E
(excluding accrued payroll (TR BEE: EE
and other tax payables) & EHERTIE) 148,349 - - = 148,349
302,009 156,146 86,212 611 544,978
As at 31 December 2021 }2021%128318
Financial liabilities SREE
Lease liabilities (including  FAEE&(E
interest payments) (BEMENEH) 5,143 2,127 2,812 - 10,082
Trade and other payables 2 5 R Bt fE 8
(excluding accrued payroll (TR B#EE: EE
and other tax payables)  REfEFIE) 192,079 18 6,140 191 198,428
197,222 2,145 8,952 191 208,510
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKEEREIR @

3.2 Capital management 3.2 BEXEE

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the asset-
liability ratio. This ratio is calculated as total liabilities
divided by total assets.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020 asset-liability ratio of
the Group was as follows:

AEEERER Z BNAREAE
BB LN - ARRERM
(2] 7 A0 4 H 4 ) 25 45 BE & 12 (A
o ARERRENERNGEBIAR
EEARRA

RRFXABRENERE - AKEA
BEERAERXNTRROKRESHE
BITHBRNIXHEEENRDE
% o
AEBNERABELLRERERE
REEE - EARBBELRZAER
BIRABERERE

M2021%F 2020512 A31H -
AEBHERGELLERAT ¢

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
Asset-liability ratio BEABELE 38% 81%

The asset-liability ratio as at 31 December 2021 decreased
significantly compared to that as at 31 December 2020 as
the result of the IPO.

BAETERAREE - 712021
FNRANBHZEEBBLER
2020512 A31 B AIE & o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKEEREIR@

3.3 Fair value estimation 3.3 AFEME
(a) Fair value hierarchy () AFEE#R
This section explains the judgements and estimates NENELEBE A S B Rk
made in determining the fair values of the financial IR AFERERNTENS
instruments that are recognised and measured at BT E A FERED &
fair value in the consolidated financial statements. B fhst e BEBHEEBEEATF
To provide an indication about the reliability of the BEfARASENIERE
inputs used in determining fair value, the Group has B2 AEEEHESRT
classified its financial instruments into the three B Aot ERE TN =
levels prescribed under the accounting standards. [E &% o =188 & A &7 AR 31 R
An explanation of each level follows underneath the RIETH °
table.
Level 3
B3
RMB’000
ARBTR
As at 31 December 2021 7"2021612A31H
Financial assets at FVPL RAFEFABR 2 SREE
Wealth management products O Em 21,018
The fair value of financial instruments that are not REERMSERINemIT
traded in an active market is determined by using ERATFERAGERMTE
valuation techniques. JE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

(a)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The different levels have been defined as follows:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments
traded in active markets (such as publicly traded
derivatives, and equity securities) is based on quoted
market prices at the end of the reporting period.
The quoted market price used for financial assets
held by the Group is the current bid price. These
instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using
valuation techniques which maximise the use of
observable market data and rely as little as possible
on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs
required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is
not based on observable market data, the
instrument is included in level 3. This is the case for
wealth management products.

The Group's financial assets at fair values through
profit or loss represented wealth management
products, fair value of which are estimated based on
unobservable inputs (level 3).

nVT\

(B BEHI

BRI

BESBENAARETITINIR)

3 HBERERE@®

3.3 DAY EMEFTE)

(a)

DNPEEBRE)

TRBRNERINT -

B1E: EABRTHEEN
ERMTAWMRARZITET
A RBAES) (R HEZRR
THROTIZREINE - K
SEBENEREEMAN
MEREREFERE - %
FTHINAFIE -

F2EB: WIHRNERMISE
ﬁﬁ"]ﬁrﬂlﬁ(ﬁﬂ%ﬂ%ﬁil
)M A T ERAGERE
E o ZEMERMMHEARE
A A AT £R 52 T 0% B i ik
KRB E BE B R A ET o W 5T
H—EBIANATFEATER
B E NG AR R AR
g BIZTEATAE2E -

H3E: H—EAZEEA
8 A BB FER IR AT R
BEIBEL - AIZTATIA
F3E - B E S A B LB
R -

REBEZEAFEFABRED
CTREERERYER H
N FERET Al B R 5 A
B (E3E)MHET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(=B AESBEUAARETITIIR)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 3 BKEEREIR@

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)

3.3 AFEMLFE)

(b) The following table presents the changes in level 3 (b) TXZ23#HZE2021F128
instruments for the year ended 31 December 2021. BMAILEFEMEIBIAN
Wealth
management
products
EEEm
RMB’'000
ARETTT
Opening balance at 1 January 2021 R20214F1 A1 BEEMA S
Acquisitions INE 82,400
Gains for the year recognised in profit or loss  FA18 %5 1 #E 32 &9 HA R Uk 25 380
Disposals HE (61,762)
Closing balance at 31 December 2021 720214 12 A 31 BREIR &4 21,018
() Quantitative information about fair value () FREARTAERE ASIE
measurements using significant unobservable inputs WATEFE(EIE)E
(Level 3) is as follow: &R
Range of
Unobservable input Valuation technique(s)  Financial assets at FVPL  unobservable inputs
RATESABR TUABRBAYE
FAEEEAYE fhERM HeEmEE M & E
As at
31 December
2021
R2021512A318
Expected interest rate per Discounted cash flow Wealth management 2.65%-3.34%
annum products
FEHIERX BRI E M B Em
Relationship of unobservable inputs to fair value: AR B R ABBEEATE
the higher of expected rate of return, the higher the R BB RERS
fair value. AFERS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.3 Fair value estimation (Continued)
(c) (Continued)

The Group manages the valuation of level 3
instruments for financial reporting purpose on a
case by case basis. At least once every reporting
year, the Group would assess the fair value of the
Group’s level 3 instruments by using valuation
techniques.

If the fair values of the financial assets at FVPL held
by the Group had been 5% higher/lower, the profit
before income tax for the year ended 31 December
2021 would have been approximately
RMB1,051,000 higher/lower.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are addressed below.

e I ERAR MR

(% 2H I - TS EUARETTIHR)
IR IR ()
3.3 A¥EMKE#E)

© #)

AEBBTBRE BEHIKA
BREREEFEIBTANMG
B R &H— @3S H
5 ASBEeERGERN
FEAEEEIBTANA
(A -

WA REFRFEAFEGTA
BaEcemEEC A TFEL
Ft/ TBE5% - B E20214
12 A31 BIEFE ZBRATEH
iz %‘J/&ﬁﬂqi@éﬂﬂ/ﬁ}é’ﬂj\ﬁ
# 1,051,000 7T °

BE et {hat kA

AR A B & N ERT S - WERESLE
BRMEMEAR BRERKREFHNE
Hl EUAHNARERENER

AEBRAREL G RRR - EE
AAAEENER  BERER RIBFR
HEANEBERGER - A NEEARRE
BUFREEEETEANABRNBRT

EMBRFEREANEEMNREISHOT
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e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(=B -

4  CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Allowance on doubtful receivables

The Group makes allowances on receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group used judgment in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’'s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period.

Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade and other receivables and doubtful debt expenses
in the periods in which such estimate has been changed.
For details of the key assumptions and inputs used, see
Note 3.1.2 above.

Current and deferred income tax

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the
PRC. Judgement is required in determining the amount of
the provision for taxation and the timing of payment of
the related taxations. There are many transactions and
calculations for which the ultimate tax determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred income tax
provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers to be probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of
their actual utilisation may be different.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (Continued)
(c) Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment annually, or more frequently if events or
changes in circumstances predict that goodwill may be
impaired, in accordance with the accounting policy stated
in Note 2.9, where the recoverable amounts of the cash
generating unit (“CGU") is determined based on value-in-
use (“VIU") calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates. Details of impairment assessment, key
assumptions and impact of possible changes in key
assumptions are disclosed in Note 17.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management has determined the operating segments based on
the reports reviewed by CODM. The CODM, who is responsible
for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segment, has been identified as the executive
directors of the Company.

The Group is principally engaged in provision of property
management services and related value-added services in the
PRC. Management reviews the operating results of the business
as a single reporting segment as the nature of services, the type
of customers for services, the method used to provide their
services and the nature of regulatory environment is same in
different regions.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, all the segments are
domiciled in the PRC and all the revenue were derived in the
PRC (2020: same).

As at 31 December 2021, substantially all assets of the Group
were located in the PRC (31 December 2020: same).

e I ERAR MR
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e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Bx 2 A& 5BASN

6 REVENUE

Revenue mainly comprises of proceeds from property
management services and related value-added services. An
analysis of the Group’s revenue by category is as follows:

A SBEAARETITIIR)

6 WA

WAEBBEYEEERE RXEBEE
RS FT1SFUA - AEBEZRERIEIH KUk
AL :

Year ended 31 December
BE1N2AMBLEE

2021 2020
20215 2020 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Property management services Y EE IR RIS 350,767 254,956
Value-added services to non-property JEFE T IHEIRTE
owners 311,935 235,408
Community value-added services 1 = 128 AR 7% 120,865 85,221
783,567 575,585
Timing of revenue recognition UG A B R B
— Over time — BERFE 524,283 408,549
— At a point in time — R EL 259,284 167,036
783,567 575,585

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue from entities
controlled by Mr. Song contributed 32.7% (2020: 38.3%) of
the Group’s revenue. Other than entities controlled by Mr.
Song, none of the Group’s customers contributed 10% or more
of the Group’s revenue during the year ended 31 December
2021 (2020: same).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

6 REVENUE (continued) 6 WA
(a) Contract liabilities (a) EE&AE
The Group has recognised the following revenue-related AEBERAUTHWABBOE
contract liabilities: FA&aE:

As at 31 December
BZ1NAMBLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TRT ARKETE

Contract liabilities aRaf
— Property management services — MEEERTE 136,458 100,379
— Value-added services to non-property — JEZ == 18 fR 7%
owners 3,392 812
— Community value-added services — tt R ILERTE 6,953 7.125
146,803 108,316
(i) Changes in contract liabilities () ARAEBHEE
Contract liabilities of the Group mainly arise from AEBHARABBEIER WY
the advance payments made by customers while the REMHAEREERE S
underlying services are yet to be provided. The BT B B o 72021 4 12
increase in contract liabilities as at 31 December H31H  AEBaENEmnD
2021 was mainly due to the growth of the Group’s FTEHRRNEBH XKL S T
businesses. PR o
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A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

6 REVENUE (continued) 6 WAw@®
(a) Contract liabilities (Continued) (a) EREIEE®)
(i) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (i) SHEFEERINBA
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue TRINFRERHRERER
recognised in the current reporting period relates to PEES R A EREZHWA -

carried-forward contract liabilities.

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTT

Revenue recognised that was FTAFNEREERE
included in the balance of HERRBA
contract liabilities at the
beginning of the year

Property management services )5 B 18 AR 7S 100,379 63,744

Value-added services to JEZE R ERTS
non-property owners 812 =
Community value-added services 1t (= I E RS 7,125 5,940
108,316 69,684
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

5 REVENUE (Continued)

(a) Contract liabilities (Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Unsatisfied performance obligations

For property management services and value-added
services to non-property owners whose revenue are
recognised in the amount that equals to the right to
invoice which corresponds directly with the value to
the customer of the Group’s performance to date,
on a monthly basis or settlement cycle. The Group
has elected the practical expedient for not to
disclose the remaining performance obligations for
these types of contracts. The majority of the
property management services contracts do not
have a fixed term. The term of the contracts with
non-property owners is generally set to expire when
the counterparties notify the Group that the services
are no longer required.

For community value-added services, they are
rendered in short period of time, which is generally
less than a year, and the Group has elected the
practical expedient for not to disclose the remaining
performance obligations for these types of
contracts.

Assets recognised from incremental costs to
obtain a contract

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there
was no significant incremental costs to obtain a
contract (2020: same).

(B BEHI

6 WAw@

BESBENAARETITINIR)

(a) EREE )

(iii)

(iv)

RETHENRS

DR E RS MR 18
ERBME - EEZOKA
FREERALEZNEE
HEARKEZSRIENED
HREFMEEERHE-
AEEDEEEANERE L
it UBBARBEZERE
BRI FERELER - KB
DYEERRSE R I EE
EHR - FXTARMBR
—REESEFHBHMAE
BB 2 AR E W o

IR ERBIRERA(—
BON—F)EM - AREE
EEBERANEE R U
BARBEZERLARNF

ESEENEERARIAE
BE
REZ2021F 128318 1
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B IR IRR M

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

7 OTHER INCOME

(Br =B EHI -

A SBEAARETITIIR)

7 EMUA

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARBT ARETT

Interest income from loans to related Rl BAEE 75 B R AL M (i 5E32)
parties (Note 32) 4,088 18,292
Interest income from loans to third parties 28 =75 & &I F S 4 A 539 903
Super deduction of value-added tax RETHEERR 2,583 1,081
Government grants (Note (a)) ESEEEIAEIC) 1,055 900
Others Hip 229 168
8,494 21,344

(@  Government grants mainly consisted of financial support

funds granted by the local governments with no

unfulfilled condition.

8 OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET

() BFHBIERBREMTBFRTH
MERXFHES - WHEHHAREKR
Rt -

8 Emb(EE) Wk — F58

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A831BLLEFE

2021 2020
202145 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMTR ARBTET
Gains on disposal of property, HEME - HE R&HERE
plant and equipment 8 1
Net foreign exchange losses SNFE BRI F 58 (2,312) =
Net fair value gains on financial assets at R AF(EFABENEREE
fair value through profit or loss B AT E 55 (F1EE3.3(0)
(Note 3.3 (b)) 380 —
(1,924) 1
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A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

9 EXPENSES BY NATURE 9 EMEEISHFX

Year ended 31 December
BZENAMBLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRE ARBTT

Employee benefit expenses and labour costs & & &5 5z & A A 191,931 271,588
Sales agency service costs HERERB KA 87,670 19,544
Security service costs 2 HEER R 98,208 25,210
Greening and cleaning expenses b RIBRE R 90,824 47,404
Maintenance and customer service costs 4 E R BB RS AN 56,883 16,146
Utilities IKEE 24,524 19,252
Listing expenses EmRX 14,019 6,379
Cost of goods sold EEEmKA 24,148 =
Office expenses WAE 13,272 10,037
Travelling and entertainment expenses ZEREBEE 7,352 5,499
Auditors’ remuneration 1% 2 Bl 357 A 3,019 38
Depreciation of property and equipment  #% R 3TE (fizE 15)

(Note 15) 2,242 1,760
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (Note 26) { FA# & E# & (Fi5E 26) 1,104 1,058
Depreciation of investment properties TEYFITE (5t 16)

(Note 16) 1,812 1,589
Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 17) 474 &= #45 (M7 17) 1,594 1,010
Rental expenses related to short term leases Ei%8 HAFH & A BAMTE S 5

(Note 26) (Bizx26) 656 3,093
Others Hith 37,501 19,965

656,759 449,572
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES INCLUDING 10 R E B H| B X (515 & =5
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) )

N

=

k>

Year ended 31 December
BE1N2AMBLEE

2021 2020
20215 2020 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

Wages, salaries and bonuses I& - FHekita 162,175 141,946
Contribution to pension scheme expenses Rk & =t 2|4t 252 (Mi3T ()
(Note (a)) 13,007 575
Other employee benefits (Note (b)) HibEERF (MisE (b)) 16,749 11,819
191,931 154,340
(a) Employees in the Group's PRC subsidiaries are required to (a) ~EEHREHRBATNESEL2M
participate in a defined contribution retirement scheme T T E R A YRR =
administrated and operated by the local municipal RRETE| c AEBEGRREHERQFMA
government. The Group’s PRC subsidiaries contribute ZEBEE - EAES B ERE
funds which are calculated on certain percentage of the FIB M E S @ HASREIZBE R
average employee salary as agreed by local municipal KRS EEZFSHETE
government to the scheme to fund the retirement benefits SDELEE o

of the employees.

The increase in contributions to retirement benefit scheme HZE2021F 12 A31 BILEERE
in the year ended 31 December 2021 compared to that in PRI FET 2t FHEE = 202012
the year ended 31 December 2020 was mainly due to the A3MBIEFEEMN  EEHRH
preferential pension compensation policy implemented by FHEFREZ 2020412 8318
the local municipal government to relief negative impact I EEERERERSHEREIA
from COVID-19 epidemic in the year ended 31 December SHESCOVID-198 B/ B mE 2 £ Fr
2020. B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10
DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS) (continued)

(b) Other employee benefits mainly include housing benefits
and other social insurance, festival welfare, employee
medical check and catering expenses.

(c) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group included three directors for the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020. The emoluments payable
to the remaining two individuals during the years ended
31 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows:

e I ERAR MR

(Br=EIEHAN - BEESBEAARETTIIR)

BEEANFAX(BHRESH

®)#®)

N

(b) EHttEEEFEEERENEEM
HeRE  BEREN  BTRBE
ERER -

(0 EEBSHMAL

H £20214 K2020F12A31H
ItFE  AEBHAEERSHHA
THRBE=ZFRESE - #Z=2021
FR2020F 12831 HILFE &
MEBMEALTZHRHMAT

Year ended 31 December
BENAMBLEE

2021 2020
20215 2020 £
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TRT ARBTET

Wages, salaries and bonuses I& - #Faehita 1,469 1,243
Contribution to pension scheme expenses R /K& 51 245 705 2 49 6
Other employee benefits Hthig 812 5 91 76

1,609 1,325
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NOTES TO THE CONSOUDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

10 EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES (INCLUDING 10 EEEH B X (B IEE = b
DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS) (continued) %))
(c) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) () EEBESHMAL®E
The emoluments fell within the following bands: HMERATHER :

Number of individuals
AE

Year ended 31 December

BZ12B31BLLEE

2021 2020
202145 20204
Emolument bands (in HK dollar) (LA TTET)
HK$500,001-HK$1,000,000 500,001 7% T2 1,000,000 7% 7T 2 2
11 FINANCE COSTS — NET 11 BEKAR — 5
Year ended 31 December
BZ1NAMBLEEE
2021 2020
2021 % 20204
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARETT AREETIT
Finance income BB WA
Interest income on bank deposits HITF A EMA 1,472 414
Finance costs & A A
Interest expenses F BRI (8,395) (21,113)
Finance costs — net BB KA — FEE (6,923) (20,699)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

12 SUBSIDIARIES 12 B AT
Particulars of the principal subsidiaries of the Group as at 31 720216 2 2020512 A 31 Bk 1%
December 2021 and 2020 are set out as below. AEFEF BB A RIMFBEHINWOT o
Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital  place of operation as at 31 December
E 0T AT 31 V= S TEXBR M12A318
RAEER B3k B RBRER LenH HAKERE
2021 2020
2021 % 20205
Directly owned:
ERER:
Kanggiaoyue Service Holdings Limited* BVI, US$50,000/ Investment holding 100% 100%
15 October 2020 US$50,000 in the BVI
FRRE BB AR EREMRMES - 50000%T/ < REBEARES 100% 100%
202010 A 158 50,000% 7T RERK
Friend Holdings Limited BVI, us$1/ Investment holding 100% Not
("Friend Holdings") * 6 March 2020 US$1 in the BVI applicable
REERERAR (BREER)) HBEERES: 1Z0/1EF1  REBEBRES 100% MR _—
202063 A6H REZR
Indirectly owned:
MRS
Keanda Holdings Limited Hong Kong, HK$1/ Investment holding 100% Not
("Keanda Holdings") * 11 May 2020 HK$ 1 in Hong Kong applicable
ReEBRAR ([RzE]) A 1B/ REBREZR 100% NEm
2020F5A 111
Hong Kong Kanggiao Service Hong Kong, HK$100/ Investment holding 100% 100%
Group Limited * 6 November 2020 HK$100 in Hong Kong
BARBHRBEERRAR* BB - 100787,/ REBREZR 100% 100%
2020611 A6 H 100%7T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

(Br =B EHI -

12 B AR #)

A SEAARETITIIR)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital  place of operation as at 31 December
MR T/ BT TEERR ®W12A318
PEEL ALt A RERER Fq-iuk EAKERE
2021 2020
20215 20205
Kanggiao Yueshenghuo Service PRC,  RMB10,000,000/ Investment holding 100% 100%
Group Co., Ltd. 1 December 2020 Nil in PRC
("Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo”) *
AEERREERBREERAR HE AR R ElR B 100% 100%
(AR RERHAE]) 2020612818 10,000,000t/
ey
Kanggiao Yueshenghuo Service Group The PRC, RMB507,631,579/ Property Management 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. (“Kanggiao Yueshenghuo”) ** 31 August 2007 RMB405,457,514 Services in Henan
FRUEEREEEERAA e ARE NGRS 100% 100%
(TERIBHLATE ) ** 2007 8A31H 507,631,579/ ERRY
AEE
405,457,514 ¢
Henan Kangjia Junpinle Catering The PRC,  RMB1,000,000/ Catering Service 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 17 May 2017 RMB900,000 in Henan
AERREmEERRIEBRATE *** hE ARE  RAEHNERRSE 100% 100%
201745A178 1,000,007,
AE#900,0007T
Henan Kanggiao Jiahe Property The PRC,  RMB3,000,000/ Property Management 60% 60%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 25 December 2017 RMB500,000 Services in Henan
A EREENDEREBRARF > - ARE NGOk ES 60% 60%
2017812 A258 3,000,000,/ EER%
AE#500,0007T

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021

ERUEEREERAE/ — T - —FFR



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 BB AR #)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity

Company name

of incorporation/
establishment

issued and
paid-up capital

activities and
place of operation

interest of the Group
as at 31 December

E 0T A 13 V= < TEEBR M12A318
PR Rt Rk A RBREX Fq-iuk EAKERE
2021 2020
2021 % 20205
Henan Yuxi Real Estate Marketing The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/  Real Estate Marketing 100% 100%
Planning Co., Ltd. *** 14 March 2018 Nil Planning in Henan
B TEEHESHKABRAR ** i AR WA BRI EHE 100% 100%
201834148  10,000,0007T,/ LHKE
Y
Henan Kanggiao Zhufu Property The PRC,  RMB5,000,000/ Property Management 60% 60%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 2 September 2019 Nil Services in Henan
AEERRENERBERAR *** - AR R EYE 60% 60%
2019969A28  5,000,0007T,/ BRRHS
i
Henan Kangyun Youxuan Business The PRC,  RMB5,000,000/ Business Management 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. *** 24 September 2019 Nil in Henan
R EEEREERARAR hE ARE  RARNELER 100% 100%
20194 9A248  5,000,0007T,
ey
Luohe Suhe Property Service Co., Ltd. *** The PRC,  RMB1,100,000/ Property Management 51% 51%
22 November 2013 RMB1,100,000 Services in Henan
BT AR R RIS AR AR *** i N R EE 51% 51%
2013F 118228 1,100,0007T,/ ERR
ARE
1,100,000 7T
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12 SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

(Br =B EHI -

12 B AR #)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

A SEAARETITIIR)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital  place of operation as at 31 December
MR T/ BT TEERR R®12A318
PEEL ALt A RERER REwE EAKERE
2021 2020
20215 20205
Puyang Junyang Property The PRC,  RMB2,000,000/ Property Management 70% 70%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 13 November 2015 RMB40,000 Services in Henan
ESmEGMEREAR AR *** - AEE R EE 70% 70%
2015F 118138 2,000,0007T,/ ERRY%
AR 40,0005
Henan Kanggiao Taichen Property The PRC,  RMB5,000,000/ Property Management 100% 100%
Management Co., Ltd. *** 24 September 2019 Nil Services in Henan
MERRERNEERRRARF ** - ARE R EE 100% 100%
2019%9A24H 5,000,007t/ EER
e
Henan Kanggiao Yuejin Property The PRC,  RMB1,000,000/ Property Management 70% 70%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 10 June 2020  RMB1,000,000 Services in Henan
MERRERNERBERAE ** - ARE R EE 70% 70%
2020664108  1,000,0007T/ EER
ARE
1,000,000 7T
Henan Kanggiao Property The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/ Property Management 100% 100%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 28 July 2020 Nil Services in Henan
MEERIERBERAT I - AR NGk ES 100% 100%
2020474288  10,000,0007T,/ ERRS
ey
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 12 BB AR #)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity

of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group

Company name establishment  paid-up capital  place of operation as at 31 December

L TRV 3t VASE i FEEBR M12A318
PEEL ALt A RERER Fq-iuk RS ERE
2021 2020
20215 20206
Henan Yuequ Internet The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/ Technology 100% 100%
Technology Co., Ltd. *** 29 July 2020 Nil  Development services
in Zhengzhou
A AR R AR AR v+ HE AEH BB ) 1 100% 100%
202074298  10,000,0007T,/ R 3 PR
ey
Henan Kanggiao Zhuyou Property The PRC,  RMB3,000,000/ Property Management 67% 67%
Services Co., Ltd. *** 26 August 2020 RMB3,000,000 Services in Henan
AERRERMERBERAR *** HE AEE NGIEL: Ok /ES 67% 67%
20208 A26H  3,000,0007T,/ EERY
ARE
3,000,0007T
Hebi Kanggjiao Property The PRC,  RMB5,000,000/ Property Management 51% 51%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 9 September 2020 RMB2,000,000 Services in Henan
BEMRENEREARAF *** - ARE NGOk ES 51% 51%
202069 A9H  5,000,0007T, EER%
AEE
2,000,0007T
Zhejiang Lansheng Property Service The PRC, RMB12,000,000/ Property Management 51% 51%
Co., Ltd. ("Langsheng Property”) *** 7 February 2012 RMB5,000,000 Services in Zhejiang
HIERNERBERAR - ARE REMaE 51% 51%
(TERE ) 2012962A78 12,000,007t/ ERRY%
ARE
5,000,000 7T
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (cContinued)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(=B AESBEUAARETITIIR)

12 B AR #)

Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital  place of operation as at 31 December
E 0T A 3 V= < TEEBR M12A318
NREH B A RBREX REw HAKERE
2021 2020
2021 % 20205
Zhengzhou Kanggiao Guotou Technology The PRC, ~ RMB8,580,000/ Property Management 51% 51%
Industry Service Co., Ltd. 10 June 2002 RMB8,580,000  Services in Zhengzhou
(Previously named as: Zhengzhou
Zhengran Property Management
Co., Ltd, “Kanggiao Guotou”) ***
BHEERRMREXREERAR e N REMN % 51% 51%
(LA% : BHBMMEERERAR) 2002667108 8,580,000,/ EERE
(TERIBEIR ) ** ARHE
8,580,000 7T
Zhengzhou Jixiang Property Management The PRC,  RMB3,270,000/ Property Management 51% 51%
Co. Ltd (“Zhengzhou Jixiang") *** 23 October 2001 RMB3,270,000  Services in Zhengzhou
BMEHDRERERAERA - NG REM e 51% 51%
(TEBI TR L) x> 20016108238 3,270,000t/ B R
N
3,270,000 7T
Kanggiao Technology Service Group The PRC,  RMB50,000,000/ Technology 100% 100%
Co., Ltd. 25 February 2020 Nil  Development services
("Kanggiao Technology Service") *** in Zhengzhou
FRNBERGEEERAR HE N BB B 100% 100%
([ B ) > 202024258  50,000,0007T, 3% AR %
ey
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 B T
Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital  place of operation as at 31 December
L AV i3t VASE - i TEEBR M12A318
PEEL ALt A RBREX REw EAKERE
2021 2020
20215 2020%
Henan Kanggiao Aosheng Property The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/ Property Management 65% 65%
Service Co., Ltd. *** 3 December 2020 Nil Services in Henan
AERRRBNERBERAR ** HE AR NEIEL:0k S 65% 65%
2020612438  10,000,0007L, ERRH
i
Henan Dingfeng Property Service The PRC,  RMB5,020,000/ Property Management 51% =
Co., Ltd. ("Dingfeng Property”) *** 29 December 2003 RMB5,020,000 Services in Henan
AERENERBEER AR HE ARE NEIEL:0k S 51% -
(TRigME ) 20036128298 5,020,0007T,/ ERRY
ARE
5,020,000 7T
Henan Qiaoxu Business Management The PRC,  RMB5,000,000/ Business Management 100% Not
Co., Ltd. *** 17 September 2021 Nil in Henan applicable
AERREEERERAR ** hE ARE  RURNELER 100% TER
20219€9A17H  5,000,0007T,/
e
Henan Railway Kanggiao Property The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/ Property Management 51% Not
Service Co., Ltd. *** 26 September 2021 Nil Services in Henan applicable
AHRERRNERBERAR *** e N NGRS 51% NEH
2021%9A26H 10,000,000,/ ERRY%
e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

12 SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 12 B AR )
Place and date Registered/ Principal Attributable equity
of incorporation/ issued and activities and interest of the Group
Company name establishment  paid-up capital  place of operation as at 31 December
EMRY/ 2R/ ERG FEEBR R12A318
AR EH 33k % A R RERER Rk EAEERE
2021 2020
20215 20206
Henan Guidao Yueshenghuo The PRC,  RMB10,000,000/ Property Management 51% Not
Life Property Service Co., Ltd. *** 19 November 2021 RMB510,000 Services in Henan applicable
ARSEN ERMEERER AR +*+ HE AR NGIEL: Ok /ES 51% NER
2021%11 8198 10,000,0007T,/ EE RS
AR#510,0007T
E Registered as wholly foreign owned enterprises under PRC law. * RIERBEAEEMAIEBEE LS -
kS Registered as sino-foreign cooperative joint ventures under PRC law. > RBFRBEREFMARINELE -
***  Registered as domestic enterprises under the PRC law o REBERBEEEFMARNERE
The English name of the subsidiaries represents the best effort AR EIERECZHE - HEBARA R
by the management of the Group in translating their Chinese NEBOIAEBEEEER IB=ZEFR X
names as they do not have an official English name. B ER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

INCOME TAX EXPENSES

e I ERAR MR

(Br=EIEHAN - BEESBEAARETTIIR)

13 PSRRI

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®F ARETTT
Current income tax BUEAFR1S R

— PRC corporate income tax — R EMEH 35,295 35,286

Deferred income tax (Note 18) FRIEFTISHL (FIEE18)
— PRC corporate income tax — R EMER (3,697) (3,169)
31,598 32,117

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies
Law of Cayman Islands and accordingly, is exempted from
Cayman Islands income tax. The Company’s subsidiaries in the
British Virgin Island (“BVI”) were incorporated under the
International Business Companies Act of the BVI and
accordingly, are exempted from BVI income tax.

The Group's subsidiaries incorporated in Hong Kong did not
have assessable profits in Hong Kong during year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: same).

Income tax provision of the Group in respect of operations in
the PRC has been calculated at the applicable tax rate on the
estimated assessable profits for the years, based on the existing
legislation, interpretations and practices in respect thereof. The
statutory tax rate is 25%. Under the relevant regulations of the
corporate income tax Law, certain subsidiaries of the Group
qualified as small enterprises earning low profits in the PRC are
subject to a reduced income tax rate of 20%. Income tax
expenses is recognised based on management’s estimate of the
weighted average effective annual income tax rate expected for
the full financial year.

ARBIRBREFASHEARAERSE
SEMRINERRERAR] - FLE
HREBAFRSBEEMEN - ARARE
BHARES(RBEAREES WM
BRARDRERABEAREESRERAE
NEDEFEMAL - B It B % SR RS
HBAREEMEH -

AEBREB M LB E R 7 R &
E2021F 12 A3 BILFENERERE
R (20204 : FHRA) o

AEBBRTEEBHNAEHEEBIR
BRITEN 2B REBEIRRZEFE
B ERBRFEER R EGFTE - &
EMER25% - RIFEEMEHANMA
=P AEENETHEBARNE
BB A DR B - (I EX20% 15
PR MEHRAXDREEREESHE
B8 R & R FERA I T BERFRE
PR T REER o
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSES (continued)

Pursuant to the Detailed Implementation Regulations for
Implementation of the Corporate Income Tax Law issued on 6
December 2007, dividends distributed from the profits
generated by the PRC companies after 1 January 2008 to their
foreign investors shall be subject to this withholding income tax
of 10%, a lower 5% withholding income tax rate may be
applied when the immediate holding companies of the
subsidiaries in Mainland China are incorporated in Hong Kong
and fulfil the requirements to the tax treaty arrangements
between Mainland China and Hong Kong. The Group has not
accrued any withholding income tax for these undistributed
earnings of its subsidiaries in Mainland China as the Group is
able to control the timing of distributions from subsidiaries and
is not expected to distribute these profits out of Mainland China
in the foreseeable future.

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the group entities as follows:

(=B -

13

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

A SEAARETITIIR)

FTS T > (&)

B 2007412 A6 BB MR ERR
SEEEBEMAA) PRERMAFTR
2008F 1 A1 BABREEMFE R HE
IMEEE DR F AR B BB 10% K TEN
Fie®i - mEFRANHBARNEE
ERAREESEMKY  UHFERH
HEEBBRBHELHNERE  JEA
REMNS%EHNAERBE - ARAE
Bzl E AR 2 IRER - BB
A LRI KZEFNE D IKZEH E
WL LASNE T - SRR BN M ph ek
R B A b BT BB R R Y R 5 R B A FT IR
AIFEFOPTISHR ©

S5 7 5= ) B R 5% BT R B OB S R M AR
FERARAEEE RN BN INEF SR E
EANERTRE

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31MBLLEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREEFIT
Profit before income tax bR P 1S % B A1 E 120,157 123,901
Tax charge at applicable income tax rates % 7@ Fi 10 2 FT 551 R UL & 30,224 30,975
Tax effects of: RS2
— Expenses not deductible — AR
for tax purposes 4,026 1,673
— Preferential income tax rates applicable — @& THE R 5
to certain subsidiaries BB/ E (2,652) (531)
PRC corporate income tax R B {2 FTIS AR 31,598 32,117

The effective income tax rate was 26% for the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: 26%).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

14 EARNINGS PER SHARE

The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year ended 31
December 2021. In determining the weighted average number
of ordinary shares in issue, the 100 shares issued upon
incorporation of the Company at 8 October 2020, the 100
shares issued during the reorganisation (Note 24(a)) and the
capitalisation issue of 524,999,800 shares (Note 24(b)) were
retrospectively adjusted as in issue since 1 January 2020.

The Company did not have any potential ordinary shares
outstanding during the year ended 31 December 2021. Diluted
earnings per share was equal to basic earnings per share.

e I ERAR MR

(BrBEIRRIN - FTESBUARE T ITIIR)
14 ZIR&EF|

BRAMNIEHE2021F12 8318 1k
FEARRNEEE AEGEFERAD BT
ERRAIMEFLSETE - REEE R
TEBROINETFIIEE - RARQF
20204 10 A 8 A A 3 B 31T HY 100 % %
19 25 40 HA R 3% 17 /9 100 A% A% 10 (B 72
24(a)) & B ANt 317 K9 524,999,800 A% %
7 (MIEE 11(0) B BT A E 202061 A
1 BAZRB BT -

HZE2021F12A31BIEEE - KA A
I B (TR B AT IE SN B A LB AR AR (D ©
SR ERNNERNFHREREF -

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A31MALLEE

2021 2020
2021 % 2020 4F
Profit attributable to owners of the RAFIHEA AEEFE
Company (RMB'000) (AR%FT) 83,885 88,383
Weighted average number of ordinary BT LB A INEE T I8
shares in issue (in thousands) (FR%) 606,027 525,000
Basic and diluted earnings per share KARHEAE AEEERNETR
attributable to the owners of the AR R FRA
Company during the year (ANERARKESITR)
(expressed in RMB per share) 0.14 0.17
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

15 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT 15 WENZE
Furniture Leasehold Office
Vehicles  and fixtures improvements premises Total
RE  RAREE HEWEEE WAME @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR ARMTR ARETR AR%TR

Year ended 31 December 2020 #Z 20205125311

LEE
Opening net book amount MBS E 963 2,757 154 4,094 7,968
Additions B 9 1,620 150 - 1,779
Acquisition of subsidiaries 1) =N 4 307 771 - 1,082
Disposals HE = (1) = = (1)
Depreciation charge ESH (275) (1,261) (130) (94) (1,760)
Closing net book amount HARIREFE 701 3,422 945 4,000 9,068
As at 31 December 2020 ®2020512A31H
Cost BN 1,883 8,388 1,153 4,094 15,518
Accumulated depreciation e (1,182) (4,966) (208) (94) (6,450)
Net book amount EFE 701 3422 945 4,000 9,068
Year ended 31 December 2021 #Z2021%12 8318

ILEE
Opening net book amount HOEmFE 701 3,422 945 4,000 9,068
Additions NE 43 2,918 284 - 3,250
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 31) Ut B8 K18 2 &) (Pt 31) 14 13 17 - 144
Disposals HeE - (13) - - (13)
Depreciation charge nEZH (169) (1,621) (358) (94) (2.242)
Closing net book amount HARREFE 594 4,819 888 3,906 10,207
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%512A31H
Cost BN 1,945 11,406 1,454 4,094 18,899
Accumulated depreciation 25HTE (1,351) (6,587) (566) (188) (8,692)
Net book amount REFE 594 4,819 888 3,906 10,207
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

15 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

Depreciation expenses were charged to the following
categories in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income:

15 M= NEE @

() MEMIEHAELREWREERA
THEER

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31MALLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Cost of sales SHE A 1,284 1,131
Administrative expenses TR 950 629
Selling and marketing expenses HEREHAX 8 -

2,242 1,760

No property and equipment were pledged as security for
bank borrowings as at 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2020, the office premises with net
book value of RMB4,000,000 were pledged as collateral
for the Group's bank borrowings.

(b) M2021F12A31H > HEWER
RECERBEABRITERZERE

[}
on °

M2020%F 12 A31H © BREFES
AR 4,000,000 TR AMED
WIREAAREBRITERZIER -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(BR=EHERIN - AESEUARETITIIR)

16 REME

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBILLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARETT

Non-current assets — at cost FRBEE — BEAE
Opening balance BRI A A 5,705 5,194
Additions INE - 2,100
Depreciation charge e (1,812) (1,589)
Closing balance BSR4k 3,893 5,705

As at year end RER

Cost AR 8,620 8,620
Accumulated depreciation ZEITE (4,727) (2,915)
Net book amount BREVFE 3,893 5,705

(a)

(i)

The investment properties represent commercial properties
held under leases, which are held for rental yields and are
not occupied by the Group (Note 26).

As at 31 December 2021, the fair values of investment
properties were RMB10,381,000 (31 December 2020:
RMB12,834,000).

Fair value hierarchy

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, as certain of
significant inputs used in the determination of fair value
disclosure of investment properties are arrived at by
reference to certain significant unobservable market data,
the fair value of all investment properties of the Group is
included in level 3 of the fair value measurement
hierarchy.
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R2021F 12 A31H  |EWEN
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12,834,000 7T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)
16 IWEMX @

(ii) fHERM

16 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

(i) Valuation techniques

Fair values of the investment properties of the Group are
generally derived using the term and reversionary method.
This method is based on the tenancy agreements as at the
respective valuation dates. The rental income derived
within the tenancy agreements are discounted by
adopting term yields and the potential reversionary
income are discounted by adopting appropriate
reversionary yields for the period beyond the rental period
in the tenancy agreements. Potential reversionary income
and the reversionary yields are derived from analysis of
prevailing market rents. The prevailing market rents
adopted in the valuation have reference to recent lettings,
within the subject properties and other comparable
properties.

The higher the market rents or the lower the term yields
and reversionary yields, the higher the fair value.

There is no change in the valuation techniques during the
year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

AEBREMENRFE-REN
FHEREREGH - ZITERMN
EHEAPNAERZRSELE - R
HEBZOTENHBANESNES
WAL FHIR SRR - LB LS
AN BEmnE - /QE?EE%J%Z
)\H? R E R e KRR -

ERWARERK GBI ERH
BRSO o [EMRAHER
mEHEE2E R RMEREMA
L E AR T EEBER -

MIZHEE SR R ER K
SmERBE - BIRFHERS

HZE2021F12A31HIEEE - {4
BRI EES) (20204 : §8F) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

(BR=EHERIN - AESEUARETITIIR)

17 B EE

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Customer
Computer relationships
software and backlog Goodwill Total
HEREN EFHAREE [5E @5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000

AR¥ETT ARET TR ARETR ARETT
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZ2020F12831BLEE
Opening net book amount MBS E 1,173 6,184 9,967 17,324
Additions NE 696 - - 696
Acquisition of subsidiaries BT B A E] - - 3,852 3,852
Amortisation B (419) (591) - (1,010)
Closing net book amount AR REFE 1,450 5,593 13,819 20,862
As at 31 December 2020 R2020%512A31H
Cost B 2,742 6,200 13,819 22,761
Accumulated amortisation St (1,292) (607) - (1,899)
Net book amount REEE 1,450 5,593 13,819 20,862
Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ20211F 1283 BILEE
Opening net book amount HERE S E 1,450 5,593 13,819 20,862
Additions NE 215 - - 215
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 31)  WEEHBAA] (Fi5E31) 36 22,100 14,499 36,635
Amortisation Y (635) (959) - (1,594)
Closing net book amount BARREFE 1,066 26,734 28,318 56,118
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%512A31H
Cost B 2,993 28,300 28,318 59,611
Accumulated amortisation Rt (1,927) (1,566) - (3,493)
Net book amount RERE 1,066 26,734 28,318 56,118
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17 B EE #®)
Amortisation of intangible assets has been charged to the B AEMED T AGE2EREERNR
following categories in the consolidated statements of T%)EER -

comprehensive income:

Year ended 31 December
HE12A31MALLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Cost of sales HEKA 1,138 591
Administrative expenses TR X 456 419
1,594 1,010
(a) No intangible asset was restricted or pledged as security (a) M2021F12A318 ' REELE
for liabilities as at 31 December 2021 (2020: same). EREEMSRH A ERTR

(20204 : #[R) o

(b) The excess of the consideration transferred over the fair (b) FrEEAEBRHWENEARNT
value of the identifiable net assets of acquired subsidiaries BRIEEFERTFENISS AR
is recorded as goodwill. Goodwill was comprised of the TEEE - HEBRE
followings:

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARETTT

Acquisition of Zhejiang Lansheng W B T BE % 9,967 9,967
Acquisition of Zhengzhou Kanggiao Y BE B0 R 15 B4
Guotou and Zhengzhou Jixiang BN = 3,852 3,852
Acquisition of Henan Dingfeng g B 0] g S I 14,499 -
28,318 13,819
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

n‘/-ﬁ

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

BRI

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

(9]

Impairment test for goodwiill

Goodwill arises from the Group’s acquisitions of
subsidiaries and was determined at the acquisition date
respectively, being the difference between the purchase
consideration and the fair value of net identifiable assets
of acquirees. Goodwill has been assessed based on the
related acquiree’s cash-generated units for impairment
testing.

The recoverable amount of the cash-generated units were
determined based on value-in-use calculations. These
calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections based on
financial budgets approved by management covering a
five-year period. Management determined a projection
period of five years based on expected development trend
of the acquiree and industry experiences. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using the
estimated terminal growth rates stated below. The growth
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate
for the related industry in which the cash-generated units
operate. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant industry.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e I ERAR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17 EFXEE®)
(c) Impairment test for goodwill (Continued) (0 BEBENR®E)
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations as R2021F12H318 @ EREBE
at 31 December 2021 are as follows: BRI AR BRI T ¢
Zhengzhou
Kanggiao
Guotou and
Zhejiang Zhengzhou Henan
Lansheng Jixiang Dingfeng

EpN B B R
ATER  REMER 7 SR

Expected growth rate of
revenue
Terminal growth rate after

WA R TEHE & R
0.7%-6.4% 1.0%-14.0% 2.5%-70.5%

5 years 3.0% 3.0% 2.5%
Pre-tax discount rate TRATALIR & 24.1% 20.7% 20.2%
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations as M20205612 A31 8 - FREEET
at 31 December 2020 are as follows: HAERANBEEREROT

Zhengzhou
Kanggiao
Guotou and

Zhejiang Zhengzhou
Lansheng Jixiang

Ep)N BRRB B4R
ATER  REMNERF

Expected growth rate of revenue U A HY 78 HA 1S R R 3.0%-11.8%  2.7%-6.0%
Terminal growth rate after 5 years hFER R mIE R 3.0% 3.0%
Pre-tax discount rate FiATALEE = 23.5% 20.7%
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17 BILEE #)
(c) Impairment test for goodwill (Continued) (0 BEBENR®E)
According to the result of the impairment testing, the BERENSANER  WEeELSE
estimated recoverable amounts of cash-generated units LA hEE A Uk Ol € ZEH8 H E R E
exceed their carrying amount (i.e. the headroom) as (BNgRr&E) AT -
below:

As at 31 December

M®12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Zhejiang Lansheng T EE B 12,711 3,371
Zhengzhou Kanggiao Guotou and M RIS 1% R B M S 1
Zhengzhou Jixiang 6,264 567
Henan Dingfeng i S 2,969  Not applicable
TERA
176 Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021

BRUEFEEERAT — T —FFR
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A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

17 INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued) 17 BEEE®)

() Impairment test for goodwill (Continued) (o) BEREAR®)
EIREDEEERENRETHRR
EAHT o TREHIFE R EERE
BH B E B RN EREERE
BEFTENEB N L 5 RIMBRER
THE :

Management has undertaken sensitivity analysis on the
impairment test of goodwill. The following table sets forth
possible changes to the key assumptions of the
impairment test and the changes taken in isolation in the
VIU calculations that would remove the remaining
headroom respectively:

As at 31 December

R12A318
2021 2020
202145 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBTT ARETT
Zhejiang Lansheng AT EE B
Annual revenue growth rate FU AL R =& -110.1% -5.7%
Pre-tax discount rate B Fi BT BA 2R = 20.3% 4.3%
Zhengzhou Kanggiao Guotou and ZRN BEAE B 4% R M H 4
Zhengzhou Jixiang
Annual revenue growth rate FWALRE -23.8% -1.4%
Pre-tax discount rate MR Fi AL IR &R 85.1% 4.5%
Henan Dingfeng i A SR
Annual revenue growth rate FU AR =X -0.8%  Not applicable
TiERA
Pre-tax discount rate MR Fi AL IR & 1.2% Not applicable
T iEA

Based on the above assessment and the historical result, B L G REE S B
RERIERPINESEERNEE
REHREMEEIEES) - A
BN EAEMHREMBEBLE
FBER2021412 A31 HRyA 4 [El
©% (2020512 A318 : #RA) -

our directors have not identified any reasonably possible
change in the key assumptions on which the recoverable
amount is based that would cause the carrying amounts
of the cash-generated units to exceed their respective
recoverable amounts as at 31 December 2021 (31
December 2020: same).
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX 18 EILEFTISF

(@ As at 31 December 2021, there was no offsetting of
deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax
liabilities balances within the same tax jurisdiction (31
December 2020: same). The analysis of deferred income
tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities was as

(a)

HZE2021%F12 8318 - B—H%
AREERNTNEEELEAESHRE
EBEIERTS T B EESREENG
(2020512 B 318 : #8RA) - &
AR B EREEMSHARBR

follows: ST :
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARETIT
Deferred income tax assets: FIEFTISTEE :
— Deferred income tax assets to be ~ — #7712 & B AU [E #Y
recovered within 12 months REFTSHEE 9,485 5,543
— Deferred income tax assets to be ~ — #7112 {8 A & Uk Bl &9
recovered after more than BEIEFTE T EE
12 months 503 1,001
9,988 6,544
Deferred income tax liabilities: FEFTSRAE
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — #&7 12 & A AUk [E] &9
recovered within 12 months ELERTSAaE (714) (161)
— Deferred income tax liabilities to be — &7 12 1 B 12 42 H
recovered after more than ELEFTEREE
12 months (6,314) (1,595)
(7,028) (1,756)
2,960 4,788
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(Br=EIEHAN - BEESBEAARETTIIR)

18 IEAEPTISFA ()

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(b)  The net movements on deferred income tax account were (b)

BEFSHRARPEFZEFINT

as follows:

Year ended 31 December

M®12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
At the beginning of the year F4) 4,788 1,514
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 31)  UEEMIE A &) (Fi7E31) (5,525) 105
Credited to profit or loss FFABZ® 3,697 3,169
At the end of the year FR 2,960 4,788
(c)  The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities (© & 22021F K&2020%F 12 A31H
during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, was IEFE - BEMGEHEERE RN
as follows: FEINT
Deferred income tax assets EEFBHEE
Net impact
Allowance of right-of-use
on doubtful Accrued assets and
receivables expenses Tax losses lease liabilities Total
EREEER
HESE
ERRIER A [ESHE S REBX HETE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARET ARETR ARBTL ARETR
As at 1 January 2020 HZ20205181H 1,687 739 173 886 3,485
Credited to profit or loss STAER 658 1,042 1,114 140 2,954
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEHB AR - - 105 - 105
As at 31 December 2020 HZ20205128310 2,345 1,781 1,392 1,026 6,544
As at 1 January 2021 220211818 2,345 1,781 1,392 1,026 6,544
Credited/(charged) A/ (R E) B
to profit or loss 1,692 - 2,087 (335) 3,444
As at 31 December 2021 BZ2021%12R8318 4,037 1,781 3479 691 9,988
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

18 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

(=B AESBEUAARETITIIR)

18 IRIEFTIFFA ()

() (Continued) © (#&)
Deferred income tax liabilities EEFEHERE
Value of
Excess of intangible
value of assets
property from identified
acquisition in business
of a subsidiary combination Total
Wi — &
ME A REH REBEH
YEEE B #Y
BmEs EBREEEE et
RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AR®T T ARET
As at 1 January 2020 BIE2020F1A1H (421) (1,550) (1,971)
Credited to profit or loss FFAB&E 18 197 215
As at 31 December 2020 #EHZ2020F12 4318 (403) (1,353) (1,756)
As at 1 January 2021 BZE2021F1H81H8 (403) (1,353) (1,756)
Credited to profit or loss FFAEE 14 239 253
Acquisition of a subsidiary U BE — &I} B A &)
(Note 31) (PtzE31) - (5,525) (5,525)
As at 31 December 2021 #ZE2021%12831H (389) (6,639) (7,028)
(d) As at 31 December 2021, the Group has no cumulative (dy #HZ2021F12H31H  K&EEI

BARERBELEFSEHEEN Rt
i 78 18 % (202012 A318 : 1/
&) e

tax losses which was not recognised as deferred income
tax assets (31 December 2020: same).
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A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

19 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 19 BB SR T A

As at 31 December

M®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Financial asset at amortised cost REBHERATENEREE

Trade and other receivables (Note 20) B 5 Kk E b sRIE (F15E20) 419,729 717,258
Restricted cash ZR&RE 1,325 1,324
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) RHe kB EEWPE21) 540,833 134,758

961,887 853,340

Financial liabilities at amortised costs Z#F 2N ESREE

Trade and other payables (excluding B 5 KR E A T RIE

accrued payroll and other (T BEEGTIER

taxes payables) H b fEFEIR) 197,529 148,349
Lease liabilities (Note 26) HEaE(FE26) 9,785 13,185
Bank borrowings RITEK - 346,984

207,314 508,518
There was no offsetting of financial assets and liabilities as at 31 HE2021E 128318 WESREE
December 2021 (31 December 2020: same). R A EHIKSS (2020612 8318 : 48RE) -
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BRI

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND B 5 N H i EULERIA A K TR
PREPAYMENTS (NE/e5
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T ARETIT
Trade receivables (Note (a)) Z 5 WA (M3 (a))
— Related parties (Note 32 (d)) — BAE 5 (M9=E32(d)) 189,168 258,157
— Third parties —%=5 131,857 95,547
321,025 353,704
Less: allowance for impairment of W B DR IE R E R
trade receivables (Note (e)) (FfF5E (e)) (14,033) (6,945)
306,992 346,759
Other receivables ,HJJ@FEHSZ%\IE
— Loans to related parties (Note 32(d)) BT R 5 (MIRE32(d) - 301,626
— Amounts due from related parties — e 75 w38 (B 7 32(d))
(Note 32(d)) 74,837 47,439
— Loan to a third party BRT—RE=FH - 7,200
— Cash advances to non-controlling = F'HH [t HO3R & B
interests 230 244
— Interest receivables from related — FEUR R 5 A B (B9 RE 32(d))
parties (Note 32(d)) - 8,380
— Interest receivables from third parties — FEUE =5 7515 - 422
— Deposits — &% 3,565 1,440
— Cash advances to a third party (Note (c))— 128 = FFaEE & (MizE(c) 20,926 -
— Others — Hfb 15,219 6,334
114,777 373,085
Less: allowance for impairment of other & : i F&E U % 18 i (8 8 5
receivables (Note (e)) (Fff5E (e)) (2,040) (2,586)
112,737 370,499
Prepayments TS FRIE
— Prepayments to third party — [AE=HTENFKIE 66,674 89
— Prepayment for listing expenses — FERBEMNFKIE - 2,126
66,674 2,215
Total #Et 486,403 719,473
Less: non-current portion of prepayments 3 : &t ZRIBHISER BN EB D
(Note (f)) (BEEE () (65,629) —
Current portion of trade and other B 5 N Eh Wk IE K
receivables and prepayments TENFRIBR B H o 420,774 719,473
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Trade receivables mainly arise from property management
services income and related value-added services income.

Property management services income are received in
accordance with the terms of the relevant services
agreements. Service income from property management
service is due for payment by the residents upon the
issuance of demand note.

Value-added services income is usually with a credit term
ranges from 0 to 180 days.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2021, the ageing analysis of
the trade receivables based on recognition date were as

(B BEHI

e I ERAR MR

BESBENAARETITINIR)

20 B M EAMEWFIAN &8
NECENC )

(a)

B RUHRATEREMEEER
WA A RASR IR ERSHA -

Y E TR IR Wk T IR B AR R AR S
1955 HO fER SR URER © (£ P R 3 AR
BB ML S B B Y 2 E I RS
H) ARG A

356 (8 AR M 0125 PR BB 3 10 T 74

0& 180K °

M20204%F K20214%12A831H
B S EINGRIEN ER H B R R o

follows: Hran
As at 31 December
MW12A31H
2021 2020
20215 2020
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR® T ARBT T
0-180 days 0Z£ 180Kk 185,652 288,731
181-365 days 181 £365K 85,039 19,195
1 to 2 years 1= 2% 34,902 32,294
2 to 3 years 2FE3F 9,099 7,442
3 to 4 years 3E4F 3,648 4,713
Over 4 years AFEA 2,685 1,329
321,025 353,704

Cash advanced to a third party was interest free and
repayable on demand. The amount has been collected
subsequently.

As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, trade and other
receivables were denominated in RMB and the carrying
amounts of trade and other receivables approximated
their fair values.

AFE=TENREE /R ELEEK
B8 - SO NERYE -

M2021%F12A31H - E5 NHM
EUIGRIBTIAARESE  ES5K
H bW IER R EEE AT E
BHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

20 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 20 B 5 Kk E b UK LA K T8

PREPAYMENTS (Continued) N ERIE ()

(e) Information about the impairment of trade and other (e) BHNKEhFEKGRIBRE N RARE
receivables and the Group’s exposure to credit risk was B FrE R = B RS A B R R 5
disclosed in Note 3.1.2(ii). 3.1.2(1) NI EE -

(f)  As at 31 December 2021, the non-current portion of ()  H2021F12 A31 8 » FBRFZKIER
prepayments represented a prepayment of EmBE oI E —EMEEER
RMB65,629,000 for the acquisition of 80% equity interest T ATF80% FEMTENREAR
in an property management service company. # 65,629,000 7T ©

21 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 21 R LREFEY
As at 31 December
M®12A31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARETTT

Cash at bank and on hand RITNFHERS 540,833 134,758
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group’s cash at bank 2021 F 2020612 A31H * A& E
and on hand was denominated in the following currencies: RISRTT R F IR S JHA N F| EM1E ¢

As at 31 December

R12831H
2021 2020
20216 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

RMB AR 528,052 134,758
HK$ BIT 11,369 =
US$ e 1,412 =

540,833 134,758
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

RESTRICTED CASH 22 XREIRE
Restricted cash mainly represents guarantee deposits in the XRHBESCFEEETYESEEARN
bank for certain property management projects. All the BB ITER - BTA SR HI3R & 15 A
restricted cash were denominated in RMB. ARBEEHE o
FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 23 HAFEFABRZNERE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS =
As at
31 December
2021
R12A31H
20214
RMB’000
ARETR
— Wealth management products — BEEM 21,018
As at 31 December 2021, financial assets at fair value through 202112 A318 ' BAFE AR
profit or loss represented unlisted financial products purchased mNeREEREEERERITNIELT
from commercial banks. BRIEm °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Bx 2 A& 5BASN

A SBEAARETITIIR)

24 SHARE CAPITAL 24 %7K
Equivalent
Nominal nominal
Number value of value of
of ordinary ordinary ordinary
shares shares shares
SRR
ZERHE ZEREE ZEEE
HK$ RMB’'000
BT ARETT
Authorised: EE

As at 31 December 2020 72020912 A31H 38,000,000 380,000 320

Increase of authorised shares AT AR (BIEE (b))

(Note (b)) 962,000,000 9,620,000 8,050
As at 31 December 2021 7R2021%12 A31H 1,000,000,000 10,000,000 8,370
Issued: 2817 :

As at 31 December 2020 720205 12 A31H 100 1 -
Issue of shares in connection with ~ EREE 48 BARI AR (D 31T

the reorganisation (Note (a)) (3£ (@) 100 1 -
Issue of shares in connection with BRI EAR{L 21T H R

the capitalisation issue (Note (b)) A& 27T (i3 (b)) 524,999,800 5,249,998 4,373
Issue of shares in connection with  EEZRAF] F A REH

the Company’s listing (Note (c)) R D 37T (MisE () 175,000,000 1,750,000 1,458
As at 31 December 2021 R2021%12 A31H 700,000,000 7,000,000 5,831
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

24 SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

(a)

On 28 January 2021, New Hefeng Holdings Limited (“New
Hefeng”) transferred the entire shareholding in Friend
Holdings it held to the Company in exchange for the
allotment and issue of 10 shares in the Company to New
Hefeng. Friend Holdings then became a direct wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company. On the same date, 90
shares were allotted and issued to Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo
Holdings Limited (“Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI") at a
price of HK$0.01 per share. Upon completion of such
share transfer and allotment, the Company was owned as
to 95% and 5% by Kanggiaoyue Shenghuo BVI and New
Hefeng, respectively.

On 17 June 2021, the authorised share capital of the
Company increased to 1,000,000,000 shares with par
value of HK$0.01 each.

Pursuant to the shareholder’s written resolution on 17
June 2021, conditional upon the share premium account
of the Company being credited as a result of the global
offering, the Company capitalised an amount of
HK$5,249,998 (equivalent to approximately
RMB4,373,000) standing as credit of its share premium
account in paying up in full of 524,999,800 shares at par
which were allotted and issued to shareholders of the
Company at close of business on 15 July 2021 in
proportion to their respective shareholdings.

On 16 July 2021, the Company issued a total of
175,000,000 ordinary shares at a price of HK$3.68 per
share. The net proceeds of HK$628,940,000 (equivalent
to RMB520,046,000) were credited to share capital and
premium after deduction of the capitalised listing
expenses.

(B BEHI

e B ISR ER MY EE

BESBENAARETITINIR)

24 I&7R (&)

(a)

202141 H28H @ #FAKL K
BRAR ([FIRE]) AR REE
HATH B mEERizEiRe 2Bk
o DARENA R B M FT R AL &
BITI0OMRR D - R EE Hxﬁtfzz
KAERRRNEEEZENBA

[ B+ 90 /% i% 17 1% & R 0. 01,%71
WERERE KRBT TERN AR
TR AR A A ([ EERB R AEEBVI)
REBRMHEREREETKE - K
ANEHEBIRAEEBVI R AL S
BIER 95% K 5% s °

R2021E6 178 » X RAFRLETE
A% 7N 4% Z= 1,000,000,000 f% » & A%
HE{E0.01/87T °

BIERER2021F6 A17HHE
R - WARFEHRMDRERR
EHRBEEMARBESE - AAAK
5,249,998 L (HHE R AR
4,373,000 70) fEAE M EERA
IR - DARE (A £ 8 524,999,800 ik
B HR2021FE7 158 KT
AR IR R & B AR B B M 2N A &1 AR
RALEE KRBT ©

R2021F7H16H  KAFUE
BR3.687% T KB IE & 1746 #
175,000,000 % £ @ % - FT1S 3018
F 8.628,940,0007% 7T (4H & 7 A
R 520,046,000 7T ) £ 1k & A
ft LR EF AREKREE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Bx 2 A& 5BASN

25 OTHER RESERVES

A SBEAARETITIIR)

25 EffEfE

Foreign
Capital Share Statutory currency
reserves premium reserve translation Total
BARE R aE EEAES MEBRE H
(Note (a))
(P&t ()
As at 1 January 2020 12020518 1A 5,000 - 2,515 - 7,515
Appropriation of statutory reserves  #5E B fE 2l - - 467 - 467
As at 31 December 2020 R2020E 128318 5,000 - 2,982 - 7,982
As at 1 January 2021 R2021%1810 5,000 - 2,982 - 7,982
Issue of shares in connection with the EAZA{Z(THHEL

capitalisation issue (Note 24(b) fn%47 (FizE24(0)) - (4373) - - (.373)
Issue of shares in connection with the EZZARA 7] ETA FIE)

Company’s listing (Note 24(c)) Mrfn 817 (FiteE 24(0) - 518,588 - - 518,588
Currency translation differences SR EEs - - - (2,606) (2,606)
Appropriation of statutory reserves %5 218 (fit3E (a))

(Note (a)) - - 5111 - 5711
Capital injection from shareholders AR FMREE A (FiHE (b))

of the Company (Note (b)(i) 25,600 - - - 25,600
Deemed distribution to the then ~ EAFAEEEE RER{EH

shareholder of the Group arising B9 E R (& (b))

from the reorganisation (Note (b)(ii) (5,000) - - - (5,000)
As at 31 December 2021 R2021E128318 25,600 514,215 8,693 (2,606) 545,902
(a) Statutory reserve (a) EZEALAES

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the
PRC, the PRC group entities are required to appropriate
no less than 10% of their profit after income tax
calculated under PRC accounting rules and regulations to
the statutory reserve fund, until the accumulated total of
the fund reaches 50% of their registered capital. The
statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon approval by
the relevant authority, to offset losses carried forward
from previous years or to increase the capital of the
respective PRC Group entities.

Kanggqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021
BREREEEEARAE T - —FFR

R EARRR A ARG - FEE
EEREKTORBEPESE R
A RAROIFFERFTEHETE10%
BALEATES EEZEESHR
%ﬂ%tﬂﬁaﬁé$mw%%

ICHAE RiLER - EERTE
%%T%ﬁﬁ%@&igmﬁm%
BENETEEREENER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

25 OTHER RESERVES (Continued)

(b) Other reserve

Prior to the reorganisation accomplished in January 2021,

the Group was principally operated by Kanggiao

Yueshenghuo and its subsidiaries, and Kanggiao

Technology Service and its subsidiary, which were

incorporated in the PRC (together, the “Operating

Companies”) and ultimately controlled by Mr. Song. The

following steps was undertaken in 2021 in relation to the

reorganisation:

0)

(ii)

Capital injection into Kangqiao Yueshenghuo
by an independent third party and Mr. Song

In January 2021, the Group received capital injection
of RMB25,600,000 from an independent third
party, Keanda Holdings and Mr. Song. On 4 January
2021, Keanda Holdings acquired 5% of the equity
interests in Kanggiao Yueshenghuo from Henan
Boyuan Quanjing Enterprise Consulting Co., Ltd.
(“Henan Boyuan”), the then shareholder of
Kanggiao Yueshenghuo and a related party
controlled by Mr. Song, via capital injection.

Transfer of 95% equity interest in Kangqgiao
Yueshenghuo to the Group

On 27 January 2021, Henan Kanggiao Yueshenghuo
acquired 95% of the equity interests in Kanggiao
Yueshenghuo from Henan Boyuan at a cash
consideration of RMB5,000,000. Kanggiao
Yueshenghuo then was owned by Henan Kanggiao
Yueshenghuo and Keanda Holdings as to 95% and
5%, respectively.

(Br =B

B ERNARETITIIR)

25 EfhfEfE @)
H

(b)

M 202141 A EARA] - NEE
FEHRBIRERRENE AR
KRB IR R E K& AR (R
AR R AN L B B OR % A S AR R

il -

miEEEMNBARDKEE -

R2021 FEREBHEEIT NI

0]

(i)

BYE=ATRRAELETESR
B4R

202161 A - RN& B U2
BUE= AR RERERER
% X E AR # 25,600,000
JLo 20211 H4H - #
LERBFTEBRBUESE
ERRRTEERESEE
ERFHABRAR(ATEE
R ) R S A ) RE B 7
L B R B A0 A2 VE Y 5% AR o

BAREEEZEREBRER
#995% BR &

2021518278 @ JAEE
BHAEFTETEERKER
BRGS0 A B 89 95% A 4 - IR
& B A A R ¥ 5,000,000
T o MRS AEEBNE
BB IR A TE KRB R E D B
H95% K 5% °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NP Ed

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

26 LEASES

(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet

(BR=EHERIN - AESEUARETITIIR)

26 HE

(a)

REEERBRACHERE
:

As at 31 December

MW12A31H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARETT
Investment properties REWE
— Leased properties (Note 16 and (i)  — FAEW 2 (M 16 5. () 3,893 5,705
Right-of-use assets FERAEEE
— Properties (Note (i) — W (M%) 3,130 3,377
7,023 9,082
Lease liabilities (Note (i)) HEAE(MHEa)
Current BNEA 5,002 5,880
Non-current SEBNER 4,783 7,305
9,785 13,185

(i)  The Group leases certain properties from both
related parties and third parties on fixed periods
over one year, of which the ones held for rental
yields and not occupied by the Group are recognised
as investment properties and the others are
recognised as right-of-use assets. Lease liabilities
represent the corresponding liabilities of the leased
assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

26 LEASES (Continued)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated

(9]

statement of comprehensive income

e I ERAR MR

(BrBEIRRIN - FTESBUARE T ITIIR)
26 HE )

(b) FEXHERBERACERE
]

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBT T
Rental income from investment HEMEEBWA
properties 3,216 4,004
Depreciation of investment properties % &9 (fizE 16)
(Note 16) 1,812 1,589
Depreciation of right-of use assets EREEERE ([E9)
(Note 9) 1,104 1,058
Interests on lease liabilities HEAEMNE
(included in finance costs — net) (GTARLE K AF 58 ) 1,015 1,348
Rental expenses relating to short-term ER%S HATH E AR 5
leases (included in cost of sales and GTASHER A RITHRA)
administrative expense) (Note 9) (PfFEE9) 656 3,093

The cash outflow of rental expenses relating to short-term
leases and the settlement of lease liabilities for the year
ended 31 December 2021 was RMB5,928,000 (2020:
RMB3,625,000).

(c) EZ=2021%12A31BILEE - &
RHAEsENEcASIREES
BEHEER AL AARE
5,928,000 70 (20204 : A R ¥
3,625,0007T) °
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(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

27 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR MR

(BR=EHERIN - AESEUARETITIIR)

27 B5 NEAMEMNFIE

As at 31 December

R12A318
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AREBTT
Trade payables (Note (a)) B S FRIE (M )
— Related parties (Note 32(d)) — BAEE 77 (M93E32(d)) 627 25
— Third parties —%E=7 66,113 51,464
66,740 51,489
Other payables H b E /I
— Amounts due to related parties — FE AR 5 5} (MTRE32(d))
(Note 32(d)) 21,890 20,287
— Payables for acquisition of a subsidiary — W& — R T E A 7 #5018 4,201 -
— Deposits from third parties — F=HEe 42,796 33,232
— Accrued payroll and workforce payables — &zt T & K Eff 45758 40,974 56,704
— Other tax payables — HAbENTRIE 10,239 20,453
— Others — HAith 61,902 43,341
182,002 174,017
Total #Et 248,742 225,506
Less: non-current portion of other payables J& : FEft ZIEHIIERENEZE D (5,450) -
Current portion of trade and other B 5 N E A W IR R ) ER
payables 243,292 225,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

(@  Asat 31 December 2021 and 2020, ageing analysis of the
trade payables (including amounts due to related parties
which were trade in nature) based on invoice date were

27

e I ERAR MR

(BrBEIRRIN - FTESBUARE T ITIIR)
B 5 N E AN RIE )

(@) H20214F K2020F12H318 °
ERBEZHHELNE S BB
(BIEBE S E e 5 &

as follows: I5) MERE DT ¢
As at 31 December
M12H31H
2021 2020
2021 & 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT AREEFIT
Up to 1 year BB F 65,594 45,225
1 to 2 years 18224 929 3,014
2 to 3 years 2E 3% 82 2,194
Over 3 years 3FLAE 135 1,056
66,740 51,489

(b) As at 31 December 2021, trade and other payables were
mainly denominated in RMB and the carrying amounts of
trade and other payables approximated their fair values
(31 December 2020: same).

DIVIDENDS

A final dividend in respect of year ended 31 December 2021 of
RMBO0.03 per ordinary share have been proposed by the Board
of the Company and are subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the Annual General Meeting to be held on 8
June 2022. The final dividend will be distributed out of the
Company’s share premium. These consolidated financial
statements have not reflected these dividends payable.

28

(b)y EHZE2021%F12A831H  ES5RE
hEMNZTBIENAARENE &
5 REA B FRIEMRmEERELE
AFE(2021512 8318 : #8R@) °

i gs)

AAREEEEERRERZE2021F 12
A31BIEFESREBRARE0O03T
KR HARR B - WZAF 202246 H8H
BITNRRBFAS EERELE - K
HARR B AR A BB AR & B IRE -
ZEGAUBRRIARBRZEEMNR

o

iy
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION 29 BWEnE&r
(a) Cash generated from operations () BEELBS

Year ended 31 December
HE1NAMBLEE

2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Profit before income tax %P5 gl A E 120,157 123,901
Adjustments for: IR -
— Depreciation of property and — MEREETE (H5E15)

equipment (Note 15) 2,242 1,760
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets — (A& EHE (M3 26)

(Note 26) 1,104 1,058
— Depreciation of investment — REMEFE (s 16)

properties (Note 16) 1,812 1,589
— Net impairment losses on financial — 4 @t & &R (8 5185 48

assets (Note 3.1.2 (d)) (fi7£E3.1.2 (d)) 6,542 2,701
— Amortisation of intangible assets ~ — & A= (FizE17)

(Note 17) 1,594 1,010
— Interest income from loans to related — &3k F B8 5 M5 = H &)

parties and third parties (Note 7) FEUWA (FEFET) (4,627) (19,195)
— Gains on disposal of property and — HE Y KR EKR

equipment (Note 8) (Mg5E8) 8) (1)
— Gains from financial assets at fair ~— IR A FEFET ABZEH

value through profit or loss BRELE E W (FTEE8)

(Note 8) (380) =
— Share of (profit)/loss of investments — {5 LA AR

accounted for using the equity ®E&E CaF),/ EiE

method (244) 57
— Net foreign exchange losses (Note 8) — SMNE E18;% 48 (M{3£8) 2,312 =
— Finance costs — net (Note 11) — BEKAFRE (FE11) 6,923 20,699

137,427 133,579

Changes in working capital: EEECED)
— Restricted cash — XRFHE 1) (1,224)
— Inventories —FE (1,075) -
— Contract liabilities —&aRAaRE 32,564 34,814
— Trade and other receivables and ~ — & 5 K H i g U 7018

prepayments NI FIR (59.765) (140,227)
— Trade and other payables — B 5 N E th FE RIE 6,398 46,556
Cash generated from operations BEEAIRS 115,548 73,498
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

29 CASH FLOW INFORMATION (Continued) 29 Hens&f @)
(b) Net debt reconciliations (b) EBEFEEHER
Cash
Bank Interest Lease advances from
borrowings payable liabilities third parties Total
E=HH
RITER EMFE HEsE BEBH EH)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR%TR  ARBTR  ARMTR  ARETR

As at 1 January 2020 202061 A 18 55,100 536 11,812 - 67,448
Cash flows Reng 291,834 (18,565) (3,450) - 269,369
Addition of leases HEZM - - 3,475 - 3,475
Accrued interest expenses EstRISREY - 19,765 1,348 - 21,113
As at 31 December 2020 2020612 A31H 346,984 1,736 13,185 - 361,905
As at 1 January 2021 20211418 346,984 1,736 13,185 - 361,905
Cash flows Reng (346,984) (5.692) (5272) 3,435 (354,513)
Addition of leases HEEm - - 857 - 857
Accrued interest expenses JEst A8 R (i 11)

(Note 11) - 7,380 1,015 - 8,395
As at 31 December 2021 12021512 318 - 3,424 9,785 3,435 16,644
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e SRR MY EE

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Bx 2 A& 5BASN

30 AIE

30 COMMITMENTS
Lease commitments — as lessee

The Group leases offices and staff dormitories under non-
cancellable lease agreements with lease term less than 12
months. The majority of lease agreements with lease term less
than 12 months were signed with third parties and renewable
at the end of the lease period based on rates mutually agreed.
The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable short-term leases are as follows:

A SBEAARETITIIR)

HEEE — FEREEA

AEERBEIIREHAEHIEER D
=EREIES  AHLR12MEA - X
DR NREANEERBERE=T7%
R AN HEEERRRBEHEERS
B FARHEMEER T ARSKEE
SRRETEMT

As at 31 December

M12831H
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETTT

Up to 1T year THBE1F

11 444
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

31 BUSINESS COMBINATION

On 19 October 2021, the Company completed its acquisition of
51% equity interests in Henan Dingfeng which engaged in
provision of property management services in the PRC at a cash
consideration of RMB25,500,000 from a third party.

The acquired business of Dingfeng Property has contributed to
total revenue of RMB4,467,000 and net profit of RMB512,000
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 from the
acquisition date to 31 December 2021.

Had Dingfeng Property been consolidated from 1 January 2021,
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 would show pro-
forma revenue of RMB799,205,000 and net profit of
RMB91,069,000.

e I ERAR MR

(Br=EIEHAN - BEESBEAARETTIIR)

31 EBEHF

R2021F 108198 AARNUEERK
8 AR # 25,500,000 7C 72K B 28 = 5 Uk
RPN EYEERERBESATE
B4 51% RS AE -

BUEBRZE2021F12 8318 Frik
BRSEYEEBRBE2021412 A4
BMAEFERASEERBKAARK
4,467,0007T F % A1 A K #512,0007T °

ERIEMEB2021F1 1B RS G
BB =2021F 12 A31HIEFEAEE
Wira2EWERPNEZERAKAA
R# 799,205,000t - M EFFIEAARE
91,069,000 7T °

Kangqiao Service Group Limited / Annual Report 2021

BERGEEEREERAT/ —T-—FFR

197




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31 XFae 0t
Details of the purchase consideration, the net assets acquired WERE -  IKBEEFELREEFE
and goodwill were as follows: R
As at
19 October
2021
20215
10H19H
RMB’000
ARBT
Total purchase considerations BUERE
— Cash paid —BfNEE 20,400
— Payable — Rt EIE 5,100
— Effect of cash flow discount — REMETENTE (899)
24,601
Recognised amounts of identifiable assets R MR EER TREAE
acquired and liabilities assumed HNERIREHE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRFASEEY 13,107
Property and equipment (Note 15) EYE A IENEY) 144
Intangible assets (Note 17) R A RE (FE17) 22,136
Trade and other receivables B 5 Rk H 0 R GRIE 8,208
Deferred income tax liabilities (Note 18) RIEFTS I A& (5E18) (5,525)
Trade and other payables B 5 N B ER IR (11,949)
Current income tax liabilities BNERF1S R B & (391)
Contract liabilities ERAE (5,923)
Total identifiable net assets Al BB EFERE 19,807
Less: NCI W SRR R (9,705)
Net assets acquired B EEFE 10,102
Goodwill (Note 17) & (MEE17) 14,499
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

31 BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 31 ¥KEH@
(a) Acquisition of Henan Dingfeng (a) Wis um Sl
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition of Dingfeng HZE2021F12A31HILFE -
Property during the year ended 31 December 2021: WEE SIS EMELNIE SR EF
Ll
RMB’000
ARETT
Cash consideration paid EfIRENRE (20,400)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired MU B B IS 83 & I
at the acquisition date NEEEY 13,107
Net cash outflow on the acquisition I B /3R & 7 (VS RE (7,293)
The following table sets forth each key assumption on THRETESEEEAETRESRE
which management has been based its cash flow BIAEEITR 202110 A19HEE
projections to undertake the purchase price allocation as BRAOMAZIEMEREE
at 19 October 2021:
Henan
Dingfeng
AR IE
Compound annual growth rate of revenue RIBABRE AR ARES FIERE
during the projection period 33.1%
Gross margin during the projection period RTE R R R ) 7 2= 24.7%-29.0%
Terminal growth rate 4R i 18 R SR 2.5%
Pre-tax discount rate FiRTALIR & 22.1%
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(@) Name and relationship with related parties

The following individual/entities were related parties of

the Group that had significant balances and/or

transactions as at/during the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020:

(=B AESBEUAARETITIIR)

32 BBLTRS

(@) BE EWRERB T K
1%

LTEA/BERBAAEEHE
20214 K&2020F 12 A31H8 Ik F
EEERBEHRK XRS5 EH
Al

English Name Chinese Name
KL EHB hNHE BB
Ultimate controlling shareholder BAEZERRKR

Mr. Song REZ

Entities controlled by Mr. Song RELFMEHIER

Beijing Tongdao Shenghe Investment Co., Ltd.
and its subsidiaries

Zhengzhou Kanggiao Yidu Educational Technology
Co, Ltd*

Shenzhen Kanggiao Educational Technology Co, Ltd*

Joint ventures and associates of entities
controlled by Mr. Song

Henan Xinfuyuan Property Co., Ltd*

Zhengzhou Jinchuan Property Co., Ltd*

* The English name of the related parties represents the best

effort by the management of the Group in translating their
Chinese names as they do not have an official English name.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 32 B TR 5 4)

(b) Significant transactions with related (b) EXBEBAIRS
parties
Save as disclosed in elsewhere in the consolidated BRARNGAEMGHRERSERESE
financial statements, the Group had the following SN L 22021 F K2020512 A
significant transactions with related parties during the 31 Eljtif ZKE@EEF&%% TTHETT
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020. TH|EARZ

Year ended 31 December

BZ12A31BLEEE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARETT

Provision of property management 12 ft¥) 2% &2 R %
services
— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — RELFTIEHIERE 16,602 16,758

Provision of value-added services 12t IF % 3 12 FH R
to non-property owners

— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — RELFTIEGERE 217,471 166,087
— Joint ventures and associates of = K?Eiﬁfﬁ il E B

entities controlled by Mr. Song B R A A 9,006 11,260

226,477 177,347 B
Provision of community Rt ERZERE
value-added services

— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — RIECEFTIEHIERE 22,459 37,803
— Joint ventures and associates of — RIEEFTIEHIEIER

entities controlled by Mr. Song B2 NEE AT 199 21

22,658 37,824
Lease transactions with entities HERGEFTEFERN
controlled by Mr. Song HERS

— Rental expenses relating to — HEHHEEEHENEeRX

short-term leases - 281
— Interests on lease liabilities — HERZAE 814 984
Interest income (Note 7) FEWA (FHEET)
— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — RELFTIEGERE 4,088 18,292
All of the transactions above were carried out in the FIER SR AKBEMIET
normal course of the Group’s business and on terms as TEBIE R IR AT 5% 77 1 FE B0 65
agreed between the transacting parties. T °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R R MR

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)
32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(c) Key management compensation
Compensations for key management other than those for

directors (Note 36) for the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020 were set out as below:

(Br =B EHI -

FrESBEUAARETITIIR)
32 Bt HR 5 )
(0 *EEEEREHM

#H 20214 K202012H31H
IEEE . TEEHEEK S K 5 B

(B=%0(MEE36) BRAN) H 540
o

Year ended 31 December
BZE12A3MBILLEE

2021 2020

20214 2020 4F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR® T ARBTT

Wages, salaries and bonuses I& - Hehita 1,469 1,243
Contribution to pension scheme BRETEIERFAX

expenses 49 6

Other employee benefits Hih g EEF 91 76

1,609 1,325

(d) Balances with related parties

(d) EERAEETS WVARR

As at 31 December

MW12H31H
2021 2020
20215 20204
Trade receivables (Note 20)(i) B 5 EURIE (B 20) (i)
— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — R E e 179,905 247,425
— Joint ventures and associates of = Kf‘ﬁiﬁﬁ% fli=R:cz)
entities controlled by Mr. Song SN E R T] 9,263 10,732
189,168 258,157
Trade payables (Note 27)(i) B 5 B RE (EE27) (i)
— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — RECEFMIEHIER 627 25
Other receivables (Note 20) (ii) HL 4t & U SR8 (B & 20) (i)
— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — REEMTEHIERE 74,837 357,445
Other payables (Note 27) (iii) H b BB FRIE (FFEE 27) (i)
— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — REAMZEHIERE 21,890 20,287
Contract liabilities EREE
— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — RELEFTIEHIER 2,350 =
Lease liabilities (iv) HERE(v)
— Entities controlled by Mr. Song — RELFTIEHIERE 8,287 9,200
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

32 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(d) Balances with related parties (Continued)

(i)

(iii)

Trade receivables and payables with related parties
were unsecured and interest-free. These balances
were with credit period varying from 0 to 180 days.

Other receivables with related parties as at 31
December 2021 were unsecured and interest-free.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, The
Group and certain subsidiaries of Beijing Tongdao
entered into several sales agency services
agreements (the “Underlying Agreements”),
pursuant to which, The Group paid refundable
deposits (the “Refundable Deposits”) in an
aggregate amount of RMB85,836,000, out of which
RMB62,910,000 remained outstanding as other
receivables as at 31 December 2021. For the parking
spaces sold by the Group, the amount of the
Refundable Deposits shall be set-off by the total
sales reserve price for such parking spaces received
by the Group; and for the parking spaces failed to
be sold by the Group, the Refundable Deposits shall
be refunded in full upon the expiration of the Sales
Agency Services Framework Agreement on 31
December 2023, or on the date(s) as agreed by
parties under the relevant Underlying Agreements
(whichever is earlier). As at the date of this report,
the deposits were fully refunded. Further details
were set out in Note 34.

Except for the Refundable Deposits, the remaining
balances of other receivables were repayable on
demand.

Amounts represented rental and other payments
collected by the Group on behalf of entities
controlled by Mr. Song in the normal course of
business of the Group, which were trade in nature,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

Amounts represented lease payables for the
properties leased from entities controlled by Mr.
Song, which were unsecured and trade in nature.

(B BEHI

BESBENAARETITINIR)

32 BBEtHR 5 )

(d) EEREEEA MVAEER (&)

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

HEH T B 5 R MR K
ENRELEBEBEMAE RS -
AL ERER 0 E 180 RS
FASH -

R 2021412 A 318 £2 g Bt
Ty B H A FE U 2ROE A 4
&%/%\ °

#H E2021F12 8318 IE 4
B AEEEILRRBNE
TFHEBRAREFTZHEMEER
Bk e ([l -
BiEZBE  ASBEXM
ARERER ([ RERFE
& 1) A £ A K% 85,836,000
JC H A R #62,910,000
TTHR2021E12A31B £ A
Eb RN AREE o HR
AEBEEEMELN - K&K
BEUWEIMZESEMAEER
BRERRAZTENIERE
RECDROASEE : HR
AREBRELMEBEA - AJR
BERESHBEHERERY
HE 28 1 3% £2023 F 12 A 31
HEmE B mER A7
HBEMNEMBH(UREES
E)RFHERE RNAHEH
B e B REED - #—
BB R3S -

BRARERII  EME
WA BRI ER(ER -

BERAFBERASERKRRE
EFEGHEBRAKRBIES
EBEREPRRNES RE
AR ZERARFEES
MHE - EER REREARN

FOREFEE

B B8R IR 48 17 R 5T £ PR AE
ERLEMENRERMNES
ZERESEES  BBERN
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

33

34

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

As disclosed in the Prospectus on 17 June 2021, the Company
(for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries) and Beijing Tongdao
(for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries and associates)
entered into the Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement,
pursuant to which, The Group agreed to provide the Sales
Agency Services to the Beijing Tongdao and its subsidiaries and
associates (“Beijing Tongdao Group”), being sales agency
services for first-hand properties and unsold parking spaces,
including but not limited to consulting services and sales events
organization services, on an exclusive and sole basis for some of
the property projects developed by the Beijing Tongdao Group.
But the Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement was silent
on the payments of refundable deposits.

As disclosed in the announcement dated 21 April 2022, the
Board announces that on 21 April 2022, the Company and
Beijing Tongdao entered into the Supplemental Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement, pursuant to which members of
the Group shall pay to members of the Beijing Tongdao Group
refundable deposits in connection with the Sales Agency
Services contemplated under the Sales Agency Services
Framework Agreement.

As of the date of the announcement, Beijing Tongdao is
beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Song, the ultimate
controlling Shareholder. Therefore, Beijing Tongdao constitutes
a connected person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules, and the transactions contemplated under the
Supplemental Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.
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A SEAARETITIIR)

SBRE

R2021F K% 2020F12H31 8 A5
WEEBAKEEAE °

HEHREE

BINBREIEAT IR EE - N 202156 A 17
H AR (REAXFERERENER
A B REE (RERN S RRRENE
AR EEE A )R] S B RIE RIS HEZE 7
= BEZWE  ASEREMRIERE
BEREWBAFIRBEA((LEREAES
B RENITDMEIRE - RERKEE
—EERHER—FUERRELEN
IHERIEEL - BIEETRREAR
BB E F AR - A - HER
BRBELBZEITRERESHZA
REERRE o

BANB A 2022 4 A 21 HEYRA ST
B EZeSMH R202294A218 -
RARBEIERFAEE THAHERE
IRISIEZR 3k - BIBZBE - NEEK
BARIERIERFAEEBKE AT
HERERBERBA THHERER
BARERER -

BERREGZA  ERFEERKEER
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

PERIOD (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had paid
Refundable Deposits of RMB85,836,000, and after the reporting
period, the Group further paid Refundable Deposits of
RMB 134,969,000, totalling RMB220,805,000, which were fully
refunded as at the date of this report. As one or more of the
applicable percentage ratios in respect of the Refundable
Deposits have exceeded 5%, such payment of the Refundable
Deposits constituted continuing connected transactions of the
Company subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement, circular and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. As the
Company had not complied with such applicable requirements
prior to making the payment of the Refundable Deposits, such
payment constituted a breach of Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Company has reported the breach of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules to The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

The Company proposes to put forward an ordinary resolution at
the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company to be
held (“AGM") for the Independent Shareholders to consider
and, if thought fit, approve the entering into of the
Supplemental Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement, the
transactions contemplated thereunder and the ratification of
the payment of the Refundable Deposits.

A circular containing, among other things, (i) details of the
Supplemental Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement; (ii)
a letter of recommendation from the Independent Board
Committee in relation to the Supplemental Sales Agency
Services Framework Agreement; (iii) a letter from the
independent financial adviser in relation to the Supplemental
Sales Agency Services Framework Agreement; and (iv) a notice
of the AGM, will be despatched on or before May 26, 2022,
taking into account the additional time required for the
Company to prepare and finalize the information for inclusion
in the circular.

e I ERAR MR

(Br=EIEHAN - BEESBEAARETTIIR)

34 EVENTS OCCURRING AFTER THE REPORTING 34 ¥REHIZ=I1E (4)

HE2021F12A31BILFEE - KEE
BEXNAIRERES ARS5,836,000
T BEREHE - AEEE SN
ARERES ARE 134,969,000 * &
= AR#£ 220,805,000 7T @ & ZEAMRE B
E2FEER - AR —Ezk % EfRER
FEHERMLLAIEBIE5% @ ZARE
RECHIMNEX T ARAIFRFERE
Ro - WHEFTEMRAEI4AZETH
B FEHEHN 25 BREBEIR
REEER - ARARBEZ A RE
RBESPARETFT LMBERENR - A&
EXMERT LWRAE14AFE -

ARRERAEBHEXZMER R AR
HFEREMRAUE 1AABTHIER

ARRREBEARRNEERTHFER
RRE(FEBRRAS]) LEE—1RE
BRE - HBURRERE  MRAB/A
i A ERR AT I 8 IR IR AR R 15
& HETRUETHR S AL /ERE £ 7]
RERBEOAS -

BERTEFEIINRGEARANE TE
B EHEE(HRaf) ()frEER
BRGERLGZEOMAL : (VBLESFS
ZESANBREERERBIERGZ
B HE P SR e O R A 5 (i) 98 N7 B 7S R D
MR ERIEREIER B R
M(v)FERRE RS 8@ S5 @K IGE
20225 A 26 A 2 A E 3 »
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OF THE COMPANY

BRI

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (Bx 2 A& 5BASN

Balance sheet of the Company

A SBEAARETITIIR)

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 35 ARAR|EE &8 ER M EE
E2)

RRREERER

As at 31 December

M®12A31H

Note 2021 2020

B =E 20215 20204
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investment in subsidiaries RETB R RHIEE 428,411 =
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from a subsidiary FEU — M B A R FUR 109,558 -
Prepayments SEUNE- O - 2,126
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 7,932 =
Total assets BEHAE 545,901 2,126
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to owners A&7 R#EE A E(LER

of the Company

Share capital i@ 24 5,831 -
Other reserves H b 536,420 =
Accumulated losses 25HEE (14,903) (4,015)
Total equity R 527,348 (4,015)
LIABILITIES =K
Current liabilities RBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERTHT B A B3 IA 16,153 6,141
Other payables H fth fE (T 58 2,400 =
Total liabilities BEBRE 18,553 6,141
Total equity and liabilities =R EERRE 545,901 2,126

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board

of the Company on April 29, 2022 and was signed on its behalf:

KANG Weiguo

EEE
Director

EE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) (f& BB EERIN » AL EAARETTHIR)

35 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT 35 AARIEEBERREHEH
OF THE COMPANY (continued) ) (%)
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) = BREEH
Accumulated Capital Share Other

losses reserves premium reserves Total

E EN {3 &E Hitfhfe at

As at 1 January 2020 R2020E1 A1R - - - - -

Loss for the year FRER (4,015) = = - (4,015)

As at 31 December 2020 R2020F12 A31H (4,015) - - - (4,015)

As at 1 January 2021 R2021F1R18 (4,015) - - - (4,015)

Loss for the year FRER (10,888) - - - (10,888)

Currengy translation differences &#iE =4 - -
Issue of shares in connection ~ EAAT EARH)

with the Company's listing B3 E7 (B3 24()

(Note 24(c)) - - 518,588 - 518,588
Issue of shares in connection ~ EE AL (T ERIH)

with the capitalisation issue B3 ET (B3 24(0)

1
—
w
w
p=)
)
-~

(3.395)

(Note 24(b)) - - (4,373) - (4,373)
Capital injection from ARARRTE
shareholders of the Company ~ (FitE 25(b)(i))
(Note 25(h)(i)) - 25,600 - - 25,600
As at 31 December 2021 202112 A318 (14,903) 25,600 514,215 (3,395) 521,517
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A a IR R AR M T

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated) ([& 2HEEAIN - B L EEUAARE T THIR)

36 DIRECTORS' BENEFITS AND INTERESTS 36 EFm@EA A=
The directors received emoluments from the Group (in their role HZE2021F %2020 12 A31 B IFFE -
as senior management and employee before their appointment EEEAEBWENHE (EREZ T A
as directors) for the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 as EE AN R EEEREES D)
follows, and no director has waived or agreed to waive any T HEEERNEEFEERENRZ N
emoluments during the respective year. ZEMME -
Other
Contributions allowance
Salaries toaretirement  and benefits
Name k4 Fees and bonus  benefit scheme in kind Total
BIRER Hit2ER
e R4 SIS BENER @5t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARBTR  ARRTR  AR®TR  AR®Tx

Yearended 31 December 2021  HZ2021E 12831 ALEE
Executive directors (Note (i)) HTEE (MEG)

Mr. Dai Wei HEts - 1,200 17 25 1,242
Ms. Wang Na Fiat - 684 30 43 757
Mr. Kang Weiguo REELAE - 503 25 41 569

Non-executive directors (Note (ii) FEEI/TES (K3 (i)

Mr. Song REE - - - - -
Dr. Li Haitao FEREL 53 - - - 53
Dr. Fan Yun BizigT 53 - - - 53
Mr. Wong Yun Pun BHELE 53 - - - 53
159 2,387 72 109 2,727
Year ended 31 December 2020  EZ2020F12 431 HILEE
Executive directors (Note (i) BITES ()
Mr. Dai Wei BELE - 1,200 6 52 1,258
Ms. Wang Na Fiat - 684 6 52 742
Mr. Kang Weiguo REREE - 672 3 32 707
- 2,556 15 136 2,107
(i) Mr. Dai Wei, Ms. Wang Na and Mr. Kang Weiguo were (i) #FFEEE EFZEREFRLEE
appointed as executive director of the Company on 20 R2021FE1A20BEZEAEAR
January 2021. AIBITES ©
(ii) Mr. Song was appointed as a non-executive director of (i) REER2021FE1 208 EEF
the Company on 20 January 2021, Dr. Li Haitao, Dr. Fan BARTFATES - ZHFEE
Yun and Mr. Wong Yun Pun were appointed as T #HBRELIEEBEELER
independent non-executive directors of the Company on 2021 F1A20B B Z X ABA R A
20 January 2021. B IEMITES o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(All amounts expressed in RMB thousand unless otherwise stated)

36 DIRECTORS’ BENEFITS AND INTERESTS

(Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Directors’ retirement benefits and
termination benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or its
subsidiaries” undertaking.

No payment was made to the directors as compensation
for early termination of appointment during the year
ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

Consideration provided to third parties for
making available directors’ services

No payment was made to any former employer of
directors or third parties for making available directors’
services as director of the Company during the year ended
31 December 2021 (2020: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and
other dealings in favour of directors,
controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors

Save as disclosed in Note 32, there were no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings entered into by the Company or
subsidiaries undertaking of the Company, where
applicable, in favour of the directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors
during the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 32, no significant transactions,
arrangements and contracts in relation to the Group's
business to which the Group was a party and in which a
director or supervisor of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at end of
the year and at any time during the year ended 31
December 2021 (2020: same).

e I ERAR MR

(Br=EIEHAN - BEESBEAARETTIIR)

36 EFEMEMN MA@

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

ESWERKRENRBERER

MEEENEAREEARANE
B 8 7 B =5 795 O LA AR 795 T 28 S A
X WAE R IRAEH o

REZE2021FE12 A31IEFE -
EREERIEREMEES L ME
AR IEVE A#H1E (20204 : #HE) °

RRGESBBOE= AR
IR E

REZE 202112 A31 B IEFE -
BERESARAREEREMAE
ERE=FHEIEE S MEAFIE
(20204 : #8[A) °

BRLUESE ZFEENX
EHEERBEERAX S
ANER  EERRHEMT
ZEHR

BRBfT FE32 B B B AN - AL E 2021
F12A31BIEFE - AAAIHA
ARIMEB AR (2REA) B ERT LA
EEYREEENZEHEE LA
EEBAXRANER  EERRK
HAb3 5 (20204 : #8R) °

EERRS ZHASEAW
EX#ER

BRETEE2FTHBEEIN RERK
HZE2021F12 A31 BIEFENT
s - SIEEAEEEKARBE
AEBABEF—HURAARES
REERETHEEE AT
BEARD  RHERER(EmERE
SR FEHE ) 1748 (2020 4F - #8A) ©
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
PO B F5 B 2

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE ~ &R& 2 HE W= &R

INCOME
Year ended 31 December
HENRAMBLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018
202145 2020 4F 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BTR AR®TT ARETT ARETT
Revenue WA 783,567 575,585 362,840 228,946
Cost of sales SHE A (579,715)  (399,041) (251,804) (174,975)
Gross profit EF 203,852 176,544 111,036 53,971
Administrative expenses THRY (61,705) (39,753) (19,952) (18,389)
Selling and marketing expenses SHE K& HRAS (15,339) (10,778) (9,449) (5,675)
Net impairment losses on financial
assets S EVE EREERFE (6,542) (2,701) (1,665) (1,747)
Other income H A 8,494 21,344 5,917 3,345
Other (losses)/gains — net Hth (&518),
gzt — F58 (1,924) 1 - (37)
Operating profit REFH 126,836 144,657 85,887 31,468
Finance income BLE U A 1,472 414 293 1,048
Finance costs B E A A (8,395) (21,113) (5,806) (3,524)
Finance costs — net B E RN — JFEE (6,923) (20,699) (5,513) (2,476)

Share of profit/(loss) of investments &1 {8 A ZE AR
accounted for using the equity IR ERE, (BE)

method 244 (57) - _
Profit before income tax R BT 15 %% A K 55 120,157 123,901 80,374 28,992
Income tax expenses PSR (31,598) (32,117) (20,227) (7,285)
Profit for the year F R FE 88,559 91,784 60,147 21,707
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE

INCOME (Continued)

FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

PO & B F B 22

reTElE

=]
(48)

Year ended 31 December
BZ12A31ALLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018
20214 20204 20194 20184
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETT ARBTT ARETT
Profit attributable to: BT & 75 FEAR R ¢
— Owners of the Company Vi N/NCIEZF SN 83,885 88,383 60,179 21,813
— Non-controlling interests = 4,674 3,401 (32) (106)
88,559 91,784 60,147 21,707
Other comprehensive income Hi2mikas
ltem that may be reclassified AREEM D EE B
to profit or loss I8 B
— Exchange difference on — BREGINETS
translation of foreign EERERE5
operations (2,606) - - -
Total comprehensive income FAERRERE
for the year 85,953 91,784 60,147 21,707
Total comprehensive income LT &7 L2 ER S
attributable to: 4z
— Owners of the Company Vi N/NGIEZFE N 81,279 88,383 60,179 21,813
— Non-controlling interests — JEE R RS 4,674 3,401 (32) (106)
85,953 91,784 60,147 21,707
Earnings per share SRER
— Basic and diluted — EARR#EE 0.14 0.17 N/A N/A
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FOUR-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
PO B 5

E\

CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND LIABILITIES #r&a&E  #E=mMEE

-~ 1=

As at 31 December

M12H831H
2021 2020 2019 2018
2021 20204 20194 2018
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRT ARETRT ARETT ARETT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IEREEE 151,222 47,078 37,131 13,062
Current assets BB E 983,700 854,231 395,626 237,112
Total assets EEHAE 1,134,922 901,309 432,757 250,174
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to owners of ~ ZANARIHEA AE(ERER
the Company 667,889 145,964 57,581 31,402
Non-controlling interests iR 33,508 21,052 6,067 94
Total equity A 701,397 167,016 63,648 31,496
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities EREBEE 26,040 230,180 17,830 5,527
Current liabilities mENAE 407,485 504,113 351,279 213,151
Total liabilities REBEE 433,525 734,293 369,109 218,678
Total equity and liabilities ERRAGEHE 1,134,922 901,309 432,757 250,174
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